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A WARNING ABOUT FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS: This document contains "forward-looking statements" as that term is used in the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Forward-looking statements address future events, developments and results. They include statements preceded by, followed by or including
words such as "believe," "anticipate," "expect," "intend," "plan," "view," “target” or "estimate." For example, our forward-looking statements include statements regarding:
·

our anticipated sales, including comparable store net sales, net sales growth and earnings growth;

·
·

our growth plans, including our plans to add, expand or relocate stores, our anticipated square footage increase, and our ability to renew leases at
existing store locations;
the average size of our stores to be added in 2007 and beyond;

·

the effect of a slight shift in merchandise mix to consumables and the increase of freezers and coolers on gross profit margin and sales;

·

the effect that expanding tender types accepted by our stores will have on sales;

·

the net sales per square foot, net sales and operating income attributable to smaller and larger stores and store-level cash payback metrics;

·
·

the possible effect of inflation and other economic changes on our costs and profitability, including the possible effect of future changes in minimum
wage rates, shipping rates, domestic and foreign freight costs, fuel costs and wage and benefit costs;
our cash needs, including our ability to fund our future capital expenditures and working capital requirements;

·

our gross profit margin, earnings, inventory levels and ability to leverage selling, general and administrative and other fixed costs;

·

our seasonal sales patterns including those relating to the length of the holiday selling seasons;

·

the capabilities of our inventory supply chain technology and other new systems;

·

the future reliability of, and cost associated with, our sources of supply, particularly imported goods such as those sourced from China;

·

the capacity, performance and cost of our distribution centers, including opening and expansion schedules;

·

our expectations regarding competition and growth in our retail sector;

·

costs of pending and possible future legal claims;

·

management's estimates associated with our critical accounting policies, including inventory valuation, accrued expenses, and income taxes;

·

the possible effect on our financial results of changes in generally accepted accounting principles relating to accounting for income tax uncertainties.

You should assume that the information appearing in this annual report is accurate only as of the date it was issued. Our business, financial condition, results of operations
and prospects may have changed since that date.
For a discussion of the risks, uncertainties and assumptions that could affect our future events, developments or results, you should carefully review the risk factors
described in “Item 1A. Risk Factors” beginning on page 10, as well as "Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" beginning on
page 18.
Our forward-looking statements could be wrong in light of these and other risks, uncertainties and assumptions. The future events, developments or results described in this
report could turn out to be materially different. We have no obligation to publicly update or revise our forward-looking statements after the date of this annual report and you
should not expect us to do so.
Investors should also be aware that while we do, from time to time, communicate with securities analysts and others, we do not, by policy, selectively disclose to them any
material , nonpublic information or other confidential commercial information. Accordingly, shareholders should not assume that we agree with any statement or report issued
by any securities analyst regardless of the content of the statement or report. We generally do not issue financial forecasts or projections and we do not, by policy, confirm those
issued by others. Thus, to the extent that reports issued by securities analysts contain any projections, forecasts or opinions, such reports are not our responsibility.
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INTRODUCTORY NOTE: Unless otherwise stated, references to "we," "our" and "Dollar Tree" generally refer to Dollar Tree Stores, Inc. and its direct and indirect
subsidiaries on a consolidated basis. Unless specifically indicated otherwise, any references to “2007” or “fiscal 2007”, “2006” or “fiscal 2006,” “2005” or “fiscal
2005,” and "2004" or "fiscal 2004," relate to as of or for the years ended February 2, 2008, February 3, 2007, January 28, 2006 and January 29, 2005, respectively.
AVAILABLE INFORMATION
Our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section
13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act are available free of charge on our website at www.dollartree.com as soon as reasonably practicable after electronic filing of such
reports with the SEC.
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PART I
Item 1. BUSINESS
Overview
Since our founding in 1986, we have become the leading operator of discount variety stores offering merchandise at the fixed price of $1.00. We believe the variety and
quality of products we sell for $1.00 sets us apart from our competitors. At February 3, 2007, we operated 3,219 discount variety retail stores. Approximately 3,100 of these
stores sell substantially all items for $1.00 or less. The remaining stores, operating as Deal$, which were acquired in March 2006, sell many items for $1.00 or less but also sell
items at prices greater than $1.00. Our stores operate under the names of Dollar Tree, Deal$, Dollar Bills and Dollar Express.
In the past five years, we have modified our average store size to reflect what we believe is our optimal store size of between 10,000 and 12,500 square feet. At February 3,
2007, approximately 17% of our stores are less than 6,000 square feet, which is down from approximately 47% of our stores at December 31, 2002. These smaller stores are
comprised of mall and older strip shopping center locations and are candidates for relocation as their leases expire. Our current store size reflects our expanded merchandise
offerings and improved service to our customers. As we have been expanding our merchandise offerings, we have added freezers and coolers to approximately 700 stores during
the past two years to increase traffic and transaction size. At December 31, 2002, we operated 2,263 stores in 40 states. At February 3, 2007, we operated 3,219 stores in 48
states. Our selling square footage increased from approximately 13.0 million square feet in December 2002 to 26.3 million square feet in February 2007. Our store growth since
2002 has resulted from opening new stores and completing mergers and acquisitions. We centrally manage our store and distribution operations from our corporate
headquarters in Chesapeake, Virginia.
Business Strategy
Value Merchandise Offering. We strive to exceed our customers' expectations of the variety and quality of products that they can purchase for $1.00 by offering items that
we believe typically sell for higher prices elsewhere. We buy approximately 60% to 65% of our merchandise domestically and import the remaining 35% to 40%. Our domestic
purchases include closeouts. We believe our mix of imported and domestic merchandise affords our buyers flexibility that allows them to consistently exceed the customer's
expectation. In addition, direct relationships with manufacturers permit us to select from a broad range of products and customize packaging, product sizes and package
quantities that meet our customers' needs.
Mix of Basic Variety and Seasonal Merchandise. We maintain a balanced selection of products within traditional variety store categories. We offer a wide selection of
everyday basic products and we supplement these basic, everyday items with seasonal and closeout merchandise. We attempt to keep certain basic consumable merchandise in
our stores continuously to establish our stores as a destination and increased slightly the mix of consumable merchandise in order to increase the traffic in our stores. Closeout
merchandise is purchased opportunistically and represents less than 10% of our purchases. National, regional and private-label brands have become a bigger part of our
merchandise mix.
Our merchandise mix consists of:

·

consumable merchandise, which includes candy and food, basic health and beauty care, and household consumables such as paper,
plastics and household chemicals and in select stores, frozen and refrigerated food;

·

variety merchandise, which includes toys, durable housewares, gifts, fashion health and beauty care, party goods, greeting cards,
apparel, and other items; and

·

seasonal goods, which include Easter, Halloween and Christmas merchandise, along with summer toys and lawn and garden
merchandise.
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We have added freezers and coolers to certain stores which have increased the consumable merchandise carried by our stores. We believe this initiative helps us drive
additional transactions and allows us to appeal to a broader demographic mix, and these stores will carry more consumable merchandise than stores without freezers. We have
added freezers and coolers to approximately 400 more stores in 2006. Therefore, as of February 3, 2007, we have freezers and coolers in approximately 700 of our stores. We
plan to add them to approximately 250 more stores in 2007. As a result of the installation of freezers and coolers in select stores, consumable merchandise has grown as a
percentage of purchases and sales and we expect this trend to continue. The following table shows the percentage of purchases of each major product group for the years ended
February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006:
February 3,

January 28,

Merchandise Type

2007

2006

Variety categories

48.9%

47.2%

Consumable
Seasonal

45.3%

44.9%

5.8%

7.9%

Customer Payment Methods. All of our stores accept cash and checks and approximately 700 stores accept Visa and MasterCard credit cards. Prior to May 2005,
approximately 900 of our stores accepted debit cards. By the end of 2005, approximately 2,300 of our stores accepted debit cards and as of the end of 2006, all of our stores
accept debit cards. Along with the shift to more consumables, the rollout of freezers and coolers and the acceptance of pin-based debit transactions, we increased the number of
stores accepting Electronic Benefits Transfer cards and food stamps at qualified stores in the current year. We believe that expanding our tender types has helped increase both
the traffic and the average size of transactions at our stores in the current year.
Convenient Locations and Store Size. We primarily focus on opening new stores in strip shopping centers anchored by mass merchandisers, whose target customers we
believe to be similar to ours, and in neighborhood centers anchored by large grocery retailers. Our stores have proven successful in metropolitan areas, mid-sized cities and
small towns. The range of our store sizes allows us to target a particular location with a store that best suits that market and takes advantage of available real estate
opportunities. Our stores are attractively designed and create an inviting atmosphere for shoppers by using bright lighting, vibrant colors, decorative signs and background
music. We enhance the store design with attractive merchandise displays. We believe this design attracts new and repeat customers and enhances our image as both a destination
and impulse purchase store.
For more information on retail locations and retail store leases, see "Properties."
Profitable Stores with Strong Cash Flow. We maintain a disciplined, cost-sensitive approach to store site selection in order to minimize the initial capital investment
required and maximize our potential to generate high operating margins and strong cash flows. We believe that our stores have a relatively small shopping radius, which allows
us to profitably concentrate multiple stores within a single market. Our ability to open new stores is dependent upon, among other factors, locating suitable sites and negotiating
favorable lease terms.
Our older, smaller stores continue to generate significant store-level operating income and operating cash flows and have some of the highest operating margin rates among
our stores; however, the increased size of our newer stores allows us to offer a wider selection of products, including more basic consumable merchandise, thereby making them
more attractive as a destination store.
The strong cash flows generated by our stores allow us to self-fund infrastructure investment and new stores. Over the past five years, cash flows from operating activities
have exceeded capital expenditures.
For more information on our results of operations, see "Management's Discussion and Analysis - Results of Operations." For more information on seasonality of sales, see
"Management's Discussion and Analysis - Seasonality and Quarterly Fluctuations."
Cost Control. We believe that substantial buying power at the $1.00 price point contributes to our successful purchasing strategy, which includes disciplined, targeted
merchandise margin goals by category. We believe our disciplined buying and quality merchandise help to minimize markdowns. We buy products on an order-by-order basis
and have no material long-term purchase contracts or other assurances of continued product supply or guaranteed product cost. No vendor accounted for more than 10% of total
merchandise purchased in any of the past five years.
Table of Contents
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Our supply chain systems continue to provide us with valuable sales information to assist our buyers and improve merchandise allocation to our stores. Controlling our
inventory levels has resulted in more efficient distribution and store operations.
Information Systems. We believe that investments in technology help us to increase sales and control costs. Our inventory management system has allowed us to improve
the efficiency of our supply chain, improve merchandise flow and control distribution and store operating costs.
Our automatic replenishment system automatically reorders key items, based on actual store level sales and inventory. In 2005 and 2006, we rolled out this system to
additional stores and merchandise categories. At the end of 2006, we had over 800 basic, everyday items on automatic replenishment. As we continue to utilize this system, our
store management has more time to focus on customer focused activities.
Point-of-sale data allows us to track sales by merchandise category at the store level and assists us in planning for future purchases of inventory. We believe that this
information allows us to ship the appropriate product to stores at the quantities commensurate with selling patterns. Using this point-of-sale data for planning purchases of
inventory has helped us reduce our inventory per store approximately 12% in 2005 as compared to 2004 and an additional 5% in 2006 compared to 2005. Our inventory turns
also increased 70 basis points in the current year.
Corporate Culture and Values. We believe that honesty and integrity, doing the right things for the right reasons, and treating people fairly and with respect are core values
within our corporate culture. We believe that running a business, and certainly a public company, carries with it a responsibility to be above reproach when making operational
and financial decisions. Our management team visits and shops our stores like every customer; we have an open door policy for all our associates; and ideas and individual
creativity are encouraged. We have standards for store displays, merchandise presentation, and store operations. Our distribution centers are operated based on objective
measures of performance and virtually everyone in our store support center is available to assist associates in the stores and distribution centers.
Our disclosure committee meets at least quarterly and monitors our internal controls over financial reporting and ensures that our public filings contain discussions about
the risks our business faces. We believe that we have the controls in place to be able to certify our financial statements. Additionally, we have complied with the updated listing
requirements for the Nasdaq Stock Market.
Growth Strategy
Store Openings and Square Footage Growth. The primary factors contributing to our net sales growth have been new store openings, an active store expansion and
remodel program, and selective mergers and acquisitions. From 2002 to 2006, net sales increased at a compound annual growth rate of 14.3%. We expect that the substantial
majority of our future sales growth will come primarily from new store openings and from our store expansion and relocation program.
The following table shows the total selling square footage of our stores and the selling square footage per new store opened over the last five years. Our growth and
productivity statistics are reported based on selling square footage because our management believes the use of selling square footage yields a more accurate measure of store
productivity. The selling square footage statistics for 2002 through 2006 are estimates based on the relationship of selling to gross square footage.

Year
2002
2003
2004
2005
2006

Number of Stores
2,263
2,513
2,735
2,914
3,219

Average Selling
Square Footage Per
Store
5,763
6,716
7,475
7,900
8,160
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Average Selling
Square Footage Per
New Store Opened
7,783
9,948
10,947
9,756
8,780

We expect to increase our selling square footage in the future by opening new stores in underserved markets and strategically increasing our presence in our existing
markets via new store openings and store expansions (expansions include store relocations). In fiscal 2007 and beyond, we plan to predominantly open stores that are
approximately 9,000 selling square feet and we believe this size allows us to achieve our objectives in the markets in which we plan to expand. At February 3, 2007, 1,094 of
our stores, totaling 50.5% of our selling square footage, were 9,000 selling square feet or larger.
In addition to new store openings, we plan to continue our store expansion program to increase our net sales per store and take advantage of market opportunities. We
target stores for expansion based on the current sales per selling square foot and changes in market opportunities. Stores targeted for expansion are generally less than 6,000
selling square feet in size. Store expansions generally increase the existing store size by approximately 6,000 selling square feet.
Since 1995, we have added a total of 609 stores through four mergers and several small acquisitions. Our acquisition strategy has been to target companies with a similar
single price point concept that have shown success in operations or provide a strategic advantage. We evaluate potential acquisition opportunities in our retail sector as they
become available.
On March 25, 2006, we completed our acquisition of 138 Deal$ stores and paid $32.0 million for store-related and other assets and $22.1 million for inventory. These
stores are located primarily in the Midwest part of the United States and we have existing logistics capacity to service these stores. This acquisition also included a few “combo”
stores that offer an expanded assortment of merchandise including items that sell for more than $1. Substantially all Deal$ stores acquired continue to operate under the Deal$
banner while providing us an opportunity to leverage our Dollar Tree infrastructure in the testing of new merchandise concepts, including higher price points, without disrupting
the single-price point model in our Dollar Tree stores.
In 2006, we also acquired the rights to 21 store leases through bankruptcy proceedings of certain discount retailers. We will take advantage of these opportunities as they
arise in the future.
Merchandising and Distribution. Expanding our customer base is important to our growth plans. We plan to continue to stock our new stores with the ever-changing
merchandise that our current customers have come to appreciate. In addition, we are opening larger stores that contain more basic consumable merchandise to attract new
customers. Consumable merchandise typically leads to more frequent return trips to our stores resulting in increased sales. The presentation and display of merchandise in our
stores are critical to communicating value to our customers and creating a more exciting shopping experience. We believe our approach to visual merchandising results in higher
store traffic, higher sales volume and an environment that encourages impulse purchases.
A strong and efficient distribution network is critical to our ability to grow and to maintain a low-cost operating structure. We expect to continue to add distribution capacity
to support our store opening plans, with the aim of remaining approximately one year ahead of our distribution needs. In 2007, we are planning to add capacity to our Briar
Creek distribution center which services the northeast part of the country. We believe these distribution centers, including the planned expansion of the Briar Creek distribution
center, in total are capable of supporting approximately $5.0 billion in annual sales. Based on current plans, we will not need to add any additional distribution capacity until at
least 2008. New distribution sites are strategically located to reduce stem miles, maintain flexibility and improve efficiency in our store service areas.
Our stores receive approximately 95% of their inventory from our distribution centers via contract carriers. The remaining store inventory, primarily perishable consumable
items and other vendor-maintained display items, are delivered directly to our stores from vendors. For more information on our distribution center network, see “Properties.”
Competition
The retail industry is highly competitive and we expect competition to increase in the future. Our value discount retail competitors include Family Dollar, Dollar General
and 99 Cents Only. Family Dollar and Dollar General sell items for more than $1 while 99 Cents only sells items at the $0.99 price point or below. The principal methods of
competition include closeout merchandise, convenience and the quality of merchandise offered to the customer. Though we are predominantly a fixed-price point retailer, we
also compete with mass merchandisers, such as Wal-Mart and Target, and regional discount retailers. In addition, several mass merchandisers and grocery store chains carry
"dollar store" or “dollar zone” concepts in their stores, which increases competition. Our sales and profits could be reduced by increases in competition, especially because there
are no significant economic barriers for others to enter our retail sector.
Table of Contents
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Trademarks
We are the owners of federal service mark registrations for "Dollar Tree," the "Dollar Tree" logo, "1 Dollar Tree" together with the related design, and "One Price...One
Dollar." We also own a concurrent use registration for "Dollar Bill$" and the related logo. During 1997, we acquired the rights to use trade names previously owned by
Everything's A Dollar, a former competitor in the $1.00 price point industry. Several trade names were included in the purchase, including the marks "Everything's $1.00 We
Mean Everything," and "Everything's $1.00," the registration of which is pending. With the acquisition of Dollar Express, we became the owner of the service marks "Dollar
Express" and "Dollar Expres$." We became the owners of the "Greenbacks All A Dollar" and "All A Dollar" service marks, with the acquisition of Greenbacks. We also
became the owners of “Deal$” and “Deal$ Nothing Over A Dollar” trademarks, with the acquisition of Deal$. We have applied for federal trademark registrations for various
private labels that we use to market some of our product lines.
Employees
We employed approximately 12,700 full-time and 29,500 part-time associates on February 3, 2007. The number of part-time associates fluctuates depending on seasonal
needs. We consider our relationship with our associates to be good, and we have not experienced significant interruptions of operations due to labor disagreements. None of our
employees are subject to collective bargaining agreements.
Item 1A. RISK FACTORS
An investment in our common stock involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider the specific risk factors listed below together with all other information
included or incorporated in this report. Any of the following risks may materialize, and additional risks not known to us, or that we now deem immaterial, may arise. In such
event, our business, financial condition, results of operations or prospects could be materially adversely affected. If that occurs, the market price of our common stock could
fall, and you could lose all or part of your investment.
Our profitability is especially vulnerable to cost increases.
Future increase in costs such as the cost of merchandise, wage levels, shipping rates, freight costs, fuel costs and store occupancy costs may reduce our profitability. As a
fixed price retailer, we cannot raise the sales price of our merchandise to offset cost increases. Unlike multi-price retailers, we are primarily dependent on our ability to operate
more efficiently or increase our comparable store net sales in order to offset inflation. We expect comparable store net sales will increase approximately 1% to 3% in 2007. We
can give you no assurance that we will be able to operate more efficiently or increase our comparable store net sales in the future. Please see Item 7, "Management's Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations," of this Form 10-K for further discussion of the effect of Inflation and Other Economic Factors on our
operations.
Our profitability is affected by the mix of products we sell.
Our gross profit could decrease if we increase the proportion of higher cost goods we sell in the future. In recent years, the percentage of our sales from higher cost
consumable products has increased and is likely to increase in the first half of 2007. Our gross profit will decrease, primarily in the first two quarters in 2007, unless we are able
to increase the amount of our net sales sufficiently to offset any decrease in our product margin percentage. We can give you no assurance that we will be able to do so.
We may be unable to expand our square footage as profitably as planned.
We plan to expand our selling square footage by approximately 10% in 2007 to increase our sales and profits. Expanding our square footage profitably depends on a
number of uncertainties, including our ability to locate, lease, build out and open or expand stores in suitable locations on a timely basis under favorable economic terms. We
must also open or expand stores within our established geographic markets, where new or expanded stores may draw sales away from our existing stores. We may not manage
our expansion effectively, and our failure to achieve our expansion plans could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.
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A downturn in economic conditions could adversely affect our sales.
Economic conditions, such as those caused by recession, inflation, adverse weather conditions, or terrorism, could reduce consumer spending or cause customers to shift
their spending to products we either do not sell or do not sell as profitably. Adverse economic conditions could disrupt consumer spending and significantly reduce our sales.
Our sales and profits rely on imported merchandise, which may increase in cost or become unavailable.
Merchandise imported directly from overseas accounts for approximately 35% to 40% of our total purchases at retail. In addition, we believe that a small portion of our
goods purchased from domestic vendors is imported. China is the source of a substantial majority of our imports. Imported goods are generally less expensive than domestic
goods and increase our profit margins. A disruption in the flow of our imported merchandise or an increase in the cost of those goods may significantly decrease our profits.
Risks associated with our reliance on imported goods include:
§

disruptions in the flow of imported goods because of factors such as:
o raw material shortages, work stoppages, strikes and political unrest;
o problems with oceanic shipping, including shipping container shortages; and
o economic crises and international disputes.

§

increases in the cost of purchasing or shipping foreign merchandise, resulting from:
o increases in shipping rates imposed by the trans-Pacific ocean carriers;
o changes in currency exchange rates and local economic conditions, including inflation in the country of origin;
o failure of the United States to maintain normal trade relations with China; and
o import duties, import quotas and other trade sanctions.

We could encounter disruptions or additional costs in receiving and distributing merchandise.
Our success depends on our ability to transport merchandise from our suppliers to our distribution centers and then ship it to our stores in a timely and cost-effective
manner. We may not anticipate, respond to or control all of the challenges of operating our receiving and distribution systems. Some of the factors that could have an adverse
effect on our shipping and receiving systems or costs are:
§
§
§
§
§

Shipping. Our oceanic shipping schedules may be disrupted or delayed from time to time. We also have experienced shipping rate increases over the last several
years imposed by the trans-Pacific ocean carriers.
Diesel fuel costs. We have experienced increases in diesel fuel costs over the past few years.
Vulnerability to natural or man-made disasters. A fire, explosion or natural disaster at any of our distribution facilities could result in a loss of merchandise and
impair our ability to adequately stock our stores. Some of our facilities are especially vulnerable to earthquakes, hurricanes or tornadoes.
Labor disagreement. Labor disagreements or disruptions may result in delays in the delivery of merchandise to our stores and increase costs.
War, terrorism and other events. War and acts of terrorism in the United States, or in China or other parts of Asia where we buy a significant amount of our imported
merchandise, could disrupt our supply chain.

Sales below our expectations during peak seasons may cause our operating results to suffer materially.
Our highest sales periods are the Christmas and Easter seasons. We generally realize a disproportionate amount of our net sales and a substantial majority of our operating
and net income during the fourth quarter. In anticipation, we stock extra inventory and hire many temporary employees to supplement our stores. An economic downturn during
these periods could adversely affect our operating results, particularly operating and net income, to a greater extent than if a downturn occurred at other times of the year.
Untimely merchandise delays due to receiving or distribution problems could have a similar effect. Sales during the Easter selling season are materially affected by the timing of
the Easter holiday. Easter in fiscal 2006 was on April 16 th , while in fiscal 2007, it will be one week earlier on April 8th .
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Pressure from competitors may reduce our sales and profits.
The retail industry is highly competitive. The marketplace is highly fragmented as many different retailers compete for market share by utilizing a variety of store formats
and merchandising strategies. We expect competition to increase in the future because there are no significant economic barriers for others to enter our retail sector. Many of our
current or potential competitors have greater financial resources than we do. We cannot guarantee that we will continue to be able to compete successfully against existing or
future competitors. Please see Item 1 “Business,” of this Form 10-K for further discussion of the effect of competition on our operations.
The resolution of certain legal matters could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, accrued liabilities and cash.
For a discussion of current legal matters, please see Item 3. Legal Proceedings of this Form 10-K. Resolution of certain matters described in that item, if decided against
the Company, could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, accrued liabilities or cash flows.
Certain provisions in our articles of incorporation and bylaws could delay or discourage a takeover attempt that may be in a shareholder's best interest.
Our articles of incorporation and bylaws contain provisions that may delay or discourage a takeover attempt that a shareholder might consider in his best interest. These
provisions, among other things:
· classify our board of directors into three classes, each of which serves for different three-year periods;
· provide that only the board of directors, chairman or president may call special meetings of the shareholders;
· establish certain advance notice procedures for nominations of candidates for election as directors and for shareholder proposals to be considered a t shareholders'
meetings;
· require a vote of the holders of more than two-thirds of the shares entitled to vote in order to remove a director, change the number of directors, o r amend the
foregoing and certain other provisions of the articles of incorporation and bylaws; and
· permit the board of directors, without further action of the shareholders, to issue and fix the terms of preferred stock, which may have rights senior to those of the
common stock.
Item 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
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Item 2. PROPERTIES
Stores
As of February 3, 2007, we operated 3,219 stores in 48 states as detailed below:
Alabama
Arizona
Arkansas
California
Colorado
Connecticut
Delaware
Florida
Georgia
Idaho
Illinois
Indiana
Iowa
Kansas
Kentucky
Louisiana

81
50
48
222
37
25
16
200
129
20
134
94
27
31
68
55

Maine
Maryland
Massachusetts
Michigan
Minnesota
Mississippi
Missouri
Montana
Nebraska
Nevada
New Hampshire
New Jersey
New Mexico
New York
North Carolina
North Dakota

16
74
41
118
39
49
80
8
11
24
13
69
22
148
145
3

Ohio
Oklahoma
Oregon
Pennsylvania
Rhode Island
South Carolina
South Dakota
Tennessee
Texas
Utah
Vermont
Virginia
Washington
West Virginia
Wisconsin
Wyoming

148
50
65
178
11
68
4
83
200
31
6
125
58
32
59
4

We currently lease our stores and expect to continue to lease new stores as we expand. Our leases typically provide for a short initial lease term, generally five years, with
options to extend, however in some cases we have initial lease terms of seven to ten years. We believe this leasing strategy enhances our flexibility to pursue various
expansion opportunities resulting from changing market conditions. As current leases expire, we believe that we will be able to obtain lease renewals, if desired, for present
store locations, or to obtain leases for equivalent or better locations in the same general area.
Distribution Centers
The following table includes information about the distribution centers that we currently operate. We plan to expand the Briar Creek distribution center in 2007. This
expansion will increase the square footage of the Briar Creek distribution center to 1.0 million square feet. We believe our distribution center network, including this planned
expansion, is capable of supporting approximately $5.0 billion in annual sales.

Location
Chesapeake, Virginia
Olive Branch, Mississippi
Joliet, Illinois
Stockton, California
Briar Creek, Pennsylvania
Savannah, Georgia
Marietta, Oklahoma
Salt Lake City, Utah
Ridgefield, Washington

Own/Lease

Lease Expires

Size in
Square Feet

Own
Own
Own
Own
Own
Own
Own
Lease
Own

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
April 2010
N/A

400,000
425,000
1,200,000
525,000
603,000
603,000
603,000
252,000
665,000

In addition to our distribution centers noted above, during the past several years, we have used off-site facilities to accommodate limited quantities of seasonal merchandise.
With the exception of our Salt Lake City and Ridgefield facilities, each of our distribution centers contains advanced materials handling technologies, including
automated conveyor and sorting systems, radio-frequency inventory tracking equipment and specialized information systems.
For more information on financing of our distribution centers, see "Management's Discussion and Analysis - Funding Requirements."
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Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
From time to time, we are defendants in ordinary, routine litigation or proceedings incidental to our business, including allegations regarding:
·

employment related matters;

·

infringement of intellectual property rights;

·

product safety matters, which may include product recalls in cooperation with the Consumer Products Safety Commission;

·

personal injury/wrongful death claims; and

·

real estate matters related to store leases.

In 2003, we were served with a lawsuit in a California state court by a former employee who alleged that employees did not properly receive sufficient meal breaks and
paid rest periods, along with other alleged wage and hourly violations. The suit requested that the California state court certify the case as a class action. This suit was
dismissed with prejudice in May 2005, and the dismissal was appealed. A California appeals court granted the appeal and our petition for review to the California Supreme
Court was denied. The case has been remanded to the trial court where it will likely be consolidated with a companion suit which had been filed in the same court following
the trial court’s earlier dismissal. We anticipate that the plaintiff will seek class certification which we will oppose.
In 2005, we were served with a lawsuit by former employees in Oregon who allege that they did not properly receive sufficient meal breaks and paid rest periods. They
also allege other wage and hour violations. The plaintiffs requested the Court to certify classes for their various claims and the presiding judge did so with respect to two
classes, one alleging that our Oregon employees, in violation of that state’s labor laws, were not paid for rest breaks and the other that upon termination of employment,
employees were not tendered their final pay in a timely manner. Other claims of the plaintiffs were dismissed by an earlier Order of the Court and are being appealed by the
plaintiffs. Discovery will ensue on the certified class issues; no trial is anticipated before the end of 2007.
In 2006, we were served with a lawsuit by a former employee in a California state court alleging that she was paid for wages with a check drawn on a bank which did not
have any branches in the state, an alleged violation of the state's labor code; that she was paid less for her work than other similar employees with the same job title based on
her gender; and that we did not pay her final wages in a timely manner, also an alleged violation of the labor code. The plaintiff requested the court to certify the case as a
class action. We have been successful in removing the case from state to the federal court level. The parties have reached a settlement and executed an Agreement which will
be presented to the Court for its approval on April 24, 2007. The estimated settlement amount has been accrued in the accompanying consolidated financial statements as of
February 3, 2007.
In 2006, we were served with a lawsuit filed in federal court in the state of Alabama by a former store manager. She claims that she should have been classified as a nonexempt employee under the Fair Labor Standards Act and, therefore, should have received overtime compensation and other benefits. She filed the case as a collective action
on behalf of herself and all other employees (store managers) similarly situated. Our motion requesting that the case be transferred from Alabama to Virginia has been denied.
The plaintiff now seeks entry of an Order allowing nationwide notice to be sent to all store managers employed by us now or within the past three years. We are contesting
entry of such an Order.
We will vigorously defend ourselves in these lawsuits. We do not believe that any of these matters will, individually or in the aggregate, have a material adverse effect on
our business or financial condition. We cannot give assurance, however, that one or more of these lawsuits will not have a material adverse effect on our results of operations
for the period in which they are resolved.

Item 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of our 2006 fiscal year.
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PART II
Item 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
Our common stock has been traded on The Nasdaq Stock Market® under the symbol "DLTR" since our initial public offering on March 6, 1995. The following table
gives the high and low sales prices of our common stock as reported by Nasdaq for the periods indicated.
High

Low

Fiscal year ended January 28, 2006:
First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

$

29.04
26.01
25.65
25.48

$

23.95
22.77
20.56
20.66

$

28.68
27.89
32.00
32.78

$

24.34
23.90
25.62
29.34

Fiscal year ended February 3, 2007:
First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

On March 30, 2007, the last reported sale price for our common stock, as quoted by Nasdaq, was $38.24 per share. As of March 30, 2007, we had approximately 550
shareholders of record.
The following table presents our share repurchase activity for the 14 weeks ended February 3, 2007.

Period
October 29, 2006 to November 25,
2006
November 26, 2006 to December
30, 2006
December 31, 2006 to February 3,
2007
Total

Total number
of shares
purchased

Total number
of shares
purchased as
part of publicly
announced plans
or programs

Average
price paid
per share
-

$

3,156,881
3,156,881

$

Approximate
dollar value
of shares that
may yet be
purchased under
the plans or
programs
(in millions)

-

-

30.80

3,156,881

-

-

30.80

3,156,881

$

26.7
426.7
426.7

$

426.7

In March 2005, our Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to $300.0 million of our common stock through March 2008. During fiscal 2006, we
repurchased 5,650,871 shares for approximately $148.2 million under the March 2005 authorization.
In November 2006, our Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to $500.0 million of our common stock. This amount was in addition to the $26.7
million remaining on the March 2005 authorization. In December 2006, we entered into two agreements with a third party to repurchase approximately $100.0 million
of the Company’s common shares under an Accelerated Share Repurchase Agreement (ASR). The $100.0 million is reflected in the table above. As of February 3,
2007, of the $100.0 million that is recorded as a reduction to stockholders’ equity, approximately $3.8 million is pending final settlement of the ASR. See additional
discussion of the ASR in the Liquidity and Capital Resource section of, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,”
found elsewhere in this report.
We anticipate that substantially all of our cash flow from operations in the foreseeable future will be retained for the development and expansion of our business, the
repayment of indebtedness and, as authorized by our Board of Directors, the repurchase of stock. Management does not anticipate paying dividends on our common stock in
the foreseeable future. In addition, our credit facilities contain financial covenants that restrict our ability to pay cash dividends.
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Item 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
The following table presents a summary of our selected financial data for the fiscal years ended February 3, 2007, January 28, 2006, January 29, 2005, and January 31,
2004 and the calendar year ended December 31, 2002. In January 2003, we changed our fiscal year end to a retail fiscal year ending on the Saturday closest to January 31.
Fiscal 2006 included 53 weeks, commensurate with the retail calendar, while all other fiscal years reported in the table contain 52 weeks. The selected income statement and
balance sheet data have been derived from our consolidated financial statements that have been audited by our independent registered public accounting firm. This
information should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and related notes, "Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations" and our financial information found elsewhere in this report.
Comparable store net sales compare net sales for stores open throughout each of the two periods being compared, including expanded stores. Net sales per store and net
sales per selling square foot are calculated for stores open throughout the period presented.
Amounts in the following tables are in millions, except per share data, number of stores data, net sales per selling square foot data and inventory turns.
Years Ended

Income Statement Data:
Net sales
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Operating income
Net income

$

Margin Data (as a percentage of net sales):
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Operating income
Net income

February 3,

January 28,

January 29,

January 31

December 31,

2007

2006

2005

2004

2002

3,969.4 $
1,357.2
1,046.4
310.8
192.0

3,393.9 $
1,172.4
888.5
283.9
173.9

3,126.0 $
1,112.5
819.0
293.5
180.3

2,799.9 $
1,018.4
724.8
293.6
177.6

2,329.2
852.0
598.1
253.9
154.6

34.2%
26.4%
7.8%
4.8%

34.5%
26.2%
8.4%
5.1%

35.6%
26.2%
9.4%
5.8%

36.4%
25.9%
10.5%
6.3%

36.6%
25.7%
10.9%
6.6%

1.85 $
15.6%

1.60 $
1.3%

1.58 $
2.6%

1.54 $
14.1%

1.35
23.9%

Per Share Data:
Diluted net income per share
Diluted net income per share increase

$
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As of

Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents
and short-term investments
Working capital
Total assets
Total debt, including capital lease obligations
Shareholders' equity

$

February 3,

January 28,

January 29,

January 31

December 31,

2007

2006

2005

2004

2002

306.8 $
575.7
1,873.3
269.5
1,167.7

339.8
648.2
1,798.4
269.9
1,172.3

$

317.8 $
675.5
1,792.7
281.7
1,164.2

168.7 $
450.3
1,501.5
185.1
1,014.5

336.0
509.6
1,116.4
54.4
855.4

Years Ended
February
3,
2007
Selected Operating Data:
Number of stores open at end of period
Gross square footage at end of period
Selling square footage at end of period
Selling square footage annual growth
Net sales annual growth
Comparable store net sales increase (decrease)
Net sales per selling square foot
Net sales per store
Selected Financial Ratios:
Return on assets
Return on equity
Inventory turns

$
$

January 28,

January 29,

January 31

December 31,

2006

2005

2004

2002

3,219
33.3
26.3
14.3%
16.9%
4.6%
161 $
1.3 $

2,914
29.2
23.0
12.6%
8.6%
(0.8%)
156 $
1.2 $

2,735
25.9
20.4
21.1%
11.6%
0.5%
168 $
1.2 $

2,513
21.4
16.9
27.5%
18.7%
2.9%
187 $
1.2 $

2,263
16.5
13.0
28.8%
17.2%
1.0%
201
1.1

10.2%
16.4%
4.4

9.7%
14.9%
3.7

10.9%
16.5%
3.5

13.7%
19.0%
3.7

15.3%
20.5%
4.5
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Item 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
In Management’s Discussion and Analysis, we explain the general financial condition and the results of operations for our company, including:
·

what factors affect our business;

·

what our earnings, gross margins and costs were in 2006 and 2005;

·

why those earnings, gross margins and costs were different from the year before;

·

how all of this affects our overall financial condition;

·

what our expenditures for capital projects were in 2006 and what we expect them to be in 2007; and

·

where funds will come from to pay for future expenditures.

As you read Management’s Discussion and Analysis, please refer to our consolidated financial statements, included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K, which present the
results of operations for the fiscal years ended February 3, 2007, January 28, 2006 and January 29, 2005. In Management’s Discussion and Analysis, we analyze and explain
the annual changes in some specific line items in the consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year 2006 compared to the comparable fiscal year 2005 and the fiscal
year 2005 compared to the comparable fiscal year 2004.
Key Events and Recent Developments
Several key events have had or are expected to have a significant effect on our results of operations. You should keep in mind that:
·

·
·

·

·

In November 2006, our Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to $500 million of our common stock. This amount was in addition to
the $26.7 million remaining on the $300.0 million March 2005 authorization. As of February 3, 2007, we had approximately $427.0 million
remaining under this authorization.
In March 2006, we completed our acquisition of 138 Deal$ stores and related assets. We paid approximately $32.0 million for store related assets
and $22.1 million for inventory.
On December 15, 2005, the Compensation Committee of our Board of Directors approved the acceleration of the vesting date of all previously
issued, outstanding and unvested options under all current stock option plans, effective as of December 15, 2005. This decision eliminated noncash compensation expense that would have been recorded in future periods following our adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 123, Share-Based Payment (revised 2004) (FAS 123R), on January 29, 2006. Compensation expense has been reduced by
approximately $14.9 million over a period of four years during which the options would have vested, as a result of the option acceleration
program.
In 2004, we completed construction and began operations in two new distribution centers. In June 2004, we began operations in our new
distribution center in Joliet, Illinois. The Joliet distribution center is a 1.2 million square foot, fully automated facility. In February 2004, we began
operations in our Ridgefield, Washington distribution center. The Ridgefield distribution center is a 665,000 square foot facility that can be
expanded to accommodate future growth needs. In 2007, we are planning to expand our Briar Creek distribution center by 400,000 square feet.
Upon completion of this expansion, our nine distribution centers will support approximately $5.0 billion in sales annually.
In March 2004, we entered into a five-year $450.0 million Unsecured Revolving Credit Facility (Facility). We used availability under this Facility
to repay variable rate debt. This Facility also replaced our previous $150.0 million revolving credit facility.

Overview
Our net sales are derived from the sale of merchandise. Two major factors tend to affect our net sales trends. First is our success at opening new stores or adding new
stores through acquisitions. Second, sales vary at our existing stores from one year to the next. We refer to this change as a change in comparable store net sales, because we
compare only those stores that are open throughout both of the periods being compared. We include sales from stores expanded during the year in the calculation of
comparable store net sales, which has the effect of increasing our comparable store net sales. The term 'expanded' also includes stores that are relocated.
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At February 3, 2007, we operated 3,219 stores in 48 states, with 26.3 million selling square feet compared to 2,914 stores with 23.0 million selling square feet at
January 28, 2006. During fiscal 2006, we opened 211 stores, expanded 85 stores and closed 44 stores, compared to 232 new stores opened, 93 stores expanded and 53 stores
closed during fiscal 2005. In addition, we acquired 138 Deal$ stores on March 25, 2006. Including the Deal$ acquisition, we achieved the high end of our square footage
growth target of 12%-14% for the fiscal year. In fiscal 2006, we increased our selling square footage by approximately 3.3 million square feet, or approximately 14%. Of the
3.3 million selling square foot increase in 2006, approximately 1.2 million resulted from the acquisition of the Deal$ stores and 0.4 million was added by expanding existing
stores. The average size of our stores opened in 2006 was approximately 9,000 selling square feet (or about 11,000 gross square feet). The average new store size decreased
in 2006 from approximately 10,000 selling square feet (or about 12,400 gross square feet) for new stores in 2005. For 2007, we continue to plan to open stores around 9,000
selling square feet (or about 11,000 gross square feet). We believe that the 11,000-12,500 gross square foot store size is our optimal size operationally and that this size also
gives the customer an improved shopping environment that invites them to shop longer and buy more. We expect the substantial majority of our future net sales growth to
come from the square footage growth resulting from new store openings and expansion of existing stores.
Fiscal 2006 ended on February 3, 2007 and included 53 weeks, commensurate with the retail calendar. The 53rd week in 2006 added approximately $70 million in sales.
Fiscal 2005 ended on January 28, 2006 and included 52 weeks.
In fiscal 2006, comparable store net sales increased by 4.6%. This increase was based on 53 weeks for both periods. The comparable store net sales increase was the
result of increases of 1.9% in the number of transactions and 2.7% in transaction size, compared to fiscal 2005. We believe comparable store net sales were positively
affected by the initiatives we began putting in place in 2005, including expansion of forms of payment accepted by our stores and the roll-out of freezers and coolers to more
of our stores. During 2006, we completed the roll-out of debit card acceptance to all of our stores, which has enabled us to accept Electronic Benefit Transfer cards and we
now accept food stamps in approximately 600 qualified stores. We believe the expansion of forms of payment accepted by our stores has helped increase the average
transaction size in our stores.
In 2006, we continued to experience a slight shift in the mix of merchandise sold to more consumables, which we believe increases the traffic in our stores but have
lower margin. The planned shift in mix to more consumables is the result of the roll-out of freezers and coolers to more stores in 2005 and 2006. At February 3, 2007, we had
freezers and coolers in approximately 700 stores, compared to approximately 250 stores at January 28, 2006. We plan to add freezers and coolers to approximately 250
more stores in 2007, which we believe will continue to pressure margins, as a percentage of sales, in 2007. However, we believe that this will enable us to increase sales and
earnings in the future by increasing the number of shopping trips made by our customers.
Our point-of-sale technology is now in all of our stores, and this technology provides us with valuable sales and inventory information to assist our buyers and improve
our merchandise allocation to our stores. We believe that this has enabled us to better control our inventory, resulting in more efficient distribution and store operations and
increased inventory turnover. Using the data captured at the point of sale has enabled us to better plan our inventory purchases and helped us reduce our inventory
investment per store by approximately 5.0% at February 3, 2007 compared to January 28, 2006. In addition, inventory turnover has increased 70 basis points in 2006 as
compared to 2005.
We must continue to control our merchandise costs, inventory levels and our general and administrative expenses. Increases in these expenses could negatively impact
our operating results.
Our plans for fiscal 2007 anticipate comparable store net sales increases of approximately 1% to 3% yielding net sales in the $4.22 billion to $4.33 billion range and
diluted earnings per share of $1.96 to $2.10. This guidance for 2007 is predicated on selling square footage growth of approximately 10%.
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On March 25, 2006, we completed our acquisition of 138 Deal$ stores. These stores are located primarily in the Midwest part of the United States and we have
existing logistics capacity to service these stores. This acquisition also included a few “combo” stores that offer an expanded assortment of merchandise including
items that sell for more than $1. Substantially all Deal$ stores acquired continue to operate under the Deal$ banner while providing us an opportunity to leverage our
Dollar Tree infrastructure in the testing of new merchandise concepts, including higher price points, without disrupting the single-price point model in our Dollar Tree
stores. At February 3, 2007, 121 of these stores were selling items priced at over $1.00.
We paid approximately $32.0 million for store-related and other assets and $22.1 million for inventory. The results of Deal$ store operations are included in our
financial statements since the acquisition date and did not have a significant impact on our operating results through February 3, 2007. This acquisition is immaterial
to our operations as a whole and therefore no proforma disclosure of financial information has been presented.
Results of Operations
The following table expresses items from our consolidated statements of operations, as a percentage of net sales:
Year Ended
February 3,

Year Ended
January 28,

Year Ended
January 29,

2007

2006

2005

Net sales
Cost of sales

100.0%
65.8%

100.0%
65.5%

100.0%
64.4%

Gross profit

34.2%

34.5%

35.6%

26.4%

26.2%

26.2%

7.8%

8.3%

9.4%

0.2%
(0.4%)

0.2%
(0.4%)

0.1%
(0.3%)

Income before income
taxes

7.6%

8.1%

9.2%

Provision for income
taxes

(2.8%)

(3.0%)

(3.4%)

4.8%

5.1%

5.8%

Selling, general and
administrative
expenses
Operating income
Interest income
Interest expense

Net income

Fiscal year ended February 3, 2007 compared to fiscal year ended January 28, 2006
Net Sales. Net sales increased 16.9%, or $575.5 million, in 2006 compared to 2005, resulting from sales in our new and expanded stores, including 138 Deal$ stores
acquired in March 2006 and the 53 weeks of sales in 2006 versus 52 weeks in 2005, which accounted for approximately $70 million of the increase. Our sales increase was
also impacted by a 4.6% increase in comparable store net sales for the year. This increase is based on a 53-week comparison for both periods. Comparable store net sales
are positively affected by our expanded and relocated stores, which we include in the calculation, and, to a lesser extent, are negatively affected when we open new stores
or expand stores near existing ones.
The following table summarizes the components of the changes in our store count for fiscal years ended February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006.
February 3, 2007

January 28, 2006

New stores
Deal$ acquisition
Acquired leases
Expanded or relocated stores

190
138
21
85

197
-35
93

Closed stores

(44)

(53)
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Of the 3.3 million selling square foot increase in 2006, approximately 1.2 million resulted from the acquisition of the Deal$ stores and 0.4 million was added by
expanding existing stores.
Gross Profit. Gross profit margin decreased to 34.2% in 2006 compared to 34.5% in 2005. The decrease was primarily due to a 35 basis point increase in merchandise
cost, including inbound freight. This increase in merchandise cost was due to a slight shift in mix to more consumables, which have a lower margin, higher cost
merchandise at our Deal$ stores and increased inbound domestic freight costs.
Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses, as a percentage of net sales, increased to 26.4% for 2006 as compared to
26.2% for 2005. The increase is primarily due to the following:
·

·

Payroll and benefit related costs increased 35 basis points due to increased incentive compensation costs resulting from better overall company
performance in the current year as compared to the prior year and increased stock compensation expense, partially offset by lower workers'
compensation costs in the current year.
Operating and corporate expenses decreased 10 basis points primarily as the result of payments received for early lease terminations in the
current year.

Operating Income. Due to the reasons discussed above, operating income margin decreased to 7.8% in 2006 compared to 8.4% in 2005.
Income Taxes. Our effective tax rate was 36.6% in 2006 compared to 36.8% in 2005. The decreased tax rate for 2006 was due primarily to increased tax-exempt
interest on certain of our investments in the current year.
Fiscal year ended January 28, 2006 compared to fiscal year ended January 29, 2005
Net Sales. Net sales increased 8.6% in 2005 compared to 2004. We attribute this $267.9 million increase in net sales primarily to new stores in 2005 and 2004 (which
are not included in our comparable store net sales calculation) partially offset by a slight decrease in comparable store net sales of 0.8% in 2005. Our comparable store net
sales are positively affected by our expanded and relocated stores, which we include in the calculation, and, to a lesser extent, are negatively affected when we open new
stores or expand stores near existing stores.
The following table summarizes the components of the changes in our store count for fiscal years ended January 28, 2006 and January 29, 2005.
January 28, 2006

January 29, 2005

New stores
Acquired leases
Expanded or relocated stores

197
35
93

209
42
129

Closed stores

(53)

(29)

Of the 2.6 million selling square foot increase in 2005, approximately 0.5 million in selling square feet was added by expanding existing stores.
Gross Profit. Gross profit margin decreased to 34.5% in 2005 compared to 35.6% in 2004. The decrease is primarily due to the following:
·
·

Merchandise cost, including inbound freight, increased approximately 55 basis points, due to a slight shift in mix to more consumables, which
have a lower margin and increased inbound freight costs due to higher fuel costs.
Occupancy costs increased approximately 45 basis points due primarily to deleveraging associated with the negative comparable store net sales
for the year.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses, as a percentage of net sales, were 26.2% for 2005 and 2004. However,
several components had increases or decreases as noted below:
·

·
·
·

Operating and corporate expenses decreased approximately 25 basis points primarily due to decreased store supplies expense as a result of better
pricing, decreased professional fees and the receipt of insurance proceeds resulting from a fire at one of our locations, partially offset by
increased interchange fees resulting from the rollout of debit card acceptance in 2005.
Payroll related costs decreased approximately 10 basis points due to a reduction in incentive compensation accruals that are based on lower than
budgeted 2005 earnings and lower workers’ compensation and health care claims in the current year.
These decreases were partially offset by an approximate 25 basis point increase in store operating costs primarily due to higher utility costs due
to higher rates and consumption in the current year.
Depreciation expense for stores also increased 10 basis points primarily due to the deleveraging associated with negative comparable store net
sales for the current year.
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Operating Income. Due to the reasons discussed above, operating income margin decreased to 8.3% in 2005 compared to 9.4% for 2004.
Interest Income. Interest income increased $2.2 million in 2005 compared to 2004 because of higher investment balances in the current year and increased
interest rates.
Interest Expense. Interest expense increased $4.8 million in 2005 as compared to 2004. This increase is primarily due to increased rates on our revolver in the
current year.
Income Taxes. Our effective tax rate was 36.8% in 2005 compared to 37.5% in 2004. The decreased tax rate for 2005 was due primarily to the resolution of tax
uncertainties in the current year and increased tax-exempt interest on certain of our investments.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
Our business requires capital to build and open new stores, expand our distribution network and operate existing stores. Our working capital requirements for existing
stores are seasonal and usually reach their peak in September and October. Historically, we have satisfied our seasonal working capital requirements for existing stores and
have funded our store opening and distribution network expansion programs from internally generated funds and borrowings under our credit facilities.
The following table compares cash-related information for the years ended February 3, 2007, January 28, 2006, and January 29, 2005:

(in millions)
Net cash provided by
(used in):
Operating activities
Investing activities
Financing activities

Year Ended
February 3,
2007

$

Year Ended
January 28,
2006

412.8
(190.7)
(202.9)

$

365.1
(235.5)
(170.3)

Year Ended
January 29,
2005

$

276.5
(315.4)
61.2

The $47.7 million increase in cash provided by operating activities in 2006 was primarily due to increased earnings before depreciation in the current year and better
payables management in the current year, partially offset by approximately $20.0 million of rent payments for February 2007 made prior to the end of fiscal 2006.
The $44.8 million decrease in cash used in investing activities in 2006 compared to 2005 was the result of a $114.9 million increase in net proceeds from short-term
investments which were used to help fund stock repurchases and the Deal$ acquisition in the current year. In the current year, we purchased an additional $9.3 million of
investments in a restricted account to collateralize certain long-term insurance obligations. Additional uses of cash for investing activities consisted of $54.1 million for the
Deal$ acquisition in the current year and an increase of $36.1 million in capital expenditures due primarily to new store growth and the installation of freezers and coolers
to certain stores in the current year.
The $32.6 million increase in cash used in financing activities in 2006 compared to 2005 primarily resulted from $248.2 million in stock repurchases in the
current year compared to $180.4 million in the prior year. This increase was partially offset by increased proceeds from stock option exercises in the current year
resulting from our higher stock prices in 2006 as compared to 2005.
The $88.6 million increase in cash provided by operating activities in 2005 was primarily due to an approximate 12% decrease in inventory per store at January 28,
2006 compared to January 29, 2005. The inventory per store decrease is the result of an initiative to lower backroom inventory levels and increase inventory turns through
a reduction in 2005 purchases. The aforementioned net cash provided by operating activities was partially offset by a decrease in deferred tax liabilities chiefly as a result
of the elimination of bonus depreciation.
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The $79.9 million decrease in cash used in investing activities in 2005 compared to 2004 was the result of a $34.2 million decrease in net purchases of investments
resulting from more cash used to repurchase stock in the current year. The net purchases of investments in 2005 include $29.9 million of investments that are in a restricted
account to collateralize certain long-term insurance obligations. These investments replaced higher cost stand-by letters of credit and surety bonds. Capital expenditures
also decreased $42.5 million in 2005 after two distribution center projects and point-of-sale installations were completed in 2004.
The $231.5 million change in cash used in financing activities in 2005 compared to 2004 primarily resulted from $180.4 million in stock repurchases in 2005
compared to $48.6 million in 2004. Also in 2004, we entered into a five-year $450.0 million Revolving Credit Facility, under which we received net proceeds of $248.9
million. We used a portion of these proceeds to repay $142.6 million of variable rate debt for our distribution centers and invested the balance in short-term tax exempt
municipal bonds.
At February 3, 2007, our long-term borrowings were $268.8 million and our capital lease commitments were $0.7 million. We also have $125.0 million and $50.0
million Letter of Credit Reimbursement and Security Agreements, under which approximately $84.8 million were committed to letters of credit issued for routine
purchases of imported merchandise at February 3, 2007.
In March 2005, our Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to $300.0 million of our common stock through March 2008. During fiscal 2006, we
repurchased 5,650,871 shares for approximately $148.2 million under the March 2005 authorization.
In November 2006, our Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to $500.0 million of our common stock. This amount was in addition to the $27.0
million remaining on the March 2005 authorization. In December 2006, we entered into two agreements with a third party to repurchase approximately $100.0
million of the Company’s common shares under an Accelerated Share Repurchase Agreement (ASR).
The first $50.0 million was executed in an “uncollared” agreement. In this transaction, we initially received 1,656,178 shares based on the market price of our
stock of $30.19 as of the trade date (December 8, 2006). A weighted average price was calculated using stock prices from December 16, 2006 - March 8, 2007. This
represents the calculation period and based on the weighted average price during this period, a settlement took place in March 2007 resulting in additional funding
of $3.3 million.
The remaining $50.0 million relates to a “collared” agreement in which we initially received 1,500,703 shares representing the minimum number of shares
under the agreement. The maximum number of shares that can be repurchased under the agreement is 1,693,101. The number of shares was determined based on the
weighted average market price of our common stock during the same calculation period as defined in the “uncollared” agreement. The weighted average market
price as of February 3, 2007 as defined in the “collared” agreement was $30.80. Therefore, as of February 3, 2007, we would receive an additional 122,742 shares
under the “collared” agreement. Based on the applicable accounting literature, these additional shares were not included in the weighted average diluted earnings
per share calculation because their effect would be antidilutive. The weighted average stock price of our common stock as defined in the “collared” agreement as of
March 8, 2007 (termination date) was $31.97. We received an additional 63,325 shares on March 8, 2007 under this agreement.
On March 29, 2007, we entered into an agreement with a third party to repurchase approximately $150.0 million of our common shares under another ASR.
The entire $150.0 million was executed under a "collared" agreement. Within two weeks of the March 29, 2007 execution date, we will receive the minimum
number of shares. Up to four months after the initial execution date, we will receive additional shares from the third party depending on the volume weighted
average price of our common shares during that period, subject to the maximum share delivery provisions of the agreement.
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Funding Requirements
Overview
We expect our cash needs for opening new stores and expanding existing stores in fiscal 2007 to total approximately $160.7 million, which includes capital
expenditures, initial inventory and pre-opening costs. Our estimated capital expenditures for fiscal 2007 are between $170.0 and $190.0 million, including planned
expenditures for our new and expanded stores, the addition of freezers and coolers to approximately 250 stores, an expansion of the Briar Creek Distribution Center and an
expansion to our home office and data center in Chesapeake, Va. We believe that we can adequately fund our working capital requirements and planned capital
expenditures for the next few years from net cash provided by operations and potential borrowings under our existing credit facilities.
The following tables summarize our material contractual obligations, including both on- and off-balance sheet arrangements, and our commitments, excluding interest
on long-term borrowings (in millions):
Contractual
Obligations
Lease
Financing
Operating
lease
obligations
Capital
lease
obligations

Total

$

1,177.0

Long-term
Borrowings
Revolving
credit
facility
Revenue
bond
financing
Total
obligations

$

$

$

284.2

$

2009

246.0

$

2010

207.2

$

2011

161.5

$

Thereafter

110.6

$

167.5

0.4

0.3

0.1

--

--

--

250.0

--

--

250.0

--

--

--

18.8

18.8

--

--

--

--

--

$

Total

$

2008

0.8

1,446.6

Commitments
Letters of
credit and
surety bonds
Freight
contracts
Technology
assets
Total
commitments

2007

116.3

303.4

Expiring
in 2007

$

115.6

$

246.3

$

457.3

$

161.5

$

110.6

$

167.5

Expiring
in 2008

Expiring
in 2009

Expiring
in 2010

Expiring
in 2011

Thereafter

$

$

$

$

$

0.7

--

--

--

--

57.1

38.6

9.9

8.6

--

--

--

3.8

3.8

--

--

--

--

--

177.2

$

158.0

$

10.6

$

8.6

$

--

$

--

$

--

Lease Financing
Operating Lease Obligations. Our operating lease obligations are primarily for payments under noncancelable store leases. The commitment includes amounts for
leases that were signed prior to February 3, 2007 for stores that were not yet open on February 3, 2007.
Capital Lease Obligations. Our capital lease obligations are primarily for payments for distribution center equipment and computer equipment at the store support
center.
Long-Term Borrowings
Revolving Credit Facility. In March 2004, we entered into a five-year Revolving Credit Facility (the Facility). The Facility provides for a $450.0 million line of credit,
including up to $50.0 million in available letters of credit. Interest is assessed under the line based on matrix pricing which currently approximates LIBOR, plus 0.475%.
The Facility, among other things, requires the maintenance of certain specified financial ratios, restricts the payment of certain distributions and prohibits the incurrence of
certain new indebtedness. We used availability under this Facility to repay the $142.6 million of variable-rate debt and to purchase short-term investments. As of February
3, 2007, we had $250.0 million outstanding on this Facility.
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Revenue Bond Financing. In May 1998, we entered into an agreement with the Mississippi Business Finance Corporation under which it issued $19.0 million of
variable-rate demand revenue bonds. We used the proceeds from the bonds to finance the acquisition, construction and installation of land, buildings, machinery and
equipment for our distribution facility in Olive Branch, Mississippi. At February 3, 2007, the balance outstanding on the bonds was $18.8 million. These bonds are due to
be fully repaid in June 2018. The bonds do not have a prepayment penalty as long as the interest rate remains variable. The bonds contain a demand provision and,
therefore, outstanding amounts are classified as current liabilities. We pay interest monthly based on a variable interest rate, which was 5.4% at February 3, 2007.
Commitments
Letters of Credit and Surety Bonds. In March 2001, we entered into a Letter of Credit Reimbursement and Security Agreement, which provides $125.0 million for
letters of credit. In December 2004, we entered into an additional Letter of Credit Reimbursement and Security Agreement, which provides $50.0 million for letters of
credit. Letters of credit are generally issued for the routine purchase of imported merchandise and we had approximately $84.8 million of purchases committed under these
letters of credit at February 3, 2007. We also have approximately $31.5 million of letters of credit or surety bonds outstanding for our insurance programs and certain
utility payment obligations at some of our stores.
Freight Contracts. We have contracted outbound freight services from various carriers with contracts expiring through April 2009. The total amount of these
commitments is approximately $57.1 million.
Technology Assets. We have commitments totaling approximately $3.8 million to primarily purchase store technology assets for our stores during 2007.
Derivative Financial Instruments
We are party to one interest rate swap, which allows us to manage the risk associated with interest rate fluctuations on the demand revenue bonds. The swap is based
on a notional amount of $18.8 million. Under the $18.8 million agreement, as amended, we pay interest to the bank that provided the swap at a fixed rate. In exchange, the
financial institution pays us at a variable-interest rate, which is similar to the rate on the demand revenue bonds. The variable-interest rate on the interest rate swap is set
monthly. No payments are made by either party under the swap for monthly periods with an established interest rate greater than a predetermined rate (the knock-out rate).
The swap may be canceled by the bank or us and settled for the fair value of the swap as determined by market rates and expires in 2009.
Because of the knock-out provision in the $18.8 million swap, changes in the fair value of that swap are recorded in earnings. For more information on the interest rate
swaps, see "Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk - Interest Rate Risk."
Critical Accounting Policies
The preparation of financial statements requires the use of estimates. Certain of our estimates require a high level of judgment and have the potential to have a
material effect on the financial statements if actual results vary significantly from those estimates. Following is a discussion of the estimates that we consider critical.
Inventory Valuation
As discussed in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, inventories at the distribution centers are stated at the lower of cost or market with cost determined
on a weighted-average basis. Cost is assigned to store inventories using the retail inventory method on a weighted-average basis. Under the retail inventory method, the
valuation of inventories at cost and the resulting gross margins are computed by applying a calculated cost-to-retail ratio to the retail value of inventories. The retail
inventory method is an averaging method that has been widely used in the retail industry and results in valuing inventories at lower of cost or market when markdowns are
taken as a reduction of the retail value of inventories on a timely basis.
Inventory valuation methods require certain significant management estimates and judgments, including estimates of future merchandise markdowns and shrink,
which significantly affect the ending inventory valuation at cost as well as the resulting gross margins. The averaging required in applying the retail inventory method and
the estimates of shrink and markdowns could, under certain circumstances, result in costs not being recorded in the proper period.
We estimate our markdown reserve based on the consideration of a variety of factors, including, but not limited to, quantities of slow moving or seasonal, carryover
merchandise on hand, historical markdown statistics and future merchandising plans. The accuracy of our estimates can be affected by many factors, some of which are
outside of our control, including changes in economic conditions and consumer buying trends. Historically, we have not experienced significant differences in our
estimated reserve for markdowns compared with actual results.
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Our accrual for shrink is based on the actual, historical shrink results of our most recent physical inventories adjusted, if necessary, for current economic conditions.
These estimates are compared to actual results as physical inventory counts are taken and reconciled to the general ledger. Our physical inventory counts are generally
taken between January and September of each year; therefore, the shrink accrual recorded at February 3, 2007 is based on estimated shrink for most of 2006, including the
fourth quarter. We have not experienced significant fluctuations in historical shrink rates beyond 10 to 15 basis points in our Dollar Tree stores for the last two years.
However, we have sometimes experienced higher than typical shrink in acquired stores in the year following an acquisition. We periodically adjust our shrink estimates to
address these factors as they become apparent.
Our management believes that our application of the retail inventory method results in an inventory valuation that reasonably approximates cost and results in
carrying inventory at the lower of cost or market each year on a consistent basis.
Accrued Expenses
On a monthly basis, we estimate certain expenses in an effort to record those expenses in the period incurred. Our most material estimates include domestic freight
expenses, self-insurance programs, store-level operating expenses, such as property taxes and utilities, and certain other expenses. Our freight and store-level operating
expenses are estimated based on current activity and historical trends and results. Our workers' compensation and general liability insurance accruals are recorded based on
actuarial valuations which are adjusted annually based on a review performed by a third-party actuary. These actuarial valuations are estimates based on historical loss
development factors. Certain other expenses are estimated and recorded in the periods that management becomes aware of them. The related accruals are adjusted as
management’s estimates change. Differences in management's estimates and assumptions could result in an accrual materially different from the calculated accrual. Our
experience has been that some of our estimates are too high and others are too low. Historically, the net total of these differences has not had a material effect on our
financial condition or results of operations.
Income Taxes
On a quarterly basis, we estimate our required income tax liability and assess the recoverability of our deferred tax assets. Our income taxes payable are estimated
based on enacted tax rates, including estimated tax rates in states where our store base is growing applied to the income expected to be taxed currently. The current tax
liability also includes a liability for resolution of tax uncertainties. Management assesses the recoverability of deferred tax assets based on the availability of carrybacks of
future deductible amounts and management’s projections for future taxable income. We cannot guarantee that we will generate taxable income in future years.
Historically, we have not experienced significant differences in our estimates of our tax accrual. In 2006 and 2005, we recognized approximately $0.7 million and $1.5
million, respectively, of tax benefits related to the resolution of tax uncertainties in certain states.
Seasonality and Quarterly Fluctuations
We experience seasonal fluctuations in our net sales, comparable store net sales, operating income and net income and expect this trend to continue. Our results of
operations may also fluctuate significantly as a result of a variety of factors, including:
·

shifts in the timing of certain holidays, especially Easter;

·

the timing of new store openings;

·

the net sales contributed by new stores;

·

changes in our merchandise mix; and

·

competition.

Our highest sales periods are the Christmas and Easter seasons. Easter was observed on March 27, 2005, April 16, 2006 and will be observed on April 8, 2007. We
generally realize a disproportionate amount of our net sales and of our operating and net income during the fourth quarter. In anticipation of increased sales activity during
these months, we purchase substantial amounts of inventory and hire a significant number of temporary employees to supplement our continuing store staff. Our operating
results, particularly operating and net income, could suffer if our net sales were below seasonal norms during the fourth quarter or during the Easter season for any reason,
including merchandise delivery delays due to receiving or distribution problems or consumer sentiment. Fiscal 2006 consisted of 53 weeks, commensurate with the retail
calendar. This extra week contributed approximately $70.0 million of sales in 2006. Fiscal 2007 will consist of 52 weeks.
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Our unaudited results of operations for the eight most recent quarters are shown in a table in Footnote 12 of the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this
Form 10-K.
Inflation and Other Economic Factors
Our ability to provide quality merchandise at a fixed price and on a profitable basis may be subject to economic factors and influences that we cannot control.
Consumer spending could decline because of economic pressures, including rising fuel prices. Reductions in consumer confidence and spending could have an adverse
effect on our sales. National or international events, including war or terrorism, could lead to disruptions in economies in the United States or in foreign countries where
we purchase some of our merchandise. These and other factors could increase our merchandise costs and other costs that are critical to our operations, such as shipping
and wage rates.
Shipping Costs. Currently, trans-Pacific shipping rates are negotiated with individual freight lines and are subject to fluctuation based on supply and demand for
containers and current fuel costs. As a result, our trans-Pacific shipping costs in fiscal 2007 may increase compared with fiscal 2006 when we renegotiate our import
shipping rates effective May 2007. We can give no assurances as to the amount of the increase, as we are in the early stages of our negotiations.
Minimum Wage. Although our average hourly wage rate is significantly higher than the federal minimum wage, an increase in the mandated minimum wage
could increase our payroll costs. In early 2007, proposals increasing the federal minimum wage to $7.25 per hour over a three-year period have passed both houses of
Congress. If the federal minimum wage were to increase over the next three years to $7.25 per hour, we believe that it would not have a material effect on our annual
payroll expenses.
New Accounting Pronouncements
In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued FASB Interpretation No. 48 ("FIN 48"), Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes -- an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise's financial statements in accordance
with FASB Statement No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition
and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties,
accounting in interim periods, disclosures, and transition. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. We do not expect that the adoption of
FIN 48 will have a material impact on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
Item 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
We are exposed to various types of market risk in the normal course of our business, including the impact of interest rate changes and foreign currency rate
fluctuations. We may enter into interest rate swaps to manage exposure to interest rate changes, and we may employ other risk management strategies, including the use of
foreign currency forward contracts. We do not enter into derivative instruments for any purpose other than cash flow hedging purposes and we do not hold derivative
instruments for trading purposes.
Interest Rate Risk
We use variable-rate debt to finance certain of our operations and capital improvements. These obligations expose us to variability in interest payments due to changes
in interest rates. If interest rates increase, interest expense increases. Conversely, if interest rates decrease, interest expense also decreases. We believe it is beneficial to
limit the variability of our interest payments.
To meet this objective, we entered into a derivative instrument in the form of an interest rate swap to manage fluctuations in cash flows resulting from changes in the
variable-interest rates on the Demand Revenue Bonds. The interest rate swap reduces the interest rate exposure on this variable-rate obligation. Under the interest rate
swap, we pay the bank at a fixed-rate and receive variable-interest at a rate approximating the variable-rate on the obligation, thereby creating the economic equivalent of
a fixed-rate obligation. Under the swap, no payments are made by parties under the swap for monthly periods in which the variable-interest rate is greater than the
predetermined knock-out rate.
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The following table summarizes the financial terms of our interest rate swap agreement and the fair value of the interest rate swap at February 3, 2007:
Hedging
Instrument
$18.8 million
interest rate swap

Receive
Variable

Pay
Fixed

Knock-out
Rate

Expiration

Fair
Value

LIBOR

4.88%

7.75%

4/1/09

--

At February 3, 2007, the fair value of this interest rate swap is less than $0.1 million. Hypothetically, a 1% change in interest rates results in approximately a $0.2
million change in the amount paid or received under the terms of the interest rate swap agreement on an annual basis. Due to many factors, management is not able to
predict the changes in fair value of our interest rate swap. The fair values are the estimated amounts we would pay or receive to terminate the agreement as of the reporting
date. These fair values are obtained from an outside financial institution.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Dollar Tree Stores, Inc.:
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Dollar Tree Stores, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) as of February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006,
and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the fiscal years in the three-year period
ended February 3, 2007. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of February 3, 2007
and January 28, 2006, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the fiscal years in the three-year period ended February 3, 2007, in conformity
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
As discussed in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, effective January 29, 2006, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123
(revised 2004), Share-Based Payment.
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting as of February 3, 2007, based on the criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework, issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated April 2, 2007, expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of,
and the effective operation of, internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ KPMG LLP
Norfolk, Virginia
April 2, 2007
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DOLLAR TREE STORES, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended
February 3,
2007

(In millions, except per share data)
Net sales
Cost of sales (Note 4)

$

Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative
expenses (Notes 8 and 9)
Operating income
Interest income
Interest expense (Notes 5 and 6)
Income before income taxes
Provision for income taxes (Note 3)

3,969.4
2,612.2

Year Ended
January 28,
2006
$

3,393.9
2,221.5

Year Ended
January 29,
2005
$

3,126.0
2,013.5

1,357.2

1,172.4

1,112.5

1,046.4

888.5

819.0

310.8

283.9

293.5

8.6
(16.5)

6.8
(15.5)

302.9

275.2

288.2

110.9

101.3

107.9

173.9 $

180.3

3.9
(9.2)

Net income

$

192.0

$

Basic net income per share (Note 7)

$

1.86

$

1.61

$

1.59

Diluted net income per share (Note 7)

$

1.85

$

1.60

$

1.58

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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DOLLAR TREE STORES, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
February 3,
2007

(In millions, except share data)
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Merchandise inventories
Deferred tax assets (Note 3)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets

$

Total current assets
Property, plant and equipment, net (Note 2)
Intangibles, net (Notes 2 and 10)
Other assets, net (Notes 2, 8 and 11)
TOTAL ASSETS

$

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 5)
Accounts payable
Other current liabilities (Note 2)
Income taxes payable

$

Total current liabilities
Long-term debt, excluding current portion (Note 5)
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 3)
Other liabilities (Notes 6 and 8)
Total liabilities
Shareholders' equity (Notes 6, 7 and 9):
Common stock, par value $0.01. 300,000,000 shares
authorized, 99,663,580 and 106,552,054 shares
issued and outstanding at February 3, 2007
and January 28, 2006, respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
Retained earnings
Total shareholders' equity
Commitments, contingencies snd subsequent event (Notes 4 and 12)

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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$

January 28,
2006

85.0 $
221.8
605.0
10.7
36.5

65.8
274.0
576.6
10.8
16.5

959.0

943.7

715.3
146.6
52.4

681.8
129.3
43.6

1,873.3

$

1,798.4

18.8 $
189.2
132.0
43.3

19.0
135.6
99.2
41.7

383.3

295.5

250.0
1.5
70.8

250.0
23.5
57.1

705.6

626.1

1.0
0.1
1,166.6

1.1
11.4
0.1
1,159.7

1,167.7

1,172.3

-

-

1,873.3

$

1,798.4

DOLLAR TREE STORES, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 3, 2007, JANUARY 28, 2006 AND JANUARY 29, 2005
Accumulated
Common
Additional
Other
ShareStock Common Paid-in Comprehensive Unearned
Retained holders'
Shares
Stock
Capital
Income (Loss) Compensation Earnings Equity

(in millions)
Balance at January 31, 2004

114.1 $

Net income for the year ended
January 29, 2005
Other comprehensive income (Note 7)
Total comprehensive income
Issuance of stock under Employee Stock
Purchase Plan (Note 9)
Exercise of stock options, including
income tax benefit of $2.1 (Note 9)
Repurchase and retirement of shares (Note 7)
Restricted stock amortization (Note 9)
Balance at January 29, 2005
Net income for the year ended
January 28, 2006
Other comprehensive income (Note 7)
Total comprehensive income
Issuance of stock under Employee Stock
Purchase Plan (Note 9)
Exercise of stock options, including
income tax benefit of $1.2 (Note 9)
Repurchase and retirement of shares (Note 7)
Stock-based compensation (Notes 1 and 9)
Balance at January 28, 2006
Net income for the year ended
February 3, 2007
Other comprehensive income (Note 7)

1.1 $

-

-

208.9 $

-

(0.9) $

0.6

(0.1) $

-

805.5 $ 1,014.5

180.3
-

180.9
0.1

-

3.3

-

-

-

3.3

0.6
(1.8)
-

-

14.0
(48.6)
0.1

-

-

-

14.0
(48.6)
0.1

985.8

1,164.2

173.9
-

173.9
0.4

113.0

1.1

177.7

-

-

-

(0.3)

0.4

(0.1)

-

174.3
0.1

-

0.4
(7.0)
-

-

3.0
8.8
(180.3)
2.2

-

-

-

-

0.1

-

8.8
(180.3)
2.3

3.0

106.5

1.1

11.4

0.1

-

1,159.7

1,172.3

-

-

-

-

-

192.0
-

192.0
-

Total comprehensive income

192.0

Issuance of stock under Employee Stock
Purchase Plan (Note 9)
Exercise of stock options, including
income tax benefit of $5.6 (Note 9)
Repurchase and retirement of shares (Note 7)
Stock-based compensation, net (Notes 1 and 9)
Balance at February 3, 2007

180.3
0.6

0.1
1.7
(8.8)
0.1
99.6 $

(0.1)
1.0 $

2.8

-

-

43.1
(63.0)
5.7

-

-

- $

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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0.1 $

(185.1)
-

2.8
43.1
(248.2)
5.7

- $ 1,166.6 $ 1,167.7

DOLLAR TREE STORES, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Year Ended
February 3,
2007

(In millions)
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for deferred income taxes
Tax benefit of stock option exercises
Stock based compensation expense
Other non-cash adjustments to net income
Changes in assets and liabilities increasing
(decreasing) cash and cash equivalents:
Merchandise inventories
Other assets
Accounts payable
Income taxes payable
Other current liabilities
Other liabilities

$

Net cash provided by operating activities

192.0

Year Ended
January 28,
2006
$

Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from long-term debt, net of
facility fees of $1.1
Principal payments under long-term debt and capital lease obligations
Payments for share repurchases
Proceeds from stock issued pursuant to stock-based
compensation plans
Tax benefit of stock options exercised
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

$

180.3

159.0
(21.9)
6.7
5.1

140.7
(21.5)
1.2
2.4
5.6

129.3
15.6
2.1
3.9

(6.2)
(19.8)
53.7
1.6
31.8
10.8

38.9
(5.5)
11.4
8.0
(6.4)
16.4

(89.8)
0.5
9.2
(3.4)
15.3
13.5

412.8

Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures
Purchase of short-term investments
Proceeds from sales of short-term investments
Purchase of Deal$ assets, net of cash acquired of $0.3
Acquisition of favorable lease rights
Purchase of restricted investments

173.9

Year Ended
January 29,
2005

365.1

276.5

(175.3)
(1,044.4)
1,096.6
(54.1)
(4.2)
(9.3)

(139.2)
(885.5)
822.8
(3.7)
(29.9)

(181.8)
(465.8)
339.0
(6.8)
-

(190.7)

(235.5)

(315.4)

(0.6)
(248.2)

(0.6)
(180.4)

248.9
(154.2)
(48.6)

40.3
5.6

10.7
-

15.1
-

(202.9)

(170.3)

61.2

19.2
65.8

(40.7)
106.5

22.3
84.2

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

$

85.0

$

65.8

$

106.5

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid for:
Interest, net of amount capitalized
Income taxes

$
$

14.9
125.5

$
$

11.8
113.9

$
$

8.1
93.4

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing and financing activities:
The Company purchased equipment under capital lease obligations amounting to $0.1 million, $0.4 million and $0.4 million in the years ended February 3, 2007,
January 28, 2006, and January 29, 2005, respectively.
See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

34

DOLLAR TREE STORES, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Description of Business
At February 3, 2007, Dollar Tree Stores, Inc. (DTS or the Company) owned and operated 3,219 discount variety retail stores. Approximately 3,100 of these
stores sell substantially all items for $1.00 or less. The remaining stores were acquired as apart of the Deal$ acquisition and these stores sell many items for $1.00 or
less but also sell items at prices greater than $1.00. The Company's stores operate under the names of Dollar Tree, Deal$, Dollar Bills and Dollar Express. Our stores
average approximately 8,200 selling square feet.
The Company's headquarters and one of its distribution centers are located in Chesapeake, Virginia. The Company also operates distribution centers in
Mississippi, Illinois, California, Pennsylvania, Georgia, Oklahoma, Utah and Washington. The Company's stores are located in all 48 contiguous states. The
Company's merchandise includes food, health and beauty care, party goods, candy, toys, stationery, seasonal goods, gifts and other consumer items. Approximately
35% to 40% of the Company's merchandise is imported, primarily from China.
Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Dollar Tree Stores, Inc., and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All significant
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
Fiscal Year
The Company's fiscal year ends on the Saturday closest to January 31. Any reference herein to “2006” or “Fiscal 2006,” “2005” or “Fiscal 2005,” and “2004”
or “Fiscal 2004” relates to as of or for the years ended February 3, 2007, January 28, 2006, and January 29, 2005, respectively. Fiscal year 2006 consisted of 53
weeks, while 2005 and 2004 both consisted of 52 weeks.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Reclassifications
Certain 2005 and 2004 amounts have been reclassified for comparability with the current period presentation.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006 includes $40.3 million and $31.4 million, respectively, of investments in money market
securities and bank participation agreements which are valued at cost, which approximates market. The underlying assets of these short-term participation
agreements are primarily commercial notes. For purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, the Company considers all highly liquid debt instruments
with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The majority of payments due from financial institutions for the settlement of debit card and
credit card transactions process within three business days, and therefore are classified as cash and cash equivalents.
Short-Term Investments
The Company’s short-term investments consist primarily of government-sponsored municipal bonds and auction rate securities. These investments are
classified as available for sale and are recorded at fair value, which approximates cost. The government-sponsored municipal bonds can be converted into cash
depending on terms of the underlying agreement. The auction rate securities have stated interest rates, which typically reset to prevailing market rates every 35 days
or less. The securities underlying both the government-sponsored municipal bonds and the auction rate securities have longer legal maturity dates.
Merchandise Inventories
Merchandise inventories at the distribution centers are stated at the lower of cost or market, determined on a weighted average cost basis. Cost is assigned to
store inventories using the retail inventory method, determined on a weighted average cost basis.
Costs directly associated with warehousing and distribution are capitalized as merchandise inventories. Total warehousing and distribution costs capitalized
into inventory amounted to $25.6 million and $25.3 million at February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006, respectively.
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Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost and depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets as
follows:
Buildings
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Transportation vehicles

40 years
3 to 15 years
4 to 6 years

Leasehold improvements and assets held under capital leases are amortized over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets or the committed terms of the
related leases, whichever is shorter. Amortization is included in "selling, general and administrative expenses" on the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations.
In the fourth quarter of 2004, the Company revised its estimate of useful lives on certain store equipment and distribution center assets. This change increased
net income by approximately $4.0 million in the first three quarters of 2005 as compared to 2004.
Costs incurred related to software developed for internal use are capitalized and amortized over three years. Costs capitalized include those incurred in the
application development stage as defined in Statement of Position 98-1, Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use.
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of
The Company reviews its long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangible assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable, in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 144, Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by comparing the carrying amount of an asset to future net
undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured as the
amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets based on discounted cash flows or other readily available evidence of fair
value, if any. Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell. In fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, the Company
recorded charges of $0.5 million, $0.2 million and $0.5 million, respectively, to write down certain assets. These charges are recorded as a component of "selling,
general and administrative expenses" in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.
Intangible Assets
Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but rather tested for impairment at least annually. Intangible assets with finite
useful lives are amortized over their respective estimated useful lives and reviewed for impairment in accordance with SFAS No. 144. The Company performs its
annual assessment of impairment following the finalization of each November’s financial statements.
Financial Instruments
The Company utilizes derivative financial instruments to reduce its exposure to market risks from changes in interest rates. By entering into receive-variable,
pay-fixed interest rate swaps, the Company limits its exposure to changes in variable interest rates. The Company is exposed to credit-related losses in the event of
non-performance by the counterparty to the interest rate swaps; however, the counterparties are major financial institutions, and the risk of loss due to nonperformance is considered remote. Interest rate differentials paid or received on the swaps are recognized as adjustments to expense in the period earned or incurred.
The Company formally documents all hedging relationships, if applicable, and assesses hedge effectiveness both at inception and on an ongoing basis.
Certain of the Company’s interest rate swaps have not qualified for hedge accounting treatment pursuant to the provisions of SFAS No. 133, Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities (SFAS 133). These interest rate swaps are recorded at fair value in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as a
component of “other liabilities” (see Note 6). Changes in the fair values of these interest rate swaps are recorded as "interest expense” and “change in the fair value
of non-hedging interest rate swaps" in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and the consolidated statements of cash flows, respectively.
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Lease Accounting
The Company recognized a one-time non-cash, after-tax adjustment of $5.7 million, or $0.05 per diluted share, in the fourth quarter of 2004 to reflect the
cumulative impact of a correction of its accounting practices related to leased properties. Of the aforementioned amount, approximately $1.2 million, or $0.01 per
diluted share, related to fiscal 2004. Consistent with industry practices, in prior periods, the Company had reported its straight line expenses for leases beginning on
the earlier of the store opening date or the commencement date of the lease. This had the effect of excluding the pre-opening or build-out period of its stores
(generally 60 days) from the calculation of the period over which it expenses rent. In addition, amounts received as tenant allowances were reflected in the balance
sheet as a reduction to store leasehold improvement costs instead of being classified as deferred lease credits. The adjustment made to correct these practices does
not affect historical or future net cash flows or the timing of payments under related leases. Rather, this change affected the classification of costs in the
accompanying consolidated statement of operations and cash flows by increasing depreciation and decreasing rent expense, which is included in cost of sales. In
addition, fixed assets and deferred liabilities increased due to the net cumulative unamortized allowances and abatements.
Revenue Recognition
The Company recognizes sales revenue at the time a sale is made to its customer.
Taxes Collected
The Company reports taxes assessed by a governmental authority that are directly imposed on revenue-producing transactions (i.e., sales tax) on a net (excluded
from revenues) basis.
Cost of Sales
The Company includes the cost of merchandise, warehousing and distribution costs, and certain occupancy costs in cost of sales.
Pre-Opening Costs
The Company expenses pre-opening costs for new, expanded and relocated stores, as incurred.
Advertising Costs
The Company expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Advertising costs approximated $10.6 million, $11.8 million and $11.0 million for the years
ended February 3, 2007, January 28, 2006, and January 29, 2005, respectively.
Income Taxes
Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences
attributable to differences between financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or
settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date of such change.
Stock-Based Compensation
Effective, January 29, 2006, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards, No. 123(revised 2004), Share-Based Payment, (SFAS 123R).
This statement is a revision of SFAS 123 and supersedes Accounting Principle Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, (APB Opinion
25). SFAS 123R requires all share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee stock options, to be recognized in the financial statements based on
their fair values. The Company adopted SFAS 123R using the modified prospective method, which requires application of the standard to all awards granted,
modified, repurchased or cancelled on or after January 29, 2006, and to all awards granted to employees that were unvested as of January 29, 2006. In accordance
with the modified prospective method of implementation, prior period financial statements have not been restated to reflect the impact of SFAS 123R. During 2006,
the Company recognized $1.8 million of stock-based compensation expense as a result of the adoption of SFAS 123R. Total stock-based compensation expense for
2006 and 2005 was $6.7 million and $2.4 million, respectively. There was no stock-based compensation expense for 2004. Through January 28, 2006, the Company
applied the intrinsic value recognition and measurement principles of APB Opinion 25 and related Interpretations in accounting for its stock-based employee
compensation plans. Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R, the Company reported all tax benefits resulting from the exercise of stock options as operating cash flows
in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. SFAS 123R requires cash flows resulting from the tax deductions in excess of the tax benefits of the related
compensation cost recognized in the financial statements (excess tax benefits) to be classified as financing cash flows. Thus, the Company has classified the $5.6
million of excess tax benefits recognized in 2006 as financing cash flows. Excess tax benefits of $1.2 million and $2.1 million recognized in 2005 and 2004,
respectively, prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R, are classified as operating cash flows.
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If the accounting provisions of SFAS 123 had been applied to 2005 and 2004, the Company's net income and net income per share would have been reduced to the
pro forma amounts indicated in the following table:

(in millions, except per share data)
Net income as reported
Add: Total stock-based employee
compensation expense included in net
income, net of related tax effects
Deduct: Total stock-based employee
compensation expense determined under
fair value based method,
net of related tax effects

$

Year Ended
January 28,

Year Ended
January 29,

2006

2005
173.9

$

1.5

-

(18.2)

Net income per share:
Basic, as reported
Basic, pro forma under FAS 123
Diluted, as reported
Diluted, pro forma under FAS 123

180.3

(13.0)

$

157.2

$

167.3

$

1.61
1.45

$

1.59
1.48

$

1.60
1.44

$

1.58
1.47

On December 15, 2005, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company approved the acceleration of the vesting date of all
previously issued, outstanding and unvested options under all current stock option plans, including the 1995 Stock Incentive Plan, the 2003 Equity Incentive Plan
and the 2004 Executive Officer Equity Incentive Plan (EOEP), effective as of December 15, 2005. At the effective date, almost all of these options had exercise
prices higher than the actual stock price. The Company made the decision to accelerate vesting of these options to give employees increased performance
incentives and to enhance current retention. This decision also eliminated non-cash compensation expense that would have been recorded in future periods
following the Company’s adoption of SFAS 123R on January 29, 2006. Compensation expense, as determined at the time of the accelerated vesting, has been
reduced by $14.9 million, over a period of four years during which the options would have vested, as a result of the option acceleration program. This amount is
net of compensation expense of $0.1 million recognized in fiscal 2005 for estimated forfeiture of certain (in the money) options.
The Company recognizes expense related to the fair value of restricted stock units (RSUs) over the requisite service period. The fair value of the RSUs is
determined using the closing price of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant.
On March 30, 2007, the Board of Directors granted approximately 0.3 million restricted stock units and options to purchase 0.4 million shares of the
Company’s common stock under the Company’s Equity Incentive Plan and the EOEP.
Net Income Per Share
Basic net income per share has been computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of shares outstanding. Diluted net income per share
reflects the potential dilution that could occur assuming the inclusion of dilutive potential shares and has been computed by dividing net income by the weighted
average number of shares and dilutive potential shares outstanding. Dilutive potential shares include all outstanding stock options and unvested restricted stock,
excluding certain performance based restricted stock grants, after applying the treasury stock method.
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NOTE 2 - BALANCE SHEET COMPONENTS
Intangibles, Net
Intangibles, net, as of February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006 consist of the following:
February 3,
2007

(in millions)
Non-competition
agreements
Accumulated amortization
Non-competition
agreements, net

$

6.4
(5.1)

January 28,
2006

$

6.4
(4.3)

1.3

2.1

Favorable lease rights
Accumulated amortization

19.0
(7.0)

12.6
(4.1)

Favorable lease rights, net

12.0

8.5

Goodwill
Accumulated amortization

144.9
(11.6)

130.3
(11.6)

Goodwill, net

133.3

118.7

Total intangibles, net

$

146.6

$

129.3

Non-Competition Agreements
The Company has entered into non-competition agreements with certain former executives of certain acquired entities. These assets are being amortized over
the legal term of the individual agreements, ranging from five to ten years.
Favorable Lease Rights
In 2006 and 2005, the Company acquired favorable lease rights for operating leases for retail locations from third parties, including the acquired favorable lease
rights in its acquisition of 138 Deal$ stores (see Note 10). The Company’s favorable lease rights are amortized on a straight-line basis to rent expense over the
remaining initial lease terms, which expire at various dates through 2016. The weighted average life remaining on the favorable lease rights at February 3, 2007 is
54 months.
Amortization expense related to the non-competition agreements and favorable lease rights was $4.4 million, $3.3 million and $1.6 million for the years ended
February 3, 2007, January 28, 2006 and January 29, 2005, respectively. Estimated annual amortization expense for the next five years follows: 2007 - $4.8 million;
2008 - $3.4 million; 2009 - $1.8 million, 2010 - $1.2 million, and 2011 - $0.7 million.
Goodwill
In accordance with SFAS No. 142, goodwill is no longer being amortized, but is tested annually for impairment. In addition, goodwill will be tested on an
interim basis if an event or circumstance indicates that it is more likely than not that an impairment loss has been incurred. The Company performed its annual
impairment testing in November 2006 and determined that no impairment loss existed.
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Property, Plant and Equipment, Net
Property, plant and equipment, net, as of February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006 consists of the following:
February 3,
2007

(in millions)
Land
Buildings
Improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Construction in progress

$

29.4 $
154.7
482.3
708.6
38.3

Total property, plant and equipment
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization
Total property, plant and equipment, net

January 28,
2006

$

29.4
154.7
418.1
608.4
29.3

1,413.3

1,239.9

698.0

558.1

715.3 $

681.8

Other Assets, Net
Other assets, net includes $39.2 million of restricted investments. The Company purchased these restricted investments to collateralize long-term insurance
obligations. These investments replaced higher cost stand by letters of credit and surety bonds. These investments consist primarily of government-sponsored
municipal bonds and auction rate securities, similar to our short-term investments. These investments are classified as available for sale and are recorded at fair
value, which approximates cost.
Other Current Liabilities
Other current liabilities as of February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006 consist of accrued expenses for the following:
February 3,
2007

(in millions)

January 28,
2006

Compensation and benefits
Taxes (other than income taxes)
Insurance
Other

$

43.5 $
19.5
26.8
42.2

22.2
15.8
28.1
33.1

Total other current liabilities

$

132.0 $

99.2

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, other current assets, accounts payable and other current liabilities approximate fair value because of the short
maturity of these instruments. The carrying values of other long-term financial assets and liabilities, excluding restricted investments, approximate fair value
because they are recorded using discounted future cash flows or quoted market rates. Short-term investments and restricted investments are carried at fair value,
which approximates cost, in accordance with SFAS No. 115, Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities.
The carrying value of the Company's long-term debt approximates its fair value because the debt’s interest rates vary with market interest rates.
It is not practicable to estimate the fair value of the Company’s outstanding commitments for letters of credit and surety bonds without unreasonable cost.
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NOTE 3 - INCOME TAXES
Total income taxes were allocated as follows:

Income from continuing operations
Accumulated other comprehensive income,
marking derivative financial
instruments to fair value
Stockholders' equity, tax benefit on
exercise of stock options

Year Ended
February 3,

Year Ended
January 28,

Year Ended
January 29,

2007

2006

2005

$

110.9 $

101.3 $

-

$

0.2

107.9

0.4

(5.6)

(1.2)

105.3 $

100.3 $

(2.1)
106.2

The provision for income taxes consists of the following:

Federal - current
State - current

Year Ended
February 3,

Year Ended
January 28,

Year Ended
January 29,

2007

2006

2005

116.2 $
16.6

108.1 $
14.7

75.8
16.5

Total current

132.8

122.8

92.3

Federal - deferred
State - deferred

(19.1)
(2.8)

(20.6)
(0.9)

15.9
(0.3)

Total deferred

(21.9)

(21.5)

15.6

110.9 $

101.3 $

Provision for income taxes

$

$

107.9

A reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax rate and the effective rate follows:
Year Ended
February 3,

Year Ended
January 28,

Year Ended
January 29,

2007

2006

2005

Statutory tax rate
Effect of:
State and local income
taxes,
net of federal income
tax
benefit
Other, net

35.0%

35.0%

35.0%

3.3
(1.7)

3.4
(1.6)

3.6
(1.1)

Effective tax rate

36.6%

36.8%

37.5%

The rate reduction in “other, net” in the above table consists primarily of benefits from the resolution of tax uncertainties, federal jobs credits and tax
exempt interest in 2006, 2005 and 2004.
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Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets
based on the classification of the underlying asset or liability. Significant components of the Company's net deferred tax assets (liabilities) follows:

Deferred tax assets:
Accrued expenses
State tax net operating
losses and credit
carryforwards, net of
federal tax benefit
Accrued compensation
expense
Valuation allowance
Total deferred tax
assets

February 3,

January 28,

2007

2006

$

33.5

1.3
9.3
(1.3

Deferred tax liabilities:
Intangible assets
Property and equipment
Prepaids
Other
Total deferred tax
liabilities
Net deferred tax asset
(liability)

$

30.6

1.0
-

)

42.8

31.6

(9.2)
(14.3)
(9.0)
(1.1)

(8.0)
(34.9)
(1.2)
(0.2)

(33.6)

(44.3)

$

9.2

$

(12.7)

A valuation allowance of $1.3 million, net of Federal tax benefits, has been provided principally for certain state net operating losses and credit
carryforwards. In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all
of the deferred taxes will not be realized. Based upon the availability of carrybacks of future deductible amounts to the past two years’ taxable
income and management's projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred tax assets are deductible, management
believes it is more likely than not the remaining existing deductible temporary differences will reverse during periods in which carrybacks are
available or in which the Company generates net taxable income.
During 2006, the Company concluded an examination with the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) for calendar year 1999 through fiscal year
2003. The results of the examination were immaterial to the financial statements. Fiscal year 2004 and forward are open for examination by the IRS.
In addition, several years are open to state income tax audits. Management believes that adequate provisions have been made for any additional
taxes and interest thereon that might arise as a result of future IRS and state examinations related to these open years.
NOTE 4 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Operating Lease Commitments
Future minimum lease payments under noncancelable stores and distribution center operating leases are as follows:
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
Thereafter
Total minimum lease
payments
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$

284.2
246.0
207.2
161.5
110.6
167.5

$

1,177.0

The above future minimum lease payments include amounts for leases that were signed prior to February 3, 2007 for stores that were not open
as of February 3, 2007.
Minimum rental payments for operating leases do not include contingent rentals that may be paid under certain store leases based on a
percentage of sales in excess of stipulated amounts. Future minimum lease payments have not been reduced by expected future minimum sublease
rentals of $2.3 million under operating leases.
Minimum and Contingent Rentals
Rental expense for store and distribution center operating leases (including payments to related parties) included in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations are as follows:

Minimum rentals
Contingent rentals

Year Ended
February 3,

Year Ended
January 28,

Year Ended
January 29,

2007

2006

2005

$

261.8 $
0.9

225.8 $
0.7

200.7
0.9

Non-Operating Facilities
The Company is responsible for payments under leases for certain closed stores. The Company was also responsible for payments
under leases for two former distribution centers whose leases expired in June 2005 and September 2005. The Company accounts for
abandoned lease facilities in accordance with SFAS No. 146, Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities. A facility
is considered abandoned on the date that the Company ceases to use it. On this date, the Company records an expense for the present
value of the total remaining costs for the abandoned facility reduced by any actual or probable sublease income. Due to the uncertainty
regarding the ultimate recovery of the future lease and related payments, the Company recorded charges of $0.1 million, $0.3 million and
$1.5 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
Related Parties
The Company also leases properties for six of its stores from partnerships owned by related parties. The total rental payments related
to these leases were $0.5 million for each of the years ended February 3, 2007, January 28, 2006, and January 29, 2005, respectively.
Total future commitments under related party leases are $1.4 million.
Freight Services
The Company has contracted outbound freight services from various contract carriers with contracts expiring through January 2010.
The total amount of these commitments is approximately $57.1 million, of which approximately $38.6 million is committed in 2007, $9.9
million is committed in 2008 and $8.6 million is committed in 2009.
Technology Assets
The Company has commitments totaling approximately $3.8 million to purchase store technology assets for its stores during 2007.
Letters of Credit
In March 2001, the Company entered into a Letter of Credit Reimbursement and Security Agreement. The agreement provides
$125.0 million for letters of credit. In December 2004, the Company entered into an additional Letter of Credit Reimbursement and
Security Agreement, which provides $50.0 million for letters of credit. Letters of credit under both of these agreements are generally
issued for the routine purchase of imported merchandise and approximately $84.8 million was committed to these letters of credit at
February 3, 2007.
The Company also has approximately $29.4 million in stand-by letters of credit that serve as collateral for its high-deductible
insurance programs and expire in fiscal 2007.
Surety Bonds
The Company has issued various surety bonds that primarily serve as collateral for utility payments at the Company’s stores. The
total amount of the commitment is approximately $2.1 million, which is committed through various dates through fiscal 2008.
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Contingencies
In 2003, the Company was served with a lawsuit in a California state court by a former employee who alleged that employees did not
properly receive sufficient meal breaks and paid rest periods, along with other alleged wage and hourly violations. The suit requested that
the California state court certify the case as a class action. This suit was dismissed with prejudice in May 2005, and the dismissal was
appealed. A California appeals court granted the appeal and the Company's petition for review to the California Supreme Court was
denied. The case has been remanded to the trial court's where it will likely be consolidated with a companion suit which had been filed in
the same court following the trial courts earlier dismissal. It is anticipated that the plaintiff will seek class certification which the
Company will oppose.
In 2005, the Company was served with a lawsuit by former employees in Oregon who allege that they did not properly receive
sufficient meal breaks and paid rest periods. They also allege other wage and hour violations. The plaintiffs requested the Court to certify
classes for their various claims and the presiding judge recently did so with respect to two classes, one alleging that our Oregon
employees, in violation of that state’s labor laws, were not paid for rest breaks and the other that upon termination of employment,
employees were not tendered their final pay in a timely manner. Other claims of the plaintiffs were dismissed by an earlier Order of the
Court and are being appealed by the plaintiffs. Discovery will ensue on the certified class issues; no trial is anticipated before the end of
2007.
In 2006, the Company was served with a lawsuit by a former employee in a California state court alleging that she was paid for
wages with a check drawn on a bank which did not have any branches in the state, an alleged violation of the state's labor code; that she
was paid less for her work than other similar employees with the same job title based on her gender; and that we did not pay her final
wages in a timely manner, also an alleged violation of the labor code. The plaintiff requested the court to certify the case as a class action.
The Company has been successful in removing the case from state to the federal court level. The parties have reached a settlement and
executed an Agreement which will be presented to the Court for its approval on April 24, 2007. The estimated has been accrued in
the accompanying financial statements as of February 3, 2007.
In 2006, the Company was served with a lawsuit filed in federal court in the state of Alabama by a former store manager. She claims
that she should have been classified as a non-exempt employee under the Fair Labor Standards Act and, therefore, should have received
overtime compensation and other benefits. She filed the case as a collective action on behalf of herself and all other employees (store
managers) similarly situated. The Company’s motion requesting that the case be transferred from Alabama to Virginia was denied. The
plaintiff now seeks entry of an Order allowing nationwide notice be sent to all store managers employed by the Company now or within
the past three years. The Company is contesting entry of such an Order.
The Company will vigorously defend itself in these lawsuits. The Company does not believe that any of these matters will,
individually or in the aggregate, have a material adverse effect on its business or financial condition. The Company cannot give
assurance, however, that one or more of these lawsuits will not have a material adverse effect on its results of operations for the period in
which they are resolved.
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NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT
Long-term debt at February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006 consists of the following:
February 3,
2007

(in millions)
$450.0 million Unsecured Revolving Credit
Facility,
interest payable monthly at LIBOR,
plus 0.475%, which was 5.8% at
February 3, 2007, principal payable upon
expiration of the facility in March 2009

$

Demand Revenue Bonds, interest payable
monthly
at a variable rate which was 5.4% at
February 3, 2007, principal payable on
demand, maturing June 2018

Total long-term debt
Less current portion
Long-term debt, excluding current portion

$

January 28,
2006

250.0 $

250.0

18.8

19.0

268.8

269.0

18.8

19.0

250.0 $

250.0

Maturities of long-term debt are as follows: 2007 - $18.8 million and 2009 - $250.0 million.
Unsecured Revolving Credit Facility
In March 2004, the Company entered into a five-year Unsecured Revolving Credit Facility (the Facility). The Facility provides for a
$450.0 million revolving line of credit, including up to $50.0 million in available letters of credit, bearing interest at LIBOR, plus 0.475%.
The Facility also bears an annual facilities fee, calculated as a percentage, as defined, of the amount available under the line of credit and
an annual administrative fee payable quarterly. The Facility, among other things, requires the maintenance of certain specified financial
ratios, restricts the payment of certain distributions and prohibits the incurrence of certain new indebtedness. The Company used
availability under the Facility to repay $142.3 million of variable-rate debt and to purchase short-term, state and local governmentsponsored municipal bonds. The Company’s $150.0 million revolving credit facility (Old Facility) was terminated concurrent with
entering into the Facility. The net debt issuance costs related to the Old Facility and the variable-rate debt totaling $0.7 million, were
charged to interest expense in 2004.
Demand Revenue Bonds
On May 20, 1998, the Company entered into an unsecured Loan Agreement with the Mississippi Business Finance Corporation
(MBFC) under which the MBFC issued Taxable Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds (the Bonds) in an aggregate principal amount of
$19.0 million to finance the acquisition, construction, and installation of land, buildings, machinery and equipment for the Company's
distribution facility in Olive Branch, Mississippi. The Bonds do not contain a prepayment penalty as long as the interest rate remains
variable. The Bonds contain a demand provision and, therefore, are classified as current liabilities.
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NOTE 6 - DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Non-Hedging Derivatives
At February 3, 2007, the Company was party to a derivative instrument in the form of an interest rate swap that does not qualify for
hedge accounting treatment pursuant to the provisions of SFAS No. 133 because it contains a knock-out provision. The swap creates the
economic equivalent of a fixed rate obligation by converting the variable-interest rate to a fixed rate. Under this interest rate swap, the
Company pays interest to a financial institution at a fixed rate, as defined in the agreement. In exchange, the financial institution pays the
Company at a variable interest rate, which approximates the floating rate on the variable-rate obligation, excluding the credit spread. The
interest rate on the swap is subject to adjustment monthly. No payments are made by either party for months in which the variable-interest
rate, as calculated under the swap agreement, is greater than the "knock-out rate." The following table summarizes the terms of the
interest rate swap:
Derivative
Instrument
$18.8 million
swap

Origination
Date
4/1/99

Expiration
Date
4/1/09

Pay Fixed
Rate
4.88%

Knock-out
Rate
7.75%

This swap reduces the Company's exposure to the variable interest rate related to the Demand Revenue Bonds (see Note 5).
Hedging Derivative
The Company was party to one derivative instrument in the form of an interest rate swap that qualified for hedge accounting treatment pursuant
to the provisions of SFAS No. 133.
In 2001, the Company entered into a $25.0 million interest rate swap agreement (swap) to manage the risk associated with interest rate
fluctuations on a portion of the Company's variable interest entity debt. In March 2004, the Company repaid all of the variable interest entity debt
with borrowings from the Facility (see Note 5). The Company redesignated this swap to borrowings under the Facility. This redesignation does not
affect the accounting treatment used for this interest rate swap. The swap created the economic equivalent of fixed-rate debt by converting the
variable-interest rate to a fixed-rate. Under this agreement, the Company paid interest to a financial institution at a fixed-rate of 5.43%. In exchange,
the financial institution paid the Company at a variable-interest rate, which approximated the floating rate on the debt, excluding the credit spread.
The interest rate on the swap was subject to adjustment monthly consistent with the interest rate adjustment on the debt. The swap expired in March
2006.
NOTE 7 - SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Preferred Stock
The Company is authorized to issue 10,000,000 shares of Preferred Stock, $0.01 par value per share. No preferred shares are issued and
outstanding at February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006.
Net Income Per Share
The following table sets forth the calculation of basic and diluted net income per share:
Year Ended
February 3,
2007

(in million, except per share data)
Basic net income per share:
Net income
Weighted average number of
shares
outstanding
Basic net income per share
Diluted net income per
share:
Net income
Weighted average number of
shares
outstanding
Dilutive effect of stock options
and

$

$

103.2

173.9

Year Ended
January 29,
2005
$

108.3

180.3

113.3

$

1.86

$

1.61

$

1.59

$

192.0

$

173.9

$

180.3

restricted stock (as determined
by
applying the treasury stock
method)
Weighted average number of
shares and
dilutive potential shares
outstanding
Diluted net income per share

192.0

Year Ended
January 28,
2006

$

103.2

108.3

113.3

0.6

0.4

0.7

103.8

108.7

114.0

1.85
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$

1.60

$

1.58

At February 3, 2007, January 28, 2006 and January 29, 2005, respectively, 1.5 million, 3.4 million, and 1.5 million stock options are not
included in the calculation of the weighted average number of shares and dilutive potential shares outstanding because their effect would be antidilutive.
Comprehensive Income
The Company's comprehensive income reflects the effect of recording derivative financial instruments pursuant to SFAS No. 133. The
following table provides a reconciliation of net income to total comprehensive income:
Year Ended
February 3,
2007

(in millions)
Net income

$

192.0

Fair value adjustmentderivative
cash flow hedging instrument
Income tax expense
Fair value adjustment, net of
tax
Amortization of SFAS No.
133
cumulative effect
Income tax benefit
Amortization of SFAS No.
133
cumulative effect, net of tax
Total comprehensive income

$

Year Ended
January 28,
2006
$

Year Ended
January 29,
2005

173.9

$

180.3

-

0.6
0.2

1.0
0.4

-

0.4

0.6

-

-

-

-

-

-

192.0

$

174.3

$

180.9

The cumulative effect recorded in "accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)" is being amortized over the remaining lives of the related
interest rate swaps.
Share Repurchase Programs
In March 2005, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to $300.0 million of the Company’s common stock through
March 2008. During fiscal 2006, the Company repurchased 5,650,871 shares for approximately $148.2 million under the March 2005 authorization.
In November 2006, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to $500.0 million of the Company’s common stock.
This amount was in addition to the $27.0 million remaining on the March 2005 authorization. In December 2006, the Company entered into two
agreements with a third party to repurchase approximately $100.0 million of the Company’s common shares under an Accelerated Share
Repurchase Agreement (ASR).
The first $50.0 million was executed in an “uncollared” agreement. In this transaction the Company initially received 1,656,178 shares based
on the market price of the Company’s stock of $30.19 as of the trade date (December 8, 2006). A weighted average price is calculated using stock
prices from December 16, 2006 - March 8, 2007. This represents the calculation period for the weighted average price. If the weighted average
market price, as defined in the agreement, during the calculation period is greater than the $30.19 price per share, the Company will deliver to the
third party cash or shares of Common Stock (at the Company’s option) equal to the price difference. If the weighted average market price is less
than $30.19 then the third party will deliver to Dollar Tree cash equal to the price difference. The weighted average market price of the Company’s
common stock through February 3, 2007 was $31.00. Therefore, if the transaction had settled on February 3, 2007, the Company would have had to
return 43,207 shares to the third party which were included in the Company’s weighted average dilutive potential common shares outstanding
calculation. The weighted average stock price of the Company’s common stock as defined in the “uncollared” agreement as of March 8, 2007
(termination date) was $32.17. The Company paid the third party an additional $3.3 million on March 8, 2007 for the 1,656,178 shares delivered
under this agreement
The remaining $50.0 million relates to a “collared” agreement in which the Company initially received 1,500,703 shares on December 8, 2006,
representing the minimum number of shares under the agreement. The maximum number of shares that can be received under the agreement is
1,693,101. The number of shares is determined based on the weighted average market price of the Company’s common stock during the same
calculation period as defined in the “uncollared” agreement. The weighted average market price through February 3, 2007 as defined in the
“collared” agreement was $30.80. Therefore, if the transaction had settled on February 3, 2007, the Company would have received an additional
122,742 shares under the “collared” agreement. Based on the applicable accounting literature, these additional shares were not included in the
weighted average diluted earnings per share calculation because their effect would be antidilutive. Based on the weighted average price as of
February 3, 2007 of $30.80, there is approximately $3.8 million of the $50.0 million related to the “collared” agreement that is recorded as a
reduction to stockholders’ equity pending final settlement of the agreement. The weighted average stock price of the Company’s common stock as
defined in the “collared” agreement as of March 8, 2007 (termination date) was $31.97. The Company received an additional 63,525 shares on
March 8, 2007 under this agreement.
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NOTE 8 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
Profit Sharing and 401(k) Retirement Plan
The Company maintains a defined contribution profit sharing and 401(k) plan which is available to all employees over 21 years of age who
have completed one year of service in which they have worked at least 1,000 hours. Eligible employees may make elective salary deferrals. The
Company may make contributions at its discretion.
Contributions to and reimbursements by the Company of expenses of the plan included in the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations were as follows:
Year Ended February
3, 2007
Year Ended January
28, 2006
Year Ended January
29, 2005

$

16.8
million
6.9
million
8.5
million

Eligible employees hired prior to January 1, 2007 are immediately vested in the Company's profit sharing contributions. Eligible employees hired
subsequent to January 1, 2007 vest in the Company's profit sharing contributions based on the following schedule:
·
·
·

25% after three years of service
50% after four years of service
100% after five years of service

All eligible employees are immediately vested in any Company match contributions under the 401(k) portion of the plan.
Deferred Compensation Plan
The Company has a deferred compensation plan which provides certain officers and executives the ability to defer a portion of their base
compensation and bonuses and invest their deferred amounts. The plan is a nonqualified plan and the Company may make discretionary
contributions. The deferred amounts and earnings thereon are payable to participants, or designated beneficiaries, at specified future dates, or upon
retirement or death. Total cumulative participant deferrals were approximately $2.3 million and $2.0 million, respectively, at February 3, 2007 and
January 28, 2006 and are included in "other liabilities" on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The related assets are included in "other
assets, net" on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The Company made no discretionary contributions in the years ended February 3,
2007, January 28, 2006, and January 29, 2005.
NOTE 9 - STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS
At February 3, 2007, the Company has eight stock-based compensation plans. Each plan and the accounting method are described below.
Fixed Stock Option Compensation Plans
Under the Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan (SOP), the Company granted options to its employees for 1,047,264 shares of Common Stock in
1993 and 1,048,289 shares in 1994. Options granted under the SOP have an exercise price of $0.86 and are fully vested at the date of grant.
Under the 1995 Stock Incentive Plan (SIP), the Company granted options to its employees for the purchase of up to 12.6 million shares of
Common Stock. The exercise price of each option equaled the market price of the Company's stock at the date of grant, unless a higher price was
established by the Board of Directors, and an option's maximum term is 10 years. Options granted under the SIP generally vested over a three-year
period. This plan was terminated on July 1, 2003 and replaced with the Company’s 2003 Equity Incentive Plan, discussed below.
The Step Ahead Investments, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan (SAI Plan) provided for the issuance of stock options, stock appreciation rights,
phantom stock and restricted stock awards to officers and key employees. Effective with the merger with 98 Cent Clearance Center in December
1998 and in accordance with the terms of the SAI Plan, outstanding 98 Cent Clearance Center options were assumed by the Company and
converted, based on 1.6818 Company options for each 98 Cent Clearance Center option, to options to purchase the Company's common stock.
Options issued as a result of this conversion were fully vested as of the date of the merger.
Under the 1998 Special Stock Option Plan (Special Plan), options to purchase 247,500 shares were granted to five former officers of 98 Cent
Clearance Center who were serving as employees or consultants of the Company following the merger. The options were granted as consideration
for entering into non-competition agreements and a consulting agreement. The exercise price of each option equals the market price of the
Company's stock at the date of grant, and the options' maximum term is 10 years. Options granted under the Special Plan vested over a five-year
period. As of February 3, 2007, 240,000 of these options are still outstanding.
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The 2003 Equity Incentive Plan (EIP) replaces the Company's SIP discussed above. Under the EIP, the Company may grant up to 6.0 million
shares of its Common Stock, plus any shares available for future awards under the SIP, to the Company’s employees, including executive officers
and independent contractors. The EIP permits the Company to grant equity awards in the form of stock options, stock appreciation rights and
restricted stock. The exercise price of each stock option granted equals the market price of the Company’s stock at the date of grant. The options
generally vest over a three-year period and have a maximum term of 10 years.
The 2004 Executive Officer Equity Plan (EOEP) is available only to the Chief Executive Officer and certain other executive officers. These
officers no longer receive awards under the EIP. The EOEP allows the Company to grant the same type of equity awards as does the EIP. These
awards generally vest over a three-year period, with a maximum term of 10 years.
Stock appreciation rights may be awarded alone or in tandem with stock options. When the stock appreciation rights are exercisable, the holder
may surrender all or a portion of the unexercised stock appreciation right and receive in exchange an amount equal to the excess of the fair market
value at the date of exercise over the fair market value at the date of the grant. No stock appreciation rights have been granted to date.
Any restricted stock or RSUs awarded are subject to certain general restrictions. The restricted stock shares or units may not be sold,
transferred, pledged or disposed of until the restrictions on the shares or units have lapsed or have been removed under the provisions of the plan. In
addition, if a holder of restricted shares or units ceases to be employed by the Company, any shares or units in which the restrictions have not lapsed
will be forfeited.
The 2003 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan (NEDP) provides non-qualified stock options to non-employee members of the
Company's Board of Directors. The stock options are functionally equivalent to such options issued under the EIP discussed above. The exercise
price of each stock option granted equals the market price of the Company’s stock at the date of grant. The options generally vest immediately.
The 2003 Director Deferred Compensation Plan permits any of the Company's directors who receive a retainer or other fees for Board or Board
committee service to defer all or a portion of such fees until a future date, at which time they may be paid in cash or shares of the Company's
common stock, or to receive all or a portion of such fees in non-statutory stock options. Deferred fees that are paid out in cash will earn interest at
the 30-year Treasury Bond Rate. If a director elects to be paid in common stock, the number of shares will be determined by dividing the deferred
fee amount by the current market price of a share of the Company's common stock. The number of options issued to a director will equal the
deferred fee amount divided by 33% of the price of a share of the Company's common stock. The exercise price will equal the fair market value of
the Company's common stock at the date the option is issued. The options are fully vested when issued and have a term of 10 years.
Stock Options
In 2006, the Company granted a total of 342,216 stock options from the EIP, EOEP and the NEDP. For these options, the fair value of each
option grant was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model and the fair value of these options of $3.4 million, net
of expected forfeitures, is being recognized over the 3-year vesting period of these options, or a shorter period based on the retirement eligibility of
the grantee. All options granted to directors vest immediately and are expenses on the grant date. During 2006, the Company recognized $1.3
million of expense related to the 2006 option grants. As of February 3, 2007, there was approximately $2.1 million of total unrecognized
compensation expense related to these stock options which is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 26 months. The expected
term of the awards granted was calculated using the “simplified method” in accordance with Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107. Expected volatility
is derived from an analysis of the historical and implied volatility of the Company’s publicly traded stock. The risk free rate is based on the U.S.
Treasury rates on the grant date with maturity dates approximating the expected life of the option on the grant date. For proforma disclosures
required under FAS 123, the fair value of option awards in 2005 and 2004 was also calculated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The
weighted average assumptions used in the Black-Scholes option pricing model for grants in 2006, 2005 and 2004 are as follows:
Fiscal 2006
Expected
term in years
Expected
volatility
Annual
dividend yield
Risk free
interest rate
Weighted
average fair
value of
options
granted
during the
period
Options
granted

$

Fiscal 2005

Fiscal 2004

6.0

4.7

5.3

30.2%

48.7%

59.8%

-

-

-

4.8%

3.7%

3.7%

10.93

$

342,216

11.27
320,220
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$

14.27
1,682,572

The following tables summarize the Company's various option plans and information about options outstanding at February 3, 2007 and
changes during the 53 weeks then ended.
Stock Option Activity
February 3, 2007

Shares
Outstanding,
beginning of period
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited
Outstanding, end of
period

Weighted
Average
Per Share
Exercise

Weighted
Average
Remaining

Aggregate
Intrinsic
Value (in

Price

Term

millions)

5,990,757
342,216
(1,725,593)
(141,339)

$

5.60
27.67
21.70
29.23

4,466,041

$

25.96

5.6

$

25.8

Options vested and
expected to vest
at February 3, 2007

4,431,978

$

25.95

5.6

$

25.7

Options exercisable at
end of period

4,126,874

$

25.83

5.3

$

24.4

Options Outstanding

Options Exercisable

Options
Range of
Exercise

Outstanding
at February 3,

Prices

2007

$0.86
$2.95 to
$10.98
$10.99 to
$21.28
$21.29 to
$29.79
$29.80 to
$42.56
$0.86 to
$42.56

Options
Weighted
Avg.
Remaining
Contractual
Life

Weighted
Avg.
Exercise

Exercisable
at February 3,

Weighted
Avg.
Exercise

Price

2007

Price

7,264

N/A

0.86

7,264

0.86

7,174

0.1

9.93

7,174

9.93

777,807

5.1

19.18

777,807

19.18

2,511,244

5.8

25.26

2,172,077

24.90

1,162,552

5.0

32.26

1,162,552

32.26

4,466,041

4,126,874

The intrinsic value of options exercised during 2006, 2005 and 2004 was approximately $13.1 million, $2.8 million and $5.7 million, respectively.
Restricted Stock
The Company granted 277,347 and 252,936 RSUs, net of forfeitures in 2006 and 2005, respectively, from the EIP and the EOEP to the
Company’s employees and officers. The fair value of all of these RSUs of $13.9 million is being expensed ratably over the three-year vesting
periods, or a shorter period based on the retirement eligibility of the grantee. The fair value was determined using the Company’s closing stock
price on the date of grant. The Company recognized $4.5 million of expense related to the RSUs during 2006. As of February 3, 2007, there was
approximately $7.8 million of total unrecognized compensation expense related to these RSUs which is expected to be recognized over a weighted
average period of 24 months. In 2005, the Company recognized approximately $1.6 million of expense for the RSUs granted in 2005.
In 2005, the Company granted 40,000 RSUs from the EOEP to certain officers of the Company, contingent on the Company meeting certain
performance targets in 2005 and future service of these officers through various points through July 2007. The Company met these performance
targets in fiscal 2005; therefore, the fair value of these RSUs of $1.0 million is being expensed over the service period. The fair value of these RSUs
was determined using the Company’s closing stock price January 28, 2006 (the last day of
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fiscal 2005), when the performance targets were satisfied. The Company recognized $0.3 million of expense related to these RSUs in 2006. The
remaining $0.1 million will be recognized over the vesting periods through July 2007. In 2005, the Company recognized $0.7 million of expense
for these RSUs.
In 2006, the Company granted 6,000 RSUs from the EOEP and the EIP to certain officers of the Company, contingent on the Company
meeting certain performance targets in 2006 and future service of the these officers through fiscal 2006. The Company met these performance
targets in fiscal 2006; therefore, the Company recognized the fair value of these RSUs of $0.2 million during fiscal 2006. The fair value of these
RSUS was determined using the Company’s closing stock price on the grant date in accordance with SFAS 123R.
The following table summarizes the status of RSUs as of February 3, 2007, and changes during the 53 weeks then ended:
Weighted
Average
Grant
Date Fair
Shares
Nonvested at January
28, 2006
Granted
Vested
Forfeited
Nonvested at
February 3, 2007

Value

295,507
292,697
(107,097)
(24,330)

$

25.00
27.69
25.02
26.63

456,777

$

26.57

In connection with the vesting of RSUs in 2006, certain employees elected to receive shares net of minimum statutory tax withholding
amounts which totaled $1.0 million.
Employee Stock Purchase Plan
Under the Dollar Tree Stores, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP), the Company is authorized to issue up to 1,040,780 shares of
common stock to eligible employees. Under the terms of the ESPP, employees can choose to have up to 10% of their annual base earnings withheld
to purchase the Company's common stock. The purchase price of the stock is 85% of the lower of the price at the beginning or the end of the
quarterly offering period. Under the ESPP, the Company has sold 917,883 shares as of February 3, 2007.
The fair value of the employees' purchase rights is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the
following weighted average assumptions:
Fiscal
2006

Fiscal
2005

Fiscal
2004

3 months

3 months

Expected
term
Expected
volatility
Annual
dividend yield
Risk free
interest rate

3 months
13.1%

12.0%

15.6%

-

-

-

4.8%

3.9%

2.1%

The weighted average per share fair value of those purchase rights granted in 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $4.59, $4.11 and $4.93, respectively.
NOTE 10 - ACQUISITION
On March 25, 2006, the Company completed its acquisition of 138 Deal$ stores. These stores are located primarily in the Midwest part of the
United States and the Company has existing logistics capacity to service these stores. This acquisition also includes a few “combo” stores that offer
an expanded assortment of merchandise including items that sell for more than $1. Substantially all Deal$ stores acquired will continue to operate
under the Deal$ banner while providing the Company an opportunity to leverage its Dollar Tree infrastructure in the testing of new merchandise
concepts, including higher price points, without disrupting the single-price point model in its Dollar Tree stores.
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The Company paid approximately $32.0 million for store-related and other assets and $22.1 million for inventory. This amount includes
approximately $0.6 million of direct costs associated with the acquisition. The results of Deal$ store operations are included in the Company’s
financial statements since the acquisition date and did not have a significant impact on the Company’s operating results in 2006. This acquisition is
immaterial to the Company’s operations as a whole and therefore no proforma disclosure of financial information has been presented. The
following table summarizes the allocation of the purchase price to the fair value of the assets acquired.
(In millions)
Inventory
Other current assets
Property and
equipment
Goodwill
Other intangibles

$

22.1
0.1
15.1
14.6
2.2

$

54.1

The goodwill resulting from this acquisition will not be amortized but will be tested annually for impairment. Included in other intangibles is
approximately $2.1 million related to net favorable lease rights for operating leases for retail locations. This amount is being amortized on a
straight-line basis to rent expense over 35 months, the weighted average remaining initial lease term of the locations purchased.
NOTE 11 - INVESTMENT
In 2003, the Company paid $4.0 million to acquire a 10.5% fully diluted interest in Ollie's Holdings, Inc. (Ollie's), a multi-price point discount
retailer located in the mid-Atlantic region. In addition, the SKM Equity Fund III, L.P. (SKM Equity) and SKM Investment Fund (SKM Investment)
acquired a combined fully diluted interest in Ollie's of 53.1%. Two of the Company's directors, Thomas Saunders and John Megrue, are principal
members of SKM Partners, L.L.C., which serves as the general partner of SKM Equity. John Megrue is also a principal member of Apax Partners,
L.P., which serves as the general partner for SKM Investment. The $4.0 million investment in Ollie's is accounted for under the cost method of
accounting and is included in "other assets" in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
NOTE 12 - SUBSEQUENT EVENT
On March 29, 2007, the Company entered into an agreement with a third party to repurchase approximately $150.0 million of the
Company’s common shares under an Accelerated Share Repurchase Agreement. The entire $150.0 million was executed under a “collared”
agreement. Within two weeks of the March 29, 2007 execution date, the Company will receive the minimum number of shares. Up to four
months after the initial execution date, the Company will receive additional shares from the third party depending on the volume weighted
average price of the Company’s common shares during that period, subject to the maximum share delivery provisions of the agreement.
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NOTE 13 - QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Unaudited)
The following table sets forth certain items from the Company's unaudited consolidated statements of operations for each quarter of fiscal year
2006 and 2005. The unaudited information has been prepared on the same basis as the audited consolidated financial statements appearing
elsewhere in this report and includes all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring adjustments, which management considers necessary for a
fair presentation of the financial data shown. The operating results for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of results for a full year or for any
future period.
First
Quarter (1)
Fiscal 2006:
Net sales
Gross profit
Operating income
Net income
Diluted net income per share
Stores open at end of quarter
Comparable store net sales change
Fiscal 2005:
Net sales
Gross profit
Operating income
Net income
Diluted net income per share
Stores open at end of quarter
Comparable store net sales change

Second
Quarter

$

856.5
286.1
53.5
32.9
0.31
3,119
4.0%

$

$

749.1
$
254.2
48.2
29.0
0.26
2,791
(3.7%)

883.6
293.3
48.2
29.0
0.28
3,156
4.2%

Third
Quarter

$

769.0
$
261.5
46.8
27.3
0.25
2,856
(1.5%)

(1) Easter was observed on April
16, 2006 and March 27, 2005
(2) Fiscal 2006 contains 14 weeks
ended February 3, 2007 while
Fiscal 2005 contains 13 weeks
ended January 28, 2006
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910.4
307.5
53.5
32.5
0.32
3,192
4.0%

Fourth
Quarter (2)

$

1,318.9
470.3
155.6
97.6
0.96
3,219
5.5%

796.8
$
276.3
52.3
31.1
0.29
2,899
(1.0%)

1,079.0
380.4
136.6
86.5
0.81
2,914
1.0%

Item 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.
Item 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures
We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in our reports under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 (Exchange Act) is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the rules and forms of the Securities and Exchange Commission,
and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow
timely decisions regarding required disclosure. In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, we recognize that any controls and procedures, no matter
how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives, and management necessarily is required to apply our
judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures.
Our management has carried out, with the participation of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, an evaluation of the effectiveness of the
Company’s disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Exchange Act. Based upon this evaluation, our chief executive officer and our chief
financial officer concluded that, as of February 3, 2007, the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective to provide reasonable assurance that material
information required to be disclosed by us in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods
specified in Securities and Exchange Commission rules and forms.
Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a15(f). The Company’s management conducted an assessment of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on the framework established by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in Internal Control-Integrated Framework. Based on this assessment, the Company’s management
has concluded that, as of February 3, 2007, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting is effective. The Company’s independent registered public accounting
firm, KPMG LLP, has audited the Company’s consolidated financial statements and has issued an attestation report on management’s assessment of the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting. Their report appears below.
Changes in internal controls
There were no significant changes in our internal controls over financial reporting that occurred during our most recently completed fiscal quarter that materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Dollar Tree Stores, Inc.:
We have audited management's assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting, that Dollar Tree Stores, Inc.
(the Company) maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of February 3, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework,
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company's management is responsible for maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
management's assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included
obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management's assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.
To Table of Contents
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A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed t o provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to
future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.
In our opinion, management's assessment that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of February 3, 2007 is fairly stated, in all
material respects, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework, issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO). Also, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of February 3, 2007,
based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework, issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets of Dollar Tree
Stores, Inc. and subsidiaries as of February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006, and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ equity and comprehensive
income, and cash flows for each of the fiscal years in the three-year period ended February 3, 2007, and our report dated April 2, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on
those consolidated financial statements.
/s/ KPMG LLP
Norfolk, Virginia
April 2, 2007

Item 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
On March 29, 2007, the Company entered into an Amended and Restated Severance Agreement (filed as Exhibit 10.6 to this Annual Report on Form 10-K) with
Robert H. Rudman, the Company’s Chief Merchandising Officer. This agreement provides for a salary continuation for one year as severance should the Company
terminate Mr. Rudman’s employment for any reason other than “cause” (as defined in the Agreement), death, permanent disability or retirement. This Agreement is no
longer effective if his employment terminates on or after May 26, 2008. As previously disclosed in our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 20, 2007, Mr. Rudman
is also a party to a Change in Control Retention Agreement in the form filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 8-K report.
PART III
Item 10. DIRECTORS , EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The information concerning our Directors and Executive Officers required by this Item is incorporated by reference in Dollar Tree Stores, Inc.'s Proxy Statement
relating to our Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on June 21, 2007, under the caption "Election of Directors."
Information set forth in the Proxy Statement under the caption "Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934," with respect to director and
executive officer compliance with Section 16(a), is incorporated herein by reference.
The information concerning our code of ethics required by this Item is incorporated by reference to Dollar Tree Stores, Inc.'s Proxy Statement relating to our Annual
Meeting of Shareholders to be held on June 21, 2007, under the caption "Code of Business Conduct (Code of Ethics)."
To Table of Contents
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Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
Information set forth in the Proxy Statement under the caption "Compensation of Executive Officers," with respect to executive compensation, is incorporated herein by
reference.

Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
Information set forth in the Proxy Statement under the caption "Ownership of Common Stock," with respect to security ownership of certain beneficial owners and
management, is incorporated herein by reference.
Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS, RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
Information set forth in the Proxy Statement under the caption "Certain Relationships, Related Transactions and Director Independence," is incorporated herein by
reference.
Item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES
Information set forth in the Proxy Statement under the caption "Principal Accounting Fees and Services," is incorporated herein by reference.

PART IV
Item 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES, AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K
Documents filed as part of this report:
1.

Financial Statements. Reference is made to the Index to the Consolidated Financial Statements set forth under Part
II, Item 8, on Page 29 of this Form 10-K.

2.

Financial Statement Schedules. All schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulations
of the Securities and Exchange Commission are not required under the related instructions, are not applicable, or
the information is included in the Consolidated Financial Statements, and therefore have been omitted.

3.

Exhibits. The exhibits listed on the accompanying Index to Exhibits, on page 58 of this Form 10-K, are filed as
part of, or incorporated by reference into, this report.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
DOLLAR TREE STORES, INC.
DATE: April 4, 2007

By: /s/ Bob Sasser
Bob Sasser
President, Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the
capacities and on the dates indicated.
Signature
/s/ Macon F. Brock, Jr.
Macon F. Brock, Jr.

Title

Date

Chairman; Director

April 4, 2007

Director, President and
Chief Executive Officer
(principal executive officer)

April 4, 2007

/s/ J. Douglas Perry
J. Douglas Perry

Chairman Emeritus; Director

April 4, 2007

/s/ Mary Anne Citrino
Mary Anne Citrino

Director

April 4, 2007

/s/ H. Ray Compton
H. Ray Compton

Director

April 4, 2007

Chief Financial Officer
(principal financial and
accounting officer)

April 4, 2007

/s/ Richard G. Lesser
Richard G. Lesser

Director

April 4, 2007

/s/ John F. Megrue
John F. Megrue

Director

April 4, 2007

/s/ Thomas A. Saunders, III
Thomas A. Saunders, III

Director

April 4, 2007

/s/ Eileen R. Scott
Eileen R. Scott

Director

April 4, 2007

/s/ Thomas E. Whiddon
Thomas E. Whiddon

Director

April 4, 2007

/s/ Alan L. Wurtzel
Alan L. Wurtzel

Director

/s/ Bob Sasser
Bob Sasser

/s/ Kent A. Kleeberger
Kent A. Kleeberger

April 4, 2007
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Index to Exhibits
3. Articles and Bylaws
3.1 Third Restated Articles of Incorporation of Dollar Tree Stores, Inc. (the Company), as amended
(Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September
30, 1996, incorporated herein by this reference)
3.2 Third Restated Bylaws of the Company (Exhibit 99.1 to the Company’s December 15, 2005 Current
Report on Form 8-K, incorporated herein by this reference)

10. Material Contracts
10.1 Accelerated Share Repurchase Program Collared Master Confirmation dated December 8, 2006 (filed
herewith)
10.2

Accelerated Share Repurchase Program Non-Collared Master Confirmation dated December 8, 2006
(filed herewith)

10.3

Accelerated Share Repurchase Program Collared Supplemental Confirmation dated December 8, 2006
(filed herewith)

10.4

Accelerated Share Repurchase Program Non-Collared Supplemental Confirmation dated December 8,
2006 (filed herewith)

10.5 Salary and bonus arrangements for the Company’s executive officers for fiscal 2006 (as described in
Item 1.01 of the Company’s March 21, 2006 Current Report on Form 8-K, incorporated herein by this
reference)
10.6

Amended and Restated Severance Agreement between the Company and Robert H. Rudman dated
March 29, 2007 (filed herewith)
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21. Subsidiaries of the Registrant
21.1 Subsidiaries
23. Consents of Experts and Counsel
23.1 Independent Auditors' Consent
31. Certifications required under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
31.1 Certification required under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of Chief Executive Officer
31.2 Certification required under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of Chief Financial Officer
32. Statements under Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
32.1 Statement under Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of Chief Executive Officer
32.2 Statement under Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit 10.1

GOLDMAN, SACHS & CO. | 85 BROAD STREET | NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10004 | TEL: 212 902 1000
Opening Transaction
Dollar Tree Stores, Inc.
500 Volvo Parkway
To:
Chesapeake, VA 23320
A/C:
From:
Re:
Ref. No:
Date:

[Insert Account Number]
Goldman, Sachs & Co.
Collared Accelerated Stock Buyback
As provided in the Supplemental Confirmation
December 8, 2006

This master confirmation (this “Master Confirmation”), dated as of December 8, 2006, is intended to supplement the terms and
provisions of certain Transactions (each, a “Transaction”) entered into from time to time between Goldman, Sachs & Co. (“GS&Co.”) and
Dollar Tree Stores, Inc. (“Counterparty”). This Master Confirmation, taken alone, is neither a commitment by either party to enter into any
Transaction nor evidence of a Transaction. The terms of any particular Transaction shall be set forth in (i) a Supplemental Confirmation in the
form of Schedule A hereto (a “ Supplemental Confirmation”), which shall reference this Master Confirmation and supplement, form a part
of, and be subject to this Master Confirmation and (ii) a Trade Notification in the form of Schedule B hereto (a “Trade Notification”), which
shall reference the relevant Supplemental Confirmation and supplement, form a part of, and be subject to such Supplemental Confirmation.
This Master Confirmation, each Supplemental Confirmation and the related Trade Notification together shall constitute a “Confirmation” as
referred to in the Agreement specified below.
The definitions and provisions contained in the 2002 ISDA Equity Derivatives Definitions (the “Equity Definitions”), as published
by the International Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc., are incorporated into this Master Confirmation. This Master Confirmation, each
Supplemental Confirmation and the related Trade Notification evidence a complete binding agreement between Counterparty and GS&Co. as
to the subject matter and terms of each Transaction to which this Master Confirmation, such Supplemental Confirmation and Trade
Notification relate and shall supersede all prior or contemporaneous written or oral communications with respect thereto.
This Master Confirmation, each Supplemental Confirmation and each Trade Notification supplement, form a part of, and are subject to
an agreement in the form of the 1992 ISDA Master Agreement (Multicurrency -Cross Border) (the “Agreement”) as if GS&Co. and
Counterparty had executed the Agreement on the date of this Master Confirmation (but without any Schedule except for (i) the election of
Loss and Second Method, New York law (without regard to the conflicts of law principles) as the governing law and US Dollars (“USD”) as
the Termination Currency, (ii) the election that subparagraph (ii) of Section 2(c) will not apply to the Transactions, (iii) the replacement of
the word “third” in the last line of Section 5(a)(i) with the word “first”, (iv) the election that the “Cross Default” provisions of Section 5(a)
(vi) shall apply to Counterparty and GS&Co., with a “Threshold Amount” of USD50 million and (v) the amendment of Section 5(a)(vi) to
delete the phrase “or becoming capable at such time of being declared” in the seventh line thereof). Notwithstanding the terms of Sections 5
and 6 of the Agreement, if at any time and so long as Counterparty has satisfied its payment obligations under Section 2(a)(i) of the
Agreement in respect of all Transactions and has at the time no further payment obligations under such Section, then unless GS&Co. is
required pursuant to appropriate proceedings to return to Counterparty, or otherwise returns to Counterparty upon demand o f Counterparty,
any portion of any such payment, (a) the occurrence of an event described in Section 5(a) (excluding Section 5(a)(ii), Section 5(a)(iv) and
Section 5(a)(vii)) of the Agreement with respect to Counterparty shall not constitute an Event of Default or a Potential Event of Default with
respect to Counterparty as the Defaulting Party and (b) GS&Co. shall be entitled to designate an Early Termination Date pursuant to Section
6(b) of the Agreement only as a result of the occurrence of a Termination Event set forth in (i) Sections 5(b)(i) and 5(b)(ii) of the Agreement
with respect to GS&Co. as an Affected Party, (ii) Section 5(b)(iii) of the Agreement with respect to GS&Co. as a Burdened Party and (iii)
Section 5(b)(v) of the Agreement.

For each Transaction, all provisions contained or incorporated by reference in the Agreement shall govern this Master Confirmation,
the Supplemental Confirmation and each Trade Notification relating to such Transaction except as expressly modified herein or in such
Supplemental Confirmation or Trade Notification.
If, in relation to any Transaction to which this Master Confirmation, a Supplemental Confirmation and a Trade Notification relate,
there is any inconsistency between the Agreement, this Master Confirmation, any Supplemental Confirmation, any Trade Notification and the
Equity Definitions, the following will prevail for purposes of such Transaction in the order o f precedence indicated: (i) such Trade
Notification, (ii) such Supplemental Confirmation; (iii) this Master Confirmation; (iv) the Agreement; and (v) the Equity Definitions.
1. Each Transaction constitutes a Share Forward Transaction for the purposes of the Equity Definitions. Set forth below are the terms and
conditions which, together with the terms and conditions set forth in the related Supplemental Confirmation and Trade Notification (in
respect of the relevant Transaction), shall govern each such Transaction.
2

General Terms:
Trade Date:

For each Transaction, as set forth in the Supplemental Confirmation.

Buyer:

Counterparty

Seller:

GS&Co.

Shares:

Shares of common stock, $1.00 par value, of Counterparty (Ticker: DLTR)

Forward Price:

The arithmetic average of the VWAP Prices for each Exchange Business Day in the Calculation Period

VWAP Price:

For any Exchange Business Day, as determined by the Calculation Agent based on the NASDAQ 10b-18 Volume
Weighted Average Price per Share for the regular trading session (including any extensions thereof) of the Exchange on
such Exchange Business Day (without regard to pre-open or after hours trading outside of such regular trading session
for such Exchange Business Day), as published by Bloomberg at 4:15 p.m. New York time (or 15 minutes following the
end of any extension of the regular trading session) on such Exchange Business Day, on Bloomberg page “DLTR.Q
<Equity> AQR_SEC” (or any successor thereto). For purposes of calculating the VWAP Price, the Calculation Agent
will include only those trades that are reported during the period of time during which Counterparty could purchase its
own shares under Rule 10b-18(b)(2) and pursuant to the conditions of Rule 10b-18(b)(3), each under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) (such trades, “Rule 10b-18 eligible transactions”).

Forward Price Adjustment Amount:

For each Transaction, as set forth in the Supplemental Confirmation.

Calculation Period:

The period from and including the first Exchange Business Day immediately following the Hedge Completion Date to
and including the Termination Date (as adjusted in accordance with the provisions hereof).

Termination Date:

For each Transaction, the Scheduled Termination Date set forth in the Supplemental Confirmation (as the same may be
postponed in accordance with the provisions hereof); provided that GS&Co. shall have the right to designate any date
(the “Accelerated Termination Date”) on or after the First Acceleration Date to be the Termination Date by providing
notice to Counterparty of any such designation on such date.

First Acceleration Date:

For each Transaction, as set forth in the Supplemental Confirmation.

Hedge Period:

The period from and including the day immediately after the Trade Date to and including the Hedge Completion Date (as
adjusted in accordance with the provisions hereof).

Hedge Completion Date:

For each Transaction, as set forth in the Trade Notification, to be the Exchange Business Day on which GS&Co. finishes
establishing its initial Hedge Positions in respect of such Transaction, as determined by GS&Co. in its good faith and
commercially reasonable discretion, which date shall be subject to any limitations set forth in the Supplemental
Confirmation.

Hedge Period Reference Price:

For each Transaction, as set forth in the Trade Notification, to be the arithmetic average of the VWAP Prices for each
Exchange Business Day in the Hedge Period.

Market Disruption Event:

The definition of “Market Disruption Event” in Section 6.3(a) of the Equity Definitions is hereby amended by deleting
the words “at any time during the one-hour period that ends at the relevant Valuation Time” and inserting the words “at
any time on any Scheduled Trading Day during the Hedge Period or Calculation Period or” after the word “material,” in
the third line thereof.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Equity Definitions, to the extent that a Disrupted Day occurs in the
Hedge Period or the Calculation Period, t h e Calculation Agent may in good faith and acting in a commercially
reasonable manner postpone the Hedge Completion Date or the Termination Date, as the case may be. In such event, the
Calculation Agent must determine whether (i) such Disrupted Day is a Disrupted Day in full, in which case the VWAP
Price for such Disrupted Day shall not be included for purposes of determining the Hedge Period Reference Price or the
Forward Price, as the case may be, or (ii) such Disrupted Day is a Disrupted Day only in part, in which case the VWAP
Price for such Disrupted Day shall be determined by the Calculation Agent based on Rule 10b-18 eligible transactions in
the Shares on such Disrupted Day effected before the relevant Market Disruption Event occurred and/or after the
relevant Market Disruption Event ended, and the weighting of the VWAP Price for the relevant Exchange Business Days
during the Hedge Period or the Calculation Period, as the case may be, shall be adjusted in a commercially reasonable
manner by the Calculation Agent for purposes of determining the Hedge Period Reference Price or the Forward Price, as
the case may be, with such adjustments based on, among other factors, the duration of any Market Disruption Event and
the volume, historical trading patterns and price of the Shares.
If a Disrupted Day occurs during the Hedge Period or the Calculation Period, as the case may be, and each of the nine
immediately following Scheduled Trading Days is a Disrupted Day, then the Calculation Agent, in its good faith and
commercially reasonable discretion, may either (i) deem such ninth Scheduled Trading Day to be an Exchange Business
Day and determine the VWAP Price for such ninth Scheduled Trading Day using its good faith estimate of the value of
the Shares on such ninth Scheduled Trading Day based on the volume, historical trading patterns and price of the Shares
and such other factors as it deems appropriate or (ii) further extend the Hedge Period or the Calculation Period, as the
case may be, as it deems necessary to determine the VWAP Price.

Exchange:

NASDAQ Global Select Market

Related Exchange(s):

All Exchanges.

Prepayment\Variable Obligation:

Applicable

Prepayment Amount:

For each Transaction, as set forth in the Supplemental Confirmation.

Prepayment Date:

Three (3) Exchange Business Days following the Trade Date.
3

Settlement Terms:
Physical Settlement:

Applicable; provided that GS&Co. does not, and shall not, make the agreement or the representations set forth in Section
9.11 of the Equity Definitions related to the restrictions imposed by applicable securities laws with respect to any Shares
delivered by GS&Co. to Counterparty under any Transaction.

Number of Shares to be Delivered:

A number of Shares equal to (a) the Prepayment Amount divided by (b) the Forward Price minus the Forward Price
Adjustment Amount; provided that the Number of Shares to be Delivered shall not be less than the Minimum Shares and
not greater than the Maximum Shares. The Number of Shares to be Delivered on the Settlement Date shall be reduced,
but not below zero, by (i) any Shares delivered pursuant to the Initial Share Delivery described below and (ii) any Shares
delivered pursuant to the Minimum Share Delivery described below.

Excess Dividend Amount:

For the avoidance of doubt, all references to the Excess Dividend Amount shall be deleted from Section 9.2(a)(iii) of the
Equity Definitions.

Settlement Date:

Three (3) Exchange Business Days following the Termination Date.

Settlement Currency:

USD

Initial Share Delivery:

GS&Co. shall deliver a number of Shares equal to the Initial Shares to Counterparty on the Initial Share Delivery Date in
accordance with Section 9.4 of the Equity Definitions, with the Initial Share Delivery Date deemed to be a “Settlement
Date” for purposes of such Section 9.4.

Initial Share Delivery Date:

Three (3) Exchange Business Days following the Trade Date.

Initial Shares:

For each Transaction, as set forth in the Supplemental Confirmation.

Minimum Share Delivery:

GS&Co. shall deliver a number of Shares equal to the excess, if any, of the Minimum Shares over the Initial Shares on
the Minimum Share Delivery Date in accordance with Section 9.4 of the Equity Definitions, with the Minimum Share
Delivery Date deemed to be a “Settlement Date” for purposes of such Section 9.4.

Minimum Share Delivery Date:

Three (3) Exchange Business Days following the Hedge Completion Date.

Minimum Shares:

For each Transaction, as set forth in the Supplemental Confirmation.

Maximum Shares:

For each Transaction, as set forth in the Supplemental Confirmation.
4

Share Adjustments:
Potential Adjustment Event:

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in Section 11.2(e) of the Equity Definitions, an Extraordinary Dividend shall
not constitute a Potential Adjustment Event.

Extraordinary Dividend:

For any calendar quarter occurring (in whole or in part) during the period from and including the first day of the
Calculation Period to and including the Termination Date, any dividend or distribution on the Shares with an ex-dividend
date occurring during such calendar quarter (other than any dividend or distribution of the type described in Section
11.2(e)(i) or Section 11.2(e)(ii)(A) or (B) of the Equity Definitions).

Method of Adjustment:

Calculation Agent Adjustment

Extraordinary Events:
Consequences of
Merger Events and
Tender Offers:

(a) Share for Share:

Modified Calculation Agent Adjustment

(b) Share-for-Other:

Cancellation and Payment

(c) Share-for-Combined:

Component Adjustment

Determining Party:

GS&Co.

Tender Offer:

Applicable

Nationalization, Insolvency or Delisting:

Cancellation and Payment; provided that in addition to the provisions of Section 12.6(a)(iii) of the Equity Definitions, it
shall also constitute a Delisting if the Exchange is located in the United States and the Shares are not immediately relisted, re-traded or re-quoted on any of the New York Stock Exchange, the American Stock Exchange, The NASDAQ
Global Select Market or The NASDAQ Global Market (or their respective successors); if the Shares are immediately relisted, re-traded or re-quoted on any such exchange or quotation system, such exchange or quotation system shall be
deemed to be the Exchange.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Equity Definitions, if, as a result of a Merger Event, a Tender Offer, a Nationalization, an Insolvency or a Delisting,
Cancellation and Payment applies to one or more Transactions hereunder (whether in whole or in part), an Additional Termination Event (with the Transactions (or portions
thereof) to which Cancellation and Payment applies being the Affected Transactions, Counterparty being the sole Affected Party and the Early Termination Date being the
date on which such Transactions would be cancelled pursuant to Article 12 of the Equity Definitions) shall be deemed to occur, and, in lieu of Sections 12.7 and 12.8 of the
Equity Definitions, Section 6 of the Agreement shall apply to such Affected Transactions.
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Additional Disruption Events:

(a) Change in Law:

Applicable

(b) Failure to Deliver:

Applicable

(c) Insolvency Filing:

Applicable

(d) Loss of Stock Borrow:

Applicable; provided that Sections 12.9(a)(vii) and 12.9(b)(iv) of the Equity Definitions shall be amended by deleting
the words “at a rate equal to or less than the Maximum Stock Loan Rate” and replacing them with “at a rate of return
equal to or greater than zero”.

Hedging Party:

GS&Co.

Determining Party:

GS&Co.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Equity Definitions, if, as a result of an Additional Disruption Event, any Transaction is cancelled or terminated, an
Additional Termination Event (with such terminated Transaction(s) being the Affected Transaction(s), Counterparty being the sole Affected Party and the Early Termination
Date being the date on which such Transaction(s) would be cancelled or terminated pursuant to Article 12 of the Equity Definitions) shall be deemed to occur, and, in lieu of
Sections 12.7 and 12.8 of the Equity Definitions, Section 6 of the Agreement shall apply to such Affected Transaction(s).
Non-Reliance/Agreements and
Acknowledgements Regarding
Hedging Activities/Additional
Acknowledgements:
Transfer:

Counterparty’s Contact Details
for Purpose of Giving Notice:
GS&Co.’s Contact Details for
Purpose of Giving Notice:

Applicable
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Agreement, GS&Co. may assign, transfer and set over all
rights, title and interest, powers, privileges and remedies of GS&Co. under any Transaction, in whole or in
part, to an affiliate of GS&Co. whose obligations are guaranteed by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. without
the consent of Counterparty.

To be provided by Counterparty

Telephone No.: (212) 902-8996
Facsimile No.: (212) 902-0112
Attention: Equity Operations: Options and Derivatives
With a copy to:
Tracey McCabe
Equity Capital Markets
One New York Plaza
New York, NY 10004
Telephone No.: (212) 357-0428
Facsimile No.: (212) 902-3000
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2. Calculation Agent:
GS&Co.; provided that any disagreement regarding any determination made by the Calculation Agent shall be resolved in accordance with
Section 20 of this Master Confirmation.
3. Additional Mutual Representations, Warranties and Covenants.
and covenants to the other party that:

In addition to the representations and warranties in the Agreement, each party represents, warrants

(a)
Eligible Contract Participant.
(i) It is an “eligible contract participant”, as defined in the U.S. Commodity Exchange Act (as amended), and (ii)
is entering into each Transaction hereunder as principal (and not as agent or in any other capacity, fiduciary or otherwise) and not for the benefit of any third party.
(b)
Accredited Investor.
Each party acknowledges that the offer and sale of each Transaction to it is intended to be exempt from registration
under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), by virtue of Section 4(2) thereof and the provisions of Regulation D promulgated thereunder
(“Regulation D”). Accordingly, each party represents and warrants to the other that (i) it has the financial ability to bear the economic risk of its investment in each
Transaction and is able to bear a total loss of its investment, (ii) it is an “accredited investor” as that term is defined under Regulation D, (iii) it will purchase each Transaction
not with a view to the distribution or resale thereof in a manner that would violate the Securities Act and (iv) the disposition of each Transaction is restricted under this Master
Confirmation, the Securities Act and state securities laws.
4. Additional Representations, Warranties and Covenants of GS&Co.
In addition to the representations, warranties and covenants in the Agreement and those
contained herein, GS&Co. hereby represents, warrants and covenants to Counterparty that:
(a)
with respect to (i) all purchases of Shares made by GS&Co. during any relevant Hedge Period in respect of any Transaction and (ii) purchases during
the related Relevant Period (as defined below) of a number of Shares equal to the Minimum Shares for such Transaction less the number of Shares so purchased during the
related Hedge Period in respect of such Transaction, GS&Co. will use good faith efforts to effect such purchases in a manner so that, if such purchases were made by
Counterparty, they would meet the requirements of Rule 10b-18(b)(2), (3) and (4), and effect calculations in respect thereof, taking into account any applicable Securities and
Exchange Commission no-action letters as appropriate and subject to any delays between the execution and reporting of a trade of the Shares on the Exchange and other
circumstances beyond GS&Co.’s control;
(b)
it will conduct its purchases in connection herewith in a manner that would not be deemed to constitute a tender offer within the meaning of Section
14(d)(1) of the Exchange Act; and
(c)
for the avoidance of doubt, GS&Co. has implemented reasonable policies and procedures, taking into consideration the nature of its business, to ensure
that individuals making investment decisions would not violate laws prohibiting trading on the basis of material nonpublic information. Such individuals shall not be in
possession of material nonpublic information during all relevant times beginning on the date hereof and continuing through the Hedge Period and the Calculation Period for
any Transaction.
5. Additional Representations, Warranties and Covenants of Counterparty.
In addition to the representations, warranties and covenants in the Agreement and those
contained herein, as of (i) the date hereof, (ii) the Trade Date for each Transaction hereunder and (iii) to the extent indicated below, each day during the Hedge Period and
Calculation Period for each Transaction hereunder, Counterparty represents, warrants and covenants to GS&Co. that:
(a)
assuming the accuracy of the representations by GS&Co. in Section 4(b) hereof, the purchase or writing of each Transaction and the transactions
contemplated hereby will not violate Rule 13e-1 or Rule 13e-4 under the Exchange Act;

(b) it is not entering into any Transaction (i) on the basis of, and is not aware of, any material non-public information with respect to the Shares (ii) in anticipation
of, in connection with, or to facilitate, a distribution of its securities, a self tender offer or a third-party tender offer or (iii) to create actual or apparent trading activity in the
Shares (or any security convertible into or exchangeable for the Shares) or to raise or depress or otherwise manipulate the price of the Shares (or any security convertible into
or exchangeable for the Shares);
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(c) each Transaction is being entered into pursuant to a publicly disclosed Share buy-back program and its Board of Directors has approved the use of derivatives
to effect the Share buy-back program;

(d)
without limiting the generality of Section 13.1 of the Equity Definitions, it acknowledges that GS&Co. is not making any representations or warranties with
respect to the treatment of any Transaction under FASB Statements 128, 133 as amended, or 149, 150, EITF 00-19, 01-6 or 03-6 (or any successor issue statements) or under
the Financial Accounting Standards Board’s Liabilities & Equity Project;

(e) Counterparty is in compliance with its reporting obligations under the Exchange Act in all material respects and its most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K,
together with all reports subsequently filed by it pursuant to the Exchange Act, taken together and as amended and supplemented to the date of this representation, do not, as of
their respective filing dates, contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements
therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading;

(f) Counterparty shall report each Transaction as required under Regulation S-K and/or Regulation S-B under the Exchange Act, as applicable;

(g) Counterparty is not, and will not be, engaged in a “distribution” of Shares or securities that are convertible into, or exchangeable or exercisable for Shares for
purposes of Regulation M promulgated under the Exchange Act (“Regulation M”) at any time during the Hedge Period or the period commencing on the first day of the
Calculation Period and ending on the last day of the Calculation Period or, in the event GS&Co. designates an Accelerated Termination Date or either party designates an
Early Termination Date or an Early Termination Date is deemed to occur, the 15th Exchange Business Day immediately following such Accelerated Termination Date or Early
Termination Date, as the case may be, or such earlier day as elected by GS&Co. and communicated to Counterparty on such day (the “Relevant Period”) unless Counterparty
has provided written notice to GS&Co. of such distribution (a “Regulation M Distribution Notice”) not later than the Scheduled Trading Day immediately preceding the first
day of the relevant “restricted period” (as defined in Regulation M); Counterparty acknowledges that any such notice may cause the Hedge Period or the Calculation Period to
be extended or suspended pursuant to Section 6 below; accordingly, Counterparty acknowledges that its delivery of such notice must comply with the standards set forth in
Section 7 below;
(h) Counterparty acknowledges that each Transaction is a derivatives transaction in which it has granted GS&Co. an option; GS&Co. may purchase shares for its
own account at an average price that may be greater than, or less than, the price paid by Counterparty under the terms of the related Transaction;
(i)
a s of the Trade Date, the Prepayment Date, the Initial Share Delivery Date, the Minimum Share Delivery Date and the Settlement Date for each
Transaction, Counterparty is not and will not be “insolvent” (as such term is defined under Section 101(32) of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code (Title 11 of the United States Code)
(the “Bankruptcy Code”)) and Counterparty would be able to purchase a number of Shares equal to the Maximum Shares in compliance with the laws of the jurisdiction of
Counterparty’s incorporation;
(j)
Counterparty is not and, after giving effect to any Transaction, will not be, required to register as an “investment company” as such term is defined in the
Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended; and
(l) with the exception of the Accelerated Stock Buyback transaction evidenced by the confirmation dated December 8, 2006 between Counterparty and GS&Co.
and the Supplemental Confirmation thereto dated December 8, 2006, it has not and, during the Hedge Period or Relevant Period for any Transaction, will not enter into
agreements similar to the Transactions described herein where any initial hedge period (however defined), the calculation period (however defined) or the relevant period
(however defined) in such other transaction will overlap at any time (including as a result of extensions in such initial hedge period, calculation period or relevant period as
provided in the relevant agreements) with any Hedge Period or Relevant Period under this Master Confirmation. In the event that the initial hedge period, calculation period or
relevant period i n any other similar transaction overlaps with any Hedge Period or Relevant Period under this Master Confirmation as a result of an extension of the
Termination Date pursuant to Section 6 herein, Counterparty shall promptly amend such transaction to avoid any such overlap.
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6. Suspension of Hedge Period or Calculation Period.
(a) If Counterparty concludes that it will be engaged in a distribution of the Shares for purposes of Regulation M, Counterparty agrees that it will, on a day no later
than the Scheduled Trading Day immediately preceding the start of the relevant restricted period, provide GS&Co. with a Regulation M Distribution Notice. Upon the
effectiveness of such Regulation M Distribution Notice, GS&Co. shall halt any purchase of Shares in connection with hedging any Transaction during the relevant restricted
period (other than any purchases made by GS&Co. in connection with dynamic hedge adjustments of GS&Co.’s exposure to any Transaction as a result of any equity
optionality contained in such Transaction). If on any Scheduled Trading Day Counterparty delivers the Regulation M Distribution Notice in writing (and confirms by
telephone) by 8:30 a.m. New York City time (the “Notification Time”) then such notice shall be effective as of such Notification Time. In the event that Counterparty delivers
such Regulation M Distribution Notice in writing and/or confirms by telephone after the Notification Time, then such notice shall be effective as of 8:30 a.m. New York City
time on the following Scheduled Trading Day or as otherwise required by law or agreed between Counterparty and GS&Co. Upon the effectiveness of such Regulation M
Distribution Notice, the Calculation Period or the Hedge Period, as the case may be, shall be suspended and the Termination Date or the Hedge Completion Date or both, as
the case may be, shall postponed for each Scheduled Trading Day in such restricted period; accordingly, Counterparty acknowledges that its delivery of such notice must
comply with the standards set forth in Section 7 below, including, without limitation, the requirement that such notice be made at a time at which none of Counterparty or any
officer, director, manager or similar person of Counterparty is aware of any material non-public information regarding Counterparty or the Shares.
(b) In the event that GS&Co. reasonably concludes, in its good faith discretion, based on advice of outside legal counsel, that it is appropriate with respect to any
legal, regulatory or self-regulatory requirements or related policies and procedures (whether or not such requirements, policies or procedures are imposed by law or have been
voluntarily adopted by GS&Co.), for it to refrain from purchasing Shares on any Scheduled Trading Day during the Hedge Period or the Calculation Period, GS&Co. may by
written notice to Counterparty (confirmed by telephone) elect to suspend the Hedge Period or the Calculation Period, as the case may be, for such number of Scheduled
Trading Days as is specified in the notice; provided that GS&Co. may exercise this right to suspend only in relation to events or circumstances that are unknown to it or any of
its affiliates at the Trade Date of any Transaction, occur within the normal course of its or any of its affiliates’ businesses, and are not the result of deliberate actions of it or
any of its affiliates with the intent to avoid its obligations under the terms of any Transaction. The notice shall not specify, and GS&Co. shall not otherwise communicate to
Counterparty, the reason for GS&Co.’s election to suspend the Hedge Period or the Calculation Period, as the case may be. The Hedge Period or the Calculation Period, or
both, as the case may be, shall be suspended and the Termination Date shall be extended for each Scheduled Trading Day occurring during any such suspension.
(c) In the event that the Calculation Period or the Hedge Period, as the case may be, is suspended pursuant to Section 6(a) or 6(b) above during the regular trading
session on the Exchange, such suspension shall be deemed to be an additional Market Disruption Event, and the second and third paragraphs under “Market Disruption
Event” shall apply.
(d) In the event that the Calculation Period is extended pursuant to any provision hereof (including, without limitation, pursuant to Section 10(d) below), the
Calculation Agent, in its good faith and commercially reasonable discretion, shall adjust any relevant terms of the related Transaction if necessary to preserve as nearly as
practicable the economic terms of such Transaction prior to such extension; provided that Counterparty shall not be required to make any additional cash payments or deliver
any Shares in connection with any such adjustments.
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7. 10b5-1 Plan. Counterparty represents, warrants and covenants to GS&Co. that for each Transaction:
(a) Counterparty is entering into this Master Confirmation and each Transaction hereunder in good faith and not as part of a plan or scheme to evade the prohibitions of Rule
10b5-1 under the Exchange Act (“Rule 10b5-1”) or any antifraud or anti-manipulation provisions of the federal or applicable state securities laws and that it has not entered
into or altered and will not enter into or alter any corresponding or hedging transaction or position with respect to the Shares. Counterparty acknowledges that it is the intent of
the parties that each Transaction entered into under this Master Confirmation comply with the requirements of Rule 10b5-1(c)(1)(i)(A) and (B) and each Transaction entered
into under this Master Confirmation shall be interpreted to comply with the requirements of Rule 10b5-1(c).
(b) Counterparty will not seek to control or influence GS&Co. to make “purchases or sales” (within the meaning of Rule 10b5-1(c)(1)(i)(B)(3)) under any Transaction entered
into under this Master Confirmation, including, without limitation, GS&Co.’s decision to enter into any hedging transactions. Counterparty represents and warrants that it has
consulted with its own advisors as to the legal aspects of its adoption and implementation of this Master Confirmation, each Supplemental Confirmation and each Trade
Notification under Rule 10b5-1.
(c) Counterparty acknowledges and agrees that any amendment, modification, waiver or termination of this Master Confirmation, the relevant Supplemental
Confirmation or Trade Notification must be effected in accordance with the requirements for the amendment or termination of a “plan” as defined in Rule 10b5-1(c). Without
limiting the generality of the foregoing, any such amendment, modification, waiver or termination shall be made in good faith and not as part of a plan or scheme to evade the
prohibitions of Rule 10b-5, and no such amendment, modification, waiver or termination shall be made at any time at which Counterparty or any officer, director, manager or
similar person of Counterparty is aware of any material non-public information regarding Counterparty or the Shares.
8. Counterparty Purchases.
Counterparty (or any “affiliated purchaser” as defined in Rule 10b-18 under the Exchange Act (“Rule 10b-18”)) shall not, without the prior written consent of
GS&Co., directly or indirectly purchase any Shares (including by means of a derivative instrument), listed contracts on the Shares or securities that are convertible into, or
exchangeable or exercisable for Shares (including, without limitation, any Rule 10b-18 purchases of blocks (as defined in Rule 10b-18)) during any Hedge Period or Relevant
Period (as extended pursuant to the provisions hereof). During this time, any such purchases by Counterparty shall be made through GS&Co., or if not through GS&Co., with
the prior written consent of GS&Co. (which shall not be unreasonably withheld), and in compliance with Rule 10b-18 or otherwise in a manner that Counterparty and
GS&Co. reasonably believe is in compliance with applicable requirements. However, the foregoing shall not limit Counterparty’s ability, pursuant to its employee incentive
plan, to re-acquire Shares in connection with the related equity transactions or to limit Counterparty’s ability to withhold shares to cover tax liabilities associated with such
equity transaction or otherwise restrict Counterparty’s ability to repurchase Shares under privately negotiated transactions with any of its employees, officers, directors or
affiliates, so long as any re-acquisition, withholding or repurchase does not constitute a “Rule 10b-18 purchase” (as defined in Rule 10b-18). Furthermore, this Section shall
not restrict any purchase by Counterparty of Shares effected during any suspension of any Hedge Period or Calculation Period in accordance with Section 6(b).
9. Additional Termination Event. The declaration of any Extraordinary Dividend by the Issuer during the Calculation Period for any Transaction will constitute an Additional
Termination Event, with Counterparty as the sole Affected Party and all Transactions hereunder as the Affected Transactions.
10. Special Provisions for Merger Transactions. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in the Equity Definitions,
(a) Counterparty shall, prior to the opening of trading in the Shares on any day during any Hedge Period or Calculation Period on which Counterparty makes, or
expects to be made, any public announcement (as defined in Rule 165(f) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended) of any Merger Transaction, notify GS&Co. of such
public announcement;
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(b) promptly notify GS&Co. following any such announcement that such announcement has been made; and
(c) promptly provide GS&Co. with written notice specifying (i) Counterparty’s average daily Rule 10b-18 Purchases (as defined in Rule 10b-18) during the three
full calendar months immediately preceding the Announcement Date that were not effected through GS&Co. or its affiliates and (ii) the number of Shares purchased pursuant
to the proviso in Rule 10b-18(b)(4) under the Exchange Act for the three full calendar months preceding the Announcement Date. Such written notice shall be deemed to be a
certification by Counterparty to GS&Co. that such information is true and correct. In addition, Counterparty shall promptly notify GS&Co. of the earlier to occur of the
completion of such transaction and the completion of the vote by target shareholders. Counterparty acknowledges that any such notice may cause the terms of any Transaction
to be adjusted or such Transaction to be terminated; accordingly, Counterparty acknowledges that its delivery of such notice must comply with the standards set forth in
Section 7; and
(d) GS&Co. in its good faith and commercially reasonable discretion may (i) make adjustments to the terms of any Transaction, including, without limitation, the
Termination Date, the Forward Price Adjustment Amount and the Maximum Shares to account for the number of Shares that could be purchased on each day during the
Hedge Period or the Calculation Period in compliance with Rule 10b-18 following such public announcement, provided that Counterparty shall not be required to make any
additional cash payments or deliver any Shares in connection with any such adjustments or (ii) treat the occurrence of such public announcement as an Additional Termination
Event with Counterparty as the sole Affected Party and the Transactions hereunder as the Affected Transactions.
“Merger Transaction” means any merger, acquisition or similar transaction involving a recapitalization as contemplated by Rule 10b-18(a)(13)(iv) under the
Exchange Act.
11. Acknowledgments. The parties hereto intend for:
(a) each Transaction to be a “securities contract” as defined in Section 741(7) of the Bankruptcy Code, a “swap agreement” as defined in Section 101(53B) of the
Bankruptcy Code and a “forward contract” as defined in Section 101(25) of the Bankruptcy Code, and the parties hereto to be entitled to the protections afforded by, among
other Sections, Sections 362(b)(6), 362(b)(17), 362(b)(27), 362(o), 546(e), 546(g), 555, 556, 560 and 561 of the Bankruptcy Code;
(b) the Agreement to be a “master netting agreement” as defined in Section 101(38A) of the Bankruptcy Code;
(c) a party’s right to liquidate or terminate any Transaction, net out or offset termination values or payment amounts, and to exercise any other remedies upon the
occurrence of any Event of Default or Termination Event under the Agreement with respect to the other party or any Extraordinary Event that results in the termination or
cancellation of any Transaction to constitute a “contractual right” (as defined in the Bankruptcy Code);
(d) any cash, securities or other property transferred as performance assurance, credit support or collateral with respect to each Transaction to constitute “margin
payments” (as defined in the Bankruptcy Code); and
(e) all payments for, under or in connection with each Transaction, all payments for the Shares and the transfer of such Shares to constitute “settlement payments”
and “transfers” (as defined in the Bankruptcy Code).
12. Credit Support Documents. The parties hereto acknowledge that no Transaction hereunder is secured by any collateral.
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13. Limitation on Set-off. (a) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Agreement or the Equity Definitions, the calculation of any Settlement Amounts and Unpaid
Amounts shall be calculated separately for (A) all Terminated Transactions in the Shares of the Issuer that qualify as equity under applicable accounting rules (collectively,
the “Equity Shares”) as determined by the Calculation Agent and (B) all other Terminated Transactions under the Agreement including, without limitation, Transactions in
Shares other than those of the Issuer (collectively, the “Other Shares”) and the netting and set-off provisions of the Agreement shall only operate to provide netting and setoff (i) among Terminated Transactions in the Equity Shares and (ii) among Terminated Transactions in the Other Shares. In no event shall the netting and set-off provisions of
the Agreement operate to permit netting and set-off between Terminated Transactions in the Equity Shares and Terminated Transactions in the Other Shares.
(b) The parties agree that upon the occurrence of an Event of Default or Termination Event with respect to a party who is the Defaulting Party or an Affected Party
(“X”), the other party (“Y”) will have the right (but not be obliged) without prior notice to X or any other person to set-off or apply any obligation of X owed to Y (or any
Affiliate of Y) (whether or not matured or contingent and whether or not arising under the Agreement, and regardless of the currency, place of payment or booking office of
the obligation) against any obligation of Y (or any Affiliate of Y) owed to X (whether or not matured or contingent and whether or not arising under the Agreement, and
regardless of the currency, place of payment or booking office of the obligation). Y will give notice to the other party of any set-off effected under this Section 13.
Amounts (or the relevant portion of such amounts) subject to set-off may be converted by Y into the Termination Currency at the rate of exchange at which such
party would be able, acting in a reasonable manner and in good faith, to purchase the relevant amount of such currency. If any obligation is unascertained, Y may in good faith
estimate that obligation and set-off in respect of the estimate, subject to the relevant party accounting to the other when the obligation is ascertained. Nothing in this Section 13
shall be effective to create a charge or other security interest. This Section 13 shall be without prejudice and in addition to any right of set-off, combination of accounts, lien or
other right to which any party is at any time otherwise entitled (whether by operation of law, contract or otherwise).
(c) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the foregoing, GS&Co. agrees not to set off or net amounts due from Counterparty with respect to any Transaction
against amounts due from GS&Co. to Counterparty with respect to contracts or instruments that are not Equity Contracts. “Equity Contract” means any transaction or
instrument that does not convey rights to GS&Co. senior to claims of common stockholders in the event of Counterparty’s bankruptcy.
14. Early Termination. In the event that an Early Termination Date (whether as a result of an Event of Default or a Termination Event) occurs or is designated with respect to
any Transaction (except as a result of a Merger Event in which the consideration or proceeds to be paid to holders of Shares consists solely of cash), if GS&Co. would owe
any amount to Counterparty pursuant to Section 6(d)(ii) of the Agreement (calculated as if the Transactions being terminated on such Early Termination Date were the sole
Transactions under the Agreement) (any such amount, a “GS&Co. Amount”), then, in lieu of any payment of such GS&Co. Amount, Counterparty may, no later than the
Early Termination Date or the date on which such Transaction is terminated, elect for GS&Co. to deliver to Counterparty a number of Shares (or, in the case of a Merger
Event, a number of units, each comprising the number or amount of the securities or property that a hypothetical holder of one Share would receive in such Merger Event
(each such unit, an “Alternative Delivery Unit” and, the securities or property comprising such unit, “Alternative Delivery Property”)) with a value equal to the GS&Co.
Amount, as determined by the Calculation Agent (and the parties agree that, in making such determination of value, the Calculation Agent may take into account a number of
factors, including the market price of the Shares or Alternative Delivery Property on the date of early termination and the prices at which GS&Co. purchases Shares or
Alternative Delivery Property to fulfill its delivery obligations under this Section 14); provided that in determining the composition of any Alternative Delivery Unit, if the
relevant Merger Event involves a choice of consideration to be received by holders, such holder shall be deemed to have elected to receive the maximum possible amount of
cash.
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15. Payment Date upon Early Termination. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in Section 6(d)(ii) of the Agreement, all amounts calculated as being due in respect of an
Early Termination Date under Section 6(e) of the Agreement will be payable on the day that notice of the amount payable is effective; provided that if Counterparty elects to
receive Shares or Alternative Delivery Property in accordance with Section 14), such Shares or Alternative Delivery Property shall be delivered on a date selected by GS&Co
as promptly as practicable.
16. Special Provisions for Counterparty Payments. The parties hereby agree that, notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in the Agreement, in the event that an
Early Termination Date (whether as a result of an Event of Default or a Termination Event) occurs or is designated with respect to any Transaction and, as a result,
Counterparty owes to GS&Co. an amount calculated under Section 6(e) of the Agreement (calculated as if the Transactions being terminated on such Early Termination Date
were the sole Transactions under the Agreement), such amount shall be deemed to be zero. It is understood and agreed that once Buyer has paid the Prepayment Amount for
any Transaction, it has no further obligations to deliver cash or securities upon the settlement of such Transaction or under Section 6(e) of the Agreement in respect of such
Transaction.
17. Claim in Bankruptcy. GS&Co. agrees that in the event of the bankruptcy of Counterparty, GS&Co. shall not have rights or assert a claim that is senior in priority to the
rights and claims available to the shareholders of the common stock of Counterparty.
18. Governing Law. The Agreement, this Master Confirmation, each Supplemental Confirmation, each Trade Notification and all matters arising in connection with the
Agreement, this Master Confirmation, each Supplemental Confirmation and each Trade Notification shall be governed by, and construed and enforced in accordance with, the
laws of the State of New York (without reference to its choice of laws doctrine).
19. Offices.
(a)

The Office of GS&Co. for each Transaction is: One New York Plaza, New York, New York 10004.
The Office of Counterparty for each Transaction is: 500 Volvo Parkway, Chesapeake, Virginia 23320 .

20. Arbitration. The Agreement, this Master Confirmation, each Supplemental Confirmation and each Trade Notification are subject to the following arbitration
provisions:
(a) All parties to this Confirmation are giving up the right to sue each other in court, including the right to a trial by jury, except as provided by the rules
of the arbitration forum in which a claim is filed.

(b) Arbitration awards are generally final and binding; a party’s ability to have a court reverse or modify an arbitration award is very
limited.
(c) The ability of the parties to obtain documents, witness statements and other discovery is generally more limited in arbitration than
in court proceedings.
(d) The arbitrators do not have to explain the reason(s) for their award.
(e) The panel of arbitrators will typically include a minority of arbitrators who were or are affiliated with the securities industry, unless Counterparty is a
member of the organization sponsoring the arbitration facility, in which case all arbitrators may be affiliated with the securities industry.
(f) The rules of some arbitration forums may impose time limits for bringing a claim in arbitration. In some cases, a claim that is ineligible for arbitration
may be brought in court.
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(g) The rules of the arbitration forum in which the claim is filed, and any amendments thereto, shall be incorporated into this Confirmation.
Counterparty agrees that any and all controversies that may arise between Counterparty and GS&Co., including, but not limited to, those arising out of or
relating to the Agreement or any Transaction hereunder, shall be determined by arbitration conducted before The New York Stock Exchange, Inc. (“NYSE”) or
NASD Dispute Resolution (“NASD-DR”), or, if the NYSE and NASD-DR decline to hear the matter, before the American Arbitration Association, in accordance
with their arbitration rules then in force. The award of the arbitrator shall be final, and judgment upon the award rendered may be entered in any court, state or
federal, having jurisdiction.
No person shall bring a putative or certified class action to arbitration, nor seek to enforce any pre-dispute arbitration agreement against any person who
has initiated in court a putative class action or who is a member of a putative class who has not opted out of the class with respect to any claims encompassed by the
putative class action until: (i) the class certification is denied; (ii) the class is decertified; or (iii) Counterparty is excluded from the class by the court.
Such forbearance to enforce an agreement to arbitrate shall not constitute a waiver of any rights under this Confirmation except to the extent stated
herein.”
21. Counterparts.This Master Confirmation may be executed in any number of counterparts, all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument, and any party hereto
may execute this Master Confirmation by signing and delivering one or more counterparts.
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Counterparty hereby agrees (a) to check this Master Confirmation carefully and immediately upon receipt so that errors or discrepancies can be promptly identified and
rectified and (b) to confirm that the foregoing (in the exact form provided by GS&Co.) correctly sets forth the terms of the agreement between GS&Co. and Counterparty with
respect to any particular Transaction to which this Master Confirmation relates, by manually signing this Master Confirmation or this page hereof as evidence of agreement to
such terms and providing the other information requested herein and immediately returning an executed copy to Equity Derivatives Documentation Department, facsimile No.
212-428-1980/83.
Yours faithfully,

GOLDMAN, SACHS & CO.
By: /s/ Conrad Langenegger
Authorized Signatory
Agreed and accepted by:

DOLLAR TREE STORES, INC.

By: /s/ Kent A. Kleeberger
Name: Kent A. Kleeberger
Title: Senior Vice-President and CFO

15

SCHEDULE A

SUPPLEMENTAL CONFIRMATION
Dollar Tree Stores, Inc.
To: 500 Volvo Parkway
Chesapeake, VA 23320
From: Goldman, Sachs & Co.
Subject: Collared Accelerated Stock Buyback
Ref. No: [Insert Reference No.]
Date: [Insert Date]

The purpose of this Supplemental Confirmation is to confirm the terms and conditions of the Transaction entered into between
Goldman, Sachs & Co. (“GS&Co.”) and Dollar Tree Stores, Inc. (“Counterparty” and together with GS&Co., the “Contracting Parties”)
on the Trade Date specified below. This Supplemental Confirmation is a binding contract between GS&Co. and Counterparty as of the
relevant Trade Date for the Transaction referenced below.
1. This Supplemental Confirmation supplements, forms part of, and is subject to the Master Confirmation dated as of December 8, 2006 (the
“Master Confirmation”) between the Contracting Parties, as amended and supplemented from time to time. All provisions contained in the
Master Confirmation govern this Supplemental Confirmation except as expressly modified below.
2. The terms of the Transaction to which this Supplemental Confirmation relates are as follows:

Trade Date:

[ ], 2006

Hedge Completion Date:

As set forth in the Trade Notification, but in no event later than [ ].

Scheduled Termination Date:

[ ], subject to GS&Co.’s right to accelerate the Termination Date to any date on or after the First
Acceleration Date.

First Acceleration Date:

As set forth in the Trade Notification to be the date that follows the Hedge Completion Date by
[__] month[s].

Initial Shares:

[]

Prepayment Amount:

USD[ ]

Minimum Shares:

As set forth in the Trade Notification, to be a number of shares equal to (a) the Prepayment
Amount divided by (b) [ ]% of the Hedge Period Reference Price.

Maximum Shares:

As set forth in the Trade Notification, to be a number of shares equal to (a) the Prepayment
Amount divided by (b) [ ]% of the Hedge Period Reference Price.

Forward Price Adjustment Amount:

As set forth in the Trade Notification, to be a number equal to [ ]% times the Hedge Period
Reference Price.
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3. Counterparty represents and warrants to GS&Co. that neither it nor any “affiliated purchaser” (as defined in Rule 10b-18 under the Exchange Act) has made any purchases
of blocks pursuant to the proviso in Rule 10b-18(b)(4) under the Exchange Act during the four full calendar weeks immediately preceding the Trade Date other than through
GS&Co.
4. This Supplemental Confirmation may be executed in any number of counterparts, all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument, and any party hereto may
execute this Supplemental Confirmation by signing and delivering one or more counterparts.
Counterparty hereby agrees (a) to check this Supplemental Confirmation carefully and immediately upon receipt so that errors or discrepancies can be promptly
identified and rectified and (b) to confirm that the foregoing (in the exact form provided by GS&Co.) correctly sets forth the terms of the agreement between GS&Co. and
Counterparty with respect to this Transaction, by manually signing this Supplemental Confirmation or this page hereof as evidence of agreement to such terms and providing
the other information requested herein and immediately returning an executed copy to Equity Derivatives Documentation Department, facsimile No. 212-428-1980/83.
Yours faithfully,

GOLDMAN, SACHS & CO.
By:
Authorized Signatory
Agreed and accepted by:

DOLLAR TREE STORES, INC.

By:
Name: Kent A. Kleeberger
Title: Senior Vice-President and CFO
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SCHEDULE B
TRADE NOTIFICATION
To:

Dollar Tree Stores, Inc.
500 Volvo Parkway
Chesapeake, VA 23320

From:

Goldman, Sachs & Co.

Subject:

Collared Accelerated Stock Buyback

Ref. No:

[Insert Reference No.]

Date:

[Insert Date]

The purpose of this Trade Notification is to notify you of certain terms in the Transaction entered into between Goldman, Sachs & Co. (“GS&Co.”) and Dollar Tree
Stores, Inc. (“Counterparty”) (together, the “Contracting Parties”) on the Trade Date specified below.
This Trade Notification supplements, forms part of, and is subject to the Supplemental Confirmation dated as of [Insert Date of Supplemental Confirmation] (the
“Supplemental Confirmation”) between the Contracting Parties, as amended and supplemented from time to time. The Supplemental Confirmation is subject to the Master
Confirmation dated as of December 8, 2006 (the “Master Confirmation”) between the Contracting Parties, as amended and supplemented from time to time. All provisions
contained in the Master Confirmation and the Supplemental Confirmation govern this Trade Notification except as expressly modified below.

Trade Date:

[ ], 2006

Hedge Completion Date:

[]

Scheduled Termination Date:

[]

First Acceleration Date:

[ ] (or, if such date is not a Scheduled Trading Day, the next following Scheduled Trading Day).

Hedge Period Reference Price:

USD[ ]

Forward Price Adjustment Amount:

USD[ ]

Minimum Shares:

[]

Maximum Shares:

[]
Yours sincerely,
GOLDMAN, SACHS & CO.
By: ________________________________
Authorized Signatory

Forward to Exhibit 10.2
Return to Form 10K

Exhibit 10.2

GOLDMAN SACHS & CO. | 85 BROAD STREET | NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10004 | TEL: 212-902-1000
Opening Transaction
To:

Dollar Tree Stores, Inc.
500 Volvo Parkway
Chesapeake, VA 23320

From:

Goldman, Sachs & Co.

Subject:

Accelerated Stock Buyback

Ref. No:

As provided in the Supplemental Confirmation

Date:

December 8, 2006

This master confirmation (“Master Confirmation”) dated as of December 8, 2006 is intended to supplement the terms and provisions of certain Transactions
(each, a “Transaction”) entered into from time to time between Goldman, Sachs & Co. (“GS&Co.”) and Dollar Tree Stores, Inc. (“Counterparty”). This Master Confirmation,
taken alone, is neither a commitment by either party to enter into any Transaction nor evidence of a Transaction. The terms of any particular Transaction shall be set forth in a
Supplemental Confirmation in the form of Annex A hereto (a “ Supplemental Confirmation”), which shall reference this Master Confirmation and supplement, form a part,
and be subject to this Master Confirmation. This Master Confirmation and each Supplemental Confirmation together shall constitute a “Confirmation” as referred to in the
Agreement specified below.
The definitions and provisions contained in the 2002 ISDA Equity Derivatives Definitions (the “Equity Definitions”), a s published by the International
Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc., are incorporated into this Master Confirmation. This Master Confirmation and each Supplemental Confirmation evidence a complete
binding agreement between Counterparty and GS&Co. as to the subject matter and terms of each Transaction to which this Master Confirmation and the related Supplemental
Confirmation relate and shall supersede all prior or contemporaneous written or oral communications with respect thereto.
This Master Confirmation and each Supplemental Confirmation supplement, form a part of, and are subject to an agreement in the form of the 1992 ISDA
Master Agreement (Multicurrency-Cross Border) (the “Agreement”) as if GS&Co. and Counterparty had executed the Agreement on the date of this Master Confirmation (but
without any Schedule except for (i) the election of Loss and Second Method, New York law (without regard to the conflicts of law principles) as the governing law and US
Dollars (“USD”) as the Termination Currency, (ii) the election that subparagraph (ii) of Section 2(c) will not apply to the Transactions, (iii) the replacement of the word “third”
in the last line of Section 5(a)(i) with the word “first”, (iv) the election that the “Cross Default” provisions of Section 5(a)(vi) shall apply to Counterparty and GS&Co., with a
“Threshold Amount” of USD50 million and (v) the amendment of Section 5(a)(vi) to delete the phrase “or becoming capable at such time of being declared” in the seventh line
thereof).
For each Transaction, all provisions contained or incorporated by reference in the Agreement shall govern this Master Confirmation and the Supplemental
Confirmation relating to such Transaction except as expressly modified herein or in such Supplemental Confirmation.
If, in relation to any Transaction to which this Master Confirmation and Supplemental Confirmation relate, there is any inconsistency between the Agreement,
this Master Confirmation, any Supplemental Confirmation and the Equity Definitions, the following will prevail for purposes of such Transaction in the order of precedence
indicated: (i) such Supplemental Confirmation; (ii) this Master Confirmation; (iii) the Agreement; and (iv) the Equity Definitions.

1.
On the third Clearance System Business Day following the Trade Date for each Transaction (the “Initial Settlement Date”), GS&Co. will deliver to
Counterparty a number of Shares equal to the Number of Shares for the relevant Transaction, and Counterparty will pay to GS&Co. cash in immediately available funds in an
amount to be specified in the Supplemental Confirmation (the “Initial Purchase Price”) equal to the product of the Initial Share Price (as set forth below) and the Number of
Shares. The additional terms of each Transaction set forth below are intended to be in substance and effect an adjustment to the Initial Purchase Price. Solely for the purposes of
the Equity Definitions, each Transaction shall be treated as if it were a Share Forward Transaction. However, the parties acknowledge that the Transaction is a Share buyback
transaction and is not intended to effect a net issuance of shares or raise equity capital for Counterparty. Set forth below are the terms and conditions which, together with the
terms and conditions set forth in each Supplemental Confirmation (in respect of each relevant Transaction), shall govern each such Transaction.
General Terms:
Trade Date:

For each Transaction, as set forth in the Supplemental Confirmation.

Seller:

Counterparty

Buyer:

GS&Co.

Shares:

Shares of common stock, $1.00 par value, of Counterparty (Ticker: DLTR)

Initial Share Price:

For each Transaction, as set forth in the Supplemental Confirmation.

Forward Price:

For each Transaction, the Initial Share Price for such Transaction.

Prepayment:

Not Applicable

Variable Obligation:

Not Applicable

Exchange:

NASDAQ Global Select Market

Related Exchange(s):

All Exchanges

Market Disruption Event:

The definition of “Market Disruption Event” in Section 6.3(a) of the Equity Definitions is hereby amended by replacing
the words “at any time during the one-hour period that ends at the relevant Valuation Time” in the third line thereof with
the words “at any time on any Scheduled Trading Day during the Valuation Period or” after the word “material”.
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Valuation:
Valuation Period:

Each Scheduled Trading Day during the period commencing on and including the First Valuation Date, to and including
the Valuation Date (but excluding any day(s) on which the Valuation Period is suspended in accordance with Section 5
herein).
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Equity Definitions, to the extent that a Disrupted Day occurs in the
Valuation Period, the Calculation Agent may postpone the Valuation Date. In such event, the Calculation Agent must
determine whether (i) such Disrupted Day is a Disrupted Day in full, in which case such Disrupted Day shall not be
included for purposes of determining the Settlement Price, or (ii) such Disrupted Day is a Disrupted Day only in part, in
which case the VWAP Price for such Disrupted Day shall be determined by the Calculation Agent based on Rule 10b18 eligible transactions in the Shares on such Disrupted Day effected before the relevant Market Disruption Event
occurred and/or after the relevant Market Disruption Event ended, and the weighting of the VWAP Prices for the
relevant Scheduled Trading Days during the Valuation Period shall be adjusted by the Calculation Agent for purposes of
determining the Settlement Price, with such adjustments based on, among other factors, the duration of any Market
Disruption Event and the volume, historical trading patterns and price of the Shares.
If a Disrupted Day occurs during the Valuation Period, and each of the nine immediately following Scheduled Trading
Days is a Disrupted Day, then the Calculation Agent, in its discretion, may either (i) deem such ninth Scheduled Trading
Day to be an Exchange Business Day and determine the VWAP Price for such ninth Scheduled Trading Day and adjust
the weighting of the VWAP Prices for the relevant Scheduled Trading Days during the Valuation Period as it deems
appropriate for purposes of determining the Settlement Price based on, among other factors, the duration of any Market
Disruption Event and the volume, historical trading patterns and price of the Shares or (ii) disregard such day for
purposes of determining the Settlement Price and further postpone the Valuation Date as it deems appropriate to
determine the VWAP Price.

First Valuation Date:

For each Transaction, as set forth in the Supplemental Confirmation.

Valuation Date:

For each Transaction, the Scheduled Valuation Date set forth in the Supplemental Confirmation (as the same may be
postponed in accordance with the provisions hereof); provided that GS&Co. shall have the right to designate any date
(the “Accelerated Valuation Date”) on or after the First Acceleration Date to be the Valuation Date by providing
notice to Counterparty of any such designation on such date.

First Acceleration Date:

For each Transaction, as set forth in the Supplemental Confirmation.
3

Settlement Terms:
Settlement Currency:

USD

Settlement Method Election:

Applicable; provided that (a) Section 7.1 of the Equity Definitions is hereby amended by deleting the word “Physical”
in the sixth line thereof and replacing it with the words “Net Share” and (b) in the event that GS&Co. would be
obligated to deliver to Counterparty any Shares under Net Share Settlement, Cash Settlement shall be applicable in lieu
of Net Share Settlement.

Electing Party:

Counterparty

Settlement Method Election Date:

The earlier of (i) the fifth Scheduled Trading Day immediately prior to the originally scheduled Valuation Date and (ii)
the Accelerated Valuation Date, as the case may be.

Default Settlement Method:

Cash Settlement

Forward Cash Settlement Amount:

A n amount in the Settlement Currency equal to the Number of Shares multiplied b y a n amount equal to (i) the
Settlement Price minus (ii) the Forward Price.

Settlement Price:

The arithmetic mean of the VWAP Prices of the Shares for each Scheduled Trading Day in the Valuation Period minus
the Settlement Price Adjustment Amount.

Settlement Price Adjustment Amount:

For each Transaction, as set forth in the Supplemental Confirmation.

VWAP Price:

For any Exchange Business Day, as determined by the Calculation Agent based on the NASDAQ 10b-18 Volume
Weighted Average Price per Share for the regular trading session (including any extensions thereof) of the Exchange on
such Exchange Business Day (without regard to pre-open or after hours trading outside of such regular trading session
for such Exchange Business Day), as published by Bloomberg at 4:15 p.m. New York time (or 15 minutes following the
end of any extension of the regular trading session) on such Exchange Business Day, on Bloomberg page “DLTR.Q
<Equity> AQR_SEC” (or any successor thereto). For purposes of calculating the VWAP Price, the Calculation Agent
will include only those trades that are reported during the period of time during which Counterparty could purchase its
own shares under Rule 10b-18(b)(2) and pursuant to the conditions of Rule 10b-18(b)(3), each under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) (such trades, “Rule 10b-18 eligible transactions”).

Counterparty’s Contact Details
for Purpose of Giving Notice:

Kent Kleeberger
500 Volvo Parkway
Chesapeake, VA 23320

GS&Co.’s Contact Details for
Purpose of Giving Notice:

Telephone No.: (212) 902-8996
Facsimile No.: (212) 902-0112
Attention: Equity Operations: Options and Derivatives

With a copy to:
Tracey McCabe
Equity Capital Markets
One New York Plaza
New York, NY 10004
Telephone No.: (212) 357-0428
Facsimile No.: (212) 902-3000
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Net Share Settlement:
Net Share Settlement Procedures:

Net Share Settlement shall be made in accordance with the procedures attached hereto as Annex B.

Net Share Settlement Price:

The Relevant Price on the Net Share Valuation Date, as reduced by the per Share amount of the underwriting discount
and/or commissions agreed to pursuant to the equity underwriting agreement contemplated by the Net Share Settlement
Procedures.

Valuation Time:

As provided in Section 6.1 of the Equity Definitions; provided that Section 6.1 of the Equity Definitions is hereby
amended by inserting the words “Net Share Valuation Date,” before the words “Valuation Date” in the first and third
lines thereof.

Net Share Valuation Date:

The Exchange Business Day immediately following the Valuation Date.

Net Share Settlement Date:

The third Exchange Business Day immediately following the Valuation Date.

Reserved Shares:

Initially, 700,000 Shares. The Reserved Shares may be increased or decreased in a Supplemental Confirmation.

Relevant Price:

As provided in Section 1.23(b) of the Equity Definitions; provided that Section 1.23(b) of the Equity Definitions is
hereby amended by replacing each occurrence therein of “the Valuation Date or Averaging Date, as the case may be,”
with the term “such day.”

Share Adjustments:
Potential Adjustment Event:

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in Section 11.2(e) of the Equity Definitions, an Extraordinary Dividend shall
not constitute a Potential Adjustment Event.

Extraordinary Dividend:

For any calendar quarter, any dividend or distribution on the Shares with an ex-dividend date occurring during such
calendar quarter (other than any dividend or distribution of the type described in Section 11.2(e)(i) or Section 11.2(e)(ii)
(A) or (B) of the Equity Definitions).

Method of Adjustment:

Calculation Agent Adjustment
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Extraordinary Events:
Consequences of Merger Events and Tender Offers:
(a) Share-for-Share:

Modified Calculation Agent Adjustment

(b) Share-for-Other:

Cancellation and Payment

(c) Share-for-Combined:

Component Adjustment

Determining Party:

GS&Co.

Tender Offer:

Applicable

Nationalization, Insolvency or Delisting:

Cancellation and Payment; provided that in addition to the provisions of Section 12.6(a)(iii) of the Equity Definitions, it
shall also constitute a Delisting if the Exchange is located in the United States and the Shares are not immediately relisted, re-traded or re-quoted on any of the New York Stock Exchange, the American Stock Exchange, The NASDAQ
Global Select Market or The NASDAQ Global Market (or their respective successors); and if the Shares are
immediately re-listed, re-traded or re-quoted on any such exchange or quotation system, such exchange or quotation
system shall be deemed to be the Exchange.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Equity Definitions, if, as a result of a Merger Event, a Tender Offer, a Nationalization, an Insolvency or a Delisting,
Cancellation and Payment applies to one or more Transactions hereunder (whether in whole or in part), an Additional Termination Event (with the Transactions (or portions
thereof) to which Cancellation and Payment applies being the Affected Transactions, Counterparty being the sole Affected Party and the Early Termination Date being the date
on which such Transactions would be cancelled pursuant to Article 12 of the Equity Definitions) shall be deemed to occur, and, in lieu of Sections 12.7 and 12.8 of the Equity
Definitions, Section 6 of the Agreement shall apply to such Affected Transactions.
Additional Disruption Events:
(a)

Change in Law:

(b)

Insolvency Filing:

(c)

Loss of Stock Borrow:

Applicable
Applicable
Applicable; provided that Sections 12.9(a)(vii) and 12.9(b)(iv) of the Equity Definitions shall be amended by deleting
the words “at a rate equal to or less than the Maximum Stock Loan Rate” and replacing them with “at a rate of return
equal to or greater than zero”.
Hedging Party:
GS&Co.
Determining Party:
GS&Co.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Equity Definitions, if, as a result of an Additional Disruption Event, any Transaction is cancelled or terminated, an Additional
Termination Event (with such terminated Transaction(s) being the Affected Transaction(s), Counterparty being the sole Affected Party and the Early Termination Date being the
date on which such Transaction(s) would be cancelled or terminated pursuant to Article 12 of the Equity Definitions) shall be deemed to occur, and, in lieu of Sections 12.7 and
12.8 of the Equity Definitions, Section 6 of the Agreement shall apply to such Affected Transaction(s).
Non-Reliance/Agreements and
Acknowledgments Regarding
Hedging Activities/Additional
Acknowledgements: Applicable
Net Share Settlement Upon
Early Termination:

Counterparty shall have the right, in its sole discretion, in lieu of making any payment required to be
made by it (the “Early Termination Amount ”) pursuant to Sections 6(d) and 6(e) of the Agreement
following the occurrence of an Early Termination Date in respect of the Transaction (other than any
Early Termination Date occurring as a result of a Share-for-Other or Share-for-Combined Merger Event
or Tender Offer in respect of the portion of the consideration for the Shares consisting of cash), elect to
settle its obligation to pay the Early Termination Amount in Shares in accordance with the terms, and
subject to the conditions, for Net Share Settlement herein by giving written notice to GS&Co. of such
election on the day that the notice fixing an Early Termination Date is effective. If Counterparty elects
Net Share Settlement under such circumstances: (a) the Net Share Valuation Date shall be the Early
Termination Date, which shall be either the Exchange Business Day that such notice is effective or the
first Exchange Business Day immediately following the Exchange Business Day that such notice is
effective, (b) the Net Share Settlement Date shall be deemed to be the Exchange Business Day
immediately following the Early Termination Date and (c) all references t o Forward Cash Settlement
Amount in Annex B hereto shall be deemed references to the Early Termination Amount.

Transfer:

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Agreement, GS&Co. may assign, transfer and set over all
rights, title and interest, powers, privileges and remedies of GS&Co. under any Transaction, in whole or
in part, to an affiliate of GS&Co. whose obligations are guaranteed by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.
without the consent of Counterparty.

Counterparty Payment Instructions:

To be provided by Counterparty

2.
Calculation Agent: GS&Co.; provided that any disagreement regarding any determination made by the Calculation Agent shall be resolved in
accordance with Section 20 of this Master Confirmation.
3.
Representations, Warranties and Covenants of GS&Co. and Counterparty. In addition to the representations and warranties in the Agreement, each
party represents, warrants and covenants to the other party that:
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(a)
Eligible Contract Participant. (i) It is an “eligible contract participant”, as defined in the U.S. Commodity Exchange Act, as amended and (ii) is
entering into each Transaction hereunder as principal (and not as agent or in any other capacity, fiduciary or otherwise) and not for the benefit of any third party.
(b)
Accredited Investor. Each party acknowledges that the offer and sale of each Transaction to it is intended to be exempt from registration under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), by virtue of Section 4(2) thereof and the provisions of Regulation D promulgated thereunder (“Regulation D”).
Accordingly, each party represents and warrants to the other that (i) it has the financial ability to bear the economic risk of its investment in each Transaction and is able to bear
a total loss of its investment, (ii) it is an “accredited investor” as that term is defined under Regulation D, (iii) it will purchase each Transaction not with a view to the
distribution or resale thereof in a manner that would violate the Securities Act and (iv) the disposition of each Transaction is restricted under this Master Confirmation, the
Securities Act and state securities laws.
4.
Additional Representations, Warranties and Covenants of GS&Co. In addition to the representations, warranties and covenants in the Agreement and
those contained herein, GS&Co. hereby represents, warrants and covenants to Counterparty that:
(a)
with respect to purchases of Shares by GS&Co. in connection with any Transaction during the Valuation Period for such Transaction (other than any
purchases made by GS&Co. in connection with dynamic hedge adjustments of GS&Co.’s exposure to any Transaction as a result of any equity optionality contained in such
Transaction), GS&Co. will use good faith efforts to effect such purchases in a manner so that, if such purchases were made by Counterparty, they would meet the requirements
of Rule 10b-18(b)(2), (3) and (4), and effect calculations in respect thereof, taking into account any applicable Securities and Exchange Commission no-action letters as
appropriate and subject to any delays between the execution and reporting of a trade of the Shares on the Exchange and other circumstances beyond GS&Co.’s control;
(b)
it will conduct its purchases in connection herewith in a manner that would not be deemed to constitute a tender offer within the meaning of Section
14(d)(1) of the Exchange Act; and
(c)
for the avoidance of doubt, GS&Co. has implemented reasonable policies and procedures, taking into consideration the nature of its business, to
ensure that individuals making investment decisions would not violate laws prohibiting trading on the basis of material nonpublic information. Such individuals shall not be in
possession of material nonpublic information during all relevant times beginning on the date hereof and continuing through the Valuation Period for any Transaction.
5.
Additional Representations, Warranties and Covenants of Counterparty. In addition to the representations, warranties and covenants in the Agreement
and those contained herein, as of (i) the date hereof and (ii) the period of time from the Trade Date for each Transaction hereunder until the time that each party has fully
performed all of its obligations under such Transaction, Counterparty represents, warrants and covenants to GS&Co. that:
(a)
assuming the accuracy of the representations by GS&Co. in Section 4(b) hereof, the purchase or writing of each Transaction and the transactions
contemplated hereby do not and will not violate Rule 13e-1 or Rule 13e-4 under the Exchange Act;
(b)
it is not entering into any Transaction (i) on the basis of, and is not aware of, any material non-public information with respect to the Shares (ii) in
anticipation of, in connection with, or to facilitate, a distribution of its securities, a self tender offer or a third-party tender offer or (iii) to create actual or apparent trading
activity in the Shares (or any security convertible into or exchangeable for the Shares) or to raise or depress or otherwise manipulate the price of the Shares (or any security
convertible into or exchangeable for the Shares);
(c)
(i) each Transaction is being entered into pursuant to a publicly disclosed Share buy-back program; (ii) its Board of Directors has approved the use
of derivatives to effect the Share buy-back program; and (iii) Counterparty shall immediately retire the Shares purchased in any Transaction;
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(d)
without limiting the generality of Section 13.1 of the Equity Definitions, Counterparty acknowledges that GS&Co. is not making any representations
or warranties with respect to the treatment of any Transaction under FASB Statements 128, 133 (as amended), 149 or 150, EITF 00-19, 01-6 or 03-6 (or any successor issue
statements) or under the Financial Accounting Standards Board’s Liabilities & Equity Project;
(e)
Counterparty is in compliance with its reporting obligations under the Exchange Act in all material respects and its most recent Annual Report on
Form 10-K, together with all reports subsequently filed by it pursuant to the Exchange Act, taken together and as amended and supplemented to the date of this representation,
do not, as of their respective filing dates, contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the
statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading;
(f)

Counterparty shall report each Transaction as required under Regulation S-K and/or Regulation S-B under the Exchange Act, as applicable;

(g)
Counterparty is not, and will not be, engaged in a “distribution” of Shares or securities that are convertible into, or exchangeable or exercisable for
Shares for purposes of Regulation M promulgated under the Exchange Act (“Regulation M”) at any time during the period commencing on the first day of the Valuation Period
and ending on the last day of the Valuation Period or, in the event GS&Co. designates an Accelerated Termination Date or either party designates an Early Termination Date or
an Early Termination Date is deemed to occur, the 15th Exchange Business Day immediately following such Accelerated Termination Date or Early Termination Date, as the
case may be, or such earlier day as elected by GS&Co. and communicated to Counterparty on such day (the “Relevant Period”) unless Counterparty has provided written notice
to GS&Co. of such distribution (a “Regulation M Distribution Notice”) not later than the Scheduled Trading Day immediately preceding the first day of the relevant “restricted
period” (as defined in Regulation M); Counterparty acknowledges that any such notice may cause the Valuation Period to be extended or suspended pursuant to Section 6
below; accordingly, Counterparty acknowledges that its delivery of such notice must comply with the standards set forth in Section 7 below;
(h)
Counterparty acknowledges that each Transaction is a derivatives transaction in which it has granted GS&Co. an option; GS&Co. may purchase
shares for its own account at an average price that may be greater than, or less than, the price paid by Counterparty under the terms of the related Transaction;
(i)
on the Trade Date for each Transaction and on each day of the Valuation Period for such Transaction, Counterparty is not and will not be “insolvent”
(as such term is defined under Section 101(32) of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code (Title 11 of the United States Code) (the “Bankruptcy Code”)) and Counterparty would be able to
purchase a number of Shares equal to the Number of Shares in compliance with the laws of the jurisdiction of Counterparty’s incorporation;
(j)
Counterparty is not and, after giving effect to any Transaction, will not be, required to register as an “investment company” as such term is defined in
the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended;
(k)
with the exception of the Collared Accelerated Stock Buyback transaction (the “Collared ASB Transaction”) evidenced by the confirmation dated
December 8, 2006 between Counterparty and GS&Co. and the Supplemental Confirmation thereto dated December 8, 2006, it has not and, during the Relevant Period for any
Transaction, will not enter into agreements similar to the Transactions described herein where any initial hedge period (however defined), the valuation period (however
defined) or the relevant period (however defined) in such other transaction will overlap at any time (including as a result of extensions in such initial hedge period, valuation
period or relevant period as provided in the relevant agreements) with any Relevant Period under this Master Confirmation. In the event that the initial hedge period, valuation
period or relevant period in any other similar transaction overlaps with any Relevant Period under this Master Confirmation as a result of an extension of the Valuation Date
pursuant to Section 5 herein, Counterparty shall promptly amend such transaction to avoid any such overlap.
6.

Suspension of Valuation Period.
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(a)
If Counterparty concludes that it will be engaged in a distribution of the Shares for purposes of Regulation M, Counterparty agrees that it will, on a
day no later than the Scheduled Trading Day immediately preceding the start of the relevant restricted period, provide GS&Co. with a Regulation M Distribution Notice. Upon
the effectiveness of such Regulation M Distribution Notice, GS&Co. shall halt any purchase of Shares in connection with hedging any Transaction during the relevant restricted
period (other than any purchases made by GS&Co. in connection with dynamic hedge adjustments of GS&Co.’s exposure to any Transaction as a result of any equity optionality
contained in such Transaction). If on any Scheduled Trading Day Counterparty delivers the Regulation M Distribution Notice in writing (and confirms by telephone) by 8:30
a.m. New York City time (the “Notification Time”) then such notice shall be effective as of such Notification Time. In the event that Counterparty delivers such Regulation M
Distribution Notice in writing and/or confirms by telephone after the Notification Time, then such notice shall be effective as of 8:30 a.m. New York City time on the following
Scheduled Trading Day or as otherwise required by law or agreed between Counterparty and GS&Co. Upon the effectiveness of such Regulation M Distribution Notice, the
Valuation Period shall be suspended and the Valuation Date shall be postponed for each Scheduled Trading Day in such restricted period; accordingly, Counterparty
acknowledges that its delivery of such notice must comply with the standards set forth in Section 7 below, including, without limitation, the requirement that such notice be
made at a time at which none of Counterparty or any officer, director, manager or similar person of Counterparty is aware of any material non-public information regarding
Counterparty or the Shares.
(b)
In the event that GS&Co. reasonably concludes, in its good faith discretion, based on advice of outside legal counsel, that it is appropriate with
respect to any legal, regulatory or self-regulatory requirements or related policies and procedures (whether or not such requirements, policies or procedures are imposed by law
or have been voluntarily adopted by GS&Co.), for it to refrain from purchasing Shares on any Scheduled Trading Day during the Valuation Period, GS&Co. may by written
notice to Counterparty (confirmed by telephone) elect to suspend the Valuation Period for such number of Scheduled Trading Days as is specified in the notice; provided that
GS&Co. may exercise this right to suspend only in relation to events or circumstances that are unknown to it or any of its affiliates at the Trade Date of any Transaction, occur
within the normal course of its or any of its affiliates’ businesses, and are not the result of deliberate actions of it or any of its affiliates with the intent to avoid its obligations
under the terms of any Transaction. The notice shall not specify, and GS&Co. shall not otherwise communicate to Counterparty, the reason for GS&Co.’s election to suspend
the Valuation Period. The Valuation Period shall be suspended and the Valuation Date shall be postponed for each Scheduled Trading Day occurring during any such
suspension.
(c)
In the event that the Valuation Period is suspended pursuant to Section 6(a) or (b) above during the regular trading session on the Exchange, such
suspension shall be deemed to be an additional Market Disruption Event, and the second and third paragraphs under “Valuation Period” shall apply.
7.

10b5-1 Plan. Counterparty represents, warrants and covenants to GS&Co. that for each Transaction:

(a) Counterparty is entering into this Master Confirmation and each Transaction hereunder in good faith and not as part of a plan or scheme to evade the
prohibitions of Rule 10b5-1 under the Exchange Act (“ Rule 10b5-1”) or any antifraud or anti-manipulation provisions of the federal or applicable state securities laws and that
it has not entered into or altered and will not enter into or alter any corresponding or hedging transaction or position with respect to the Shares. Counterparty acknowledges that
it is the intent of the parties that each Transaction entered into under this Master Confirmation comply with the requirements of Rule 10b5-1(c)(1)(i)(A) and (B) and each
Transaction entered into under this Master Confirmation shall be interpreted to comply with the requirements of Rule 10b5-1(c).
(b) Counterparty will not seek to control or influence GS&Co. to make “purchases or sales” (within the meaning of Rule 10b5-1(c)(1)(i)(B)(3)) under any
Transaction entered into under this Master Confirmation, including, without limitation, GS&Co.’s decision to enter into any hedging transactions. Counterparty represents and
warrants that it has consulted with its own advisors as to the legal aspects of its adoption and implementation of this Master Confirmation and each Supplemental Confirmation
under Rule 10b5-1.
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(c) Counterparty acknowledges and agrees that any amendment, modification, waiver or termination of this Master Confirmation or the relevant
Supplemental Confirmation must be effected in accordance with the requirements for the amendment or termination of a “plan” as defined in Rule 10b5-1(c). Without limiting
the generality of the foregoing, any such amendment, modification, waiver or termination shall be made in good faith and not as part of a plan or scheme to evade the
prohibitions of Rule 10b-5, and no such amendment, modification, waiver or termination shall be made at any time at which Counterparty or any officer, director, manager or
similar person of Counterparty is aware of any material non-public information regarding Counterparty or the Shares.
8.
Counterparty Purchases. Counterparty (or any “affiliated purchaser” as defined in Rule 10b-18 under the Exchange Act (“Rule 10b-18”)) shall not,
without the prior written consent of GS&Co., directly or indirectly purchase any Shares (including by means of a derivative instrument), listed contracts on the Shares or
securities that are convertible into, or exchangeable or exercisable for Shares (including, without limitation, any Rule 10b-18 purchases of blocks (as defined in Rule 10b-18))
during any Relevant Period (as extended pursuant to the provisions hereof). During this time, any such purchases by Counterparty shall be made through GS&Co., or if not
through GS&Co., with the prior written consent of GS&Co. (which shall not be unreasonably withheld), and in compliance with Rule 10b-18 or otherwise in a manner that
Counterparty and GS&Co. reasonably believe is in compliance with applicable requirements. However, the foregoing shall not limit Counterparty’s ability, pursuant to its
employee incentive plan, to re-acquire Shares in connection with the related equity transactions or to limit Counterparty’s ability to withhold shares to cover tax liabilities
associated with such equity transaction or otherwise restrict Counterparty’s ability to repurchase Shares under privately negotiated transactions with any of its employees,
officers, directors or affiliates, so long as any re-acquisition, withholding or repurchase does not constitute a “Rule 10b-18 purchase” (as defined in Rule 10b-18). Furthermore,
this Section shall not restrict any purchase by Counterparty of Shares effected during any suspension of any Valuation Period in accordance with Section 6(b).
9.
Additional Termination Event. The declaration of any Extraordinary Dividend by the Issuer during the Valuation Period for any Transaction will
constitute an Additional Termination Event, with Counterparty as the sole Affected Party and all Transactions hereunder as the Affected Transactions.
10.
Additional Event of Default. The following occurrence will constitute an Event of Default for purposes of Section 5(a) of the Agreement (with
Counterparty considered to be the Defaulting Party): Counterparty fails to perform any obligation required to be performed under any other agreement between Counterparty
and GS&Co. or its affiliated entities.
11.

Automatic Termination Provisions. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in Section 6 of the Agreement:

(a)
If a Termination Price is specified in one or more Supplemental Confirmations, then an Additional Termination Event with Counterparty as the sole
Affected Party and all Transactions to which such Supplemental Confirmations relate as Affected Transactions will automatically occur without any notice or action by GS&Co.
or Counterparty if the price of the Shares on the Exchange at any time falls below such Termination Price. The Exchange Business Day that the price of the Shares on the
Exchange at any time falls below the Termination Price will be the “Early Termination Date” for purposes of the Agreement.
(b)
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in Section 6(d) of the Agreement, following the occurrence of such an Additional Termination Event,
GS&Co. will notify Counterparty of the amount owing under Section 6(e) of the Agreement within a commercially reasonable time period (with such period based upon the
amount of time, determined by GS&Co. (or any of its Affiliates) in its sole discretion, that it would take to unwind any of its Hedge Position(s) related to the Transaction in a
commercially reasonable manner based on relevant market indicia). For purposes of the “Net Share Settlement Upon Early Termination” provisions herein, the date that such
notice is effective shall constitute the Net Share Valuation Date and the Early Termination Date.
12.

Special Provisions for Merger Transactions. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in the Equity Definitions, Counterparty shall,
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(a) prior to the opening of trading in the Shares on any day during any Valuation Period on which Counterparty makes, or expects to be made, any public
announcement (as defined in Rule 165(f) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended) of any Merger Transaction, notify GS&Co. of such public announcement;
(b) promptly notify GS&Co. following any such announcement that such announcement has been made;
(c) promptly provide GS&Co. with written notice specifying (i) Counterparty’s average daily Rule 10b-18 Purchases (as defined in Rule 10b-18) during the
three full calendar months immediately preceding the Announcement Date that were not effected through GS&Co. or its affiliates and (ii) the number of Shares purchased
pursuant to the proviso in Rule 10b-18(b)(4) under the Exchange Act for the three full calendar months preceding the Announcement Date. Such written notice shall be deemed
to be a certification by Counterparty to GS&Co. that such information is true and correct. In addition, Counterparty shall promptly notify GS&Co. of the earlier to occur of the
completion of such transaction and the completion of the vote by target shareholders. Counterparty acknowledges that any such notice may cause the terms of any Transaction
to be adjusted or such Transaction to be terminated; accordingly, Counterparty acknowledges that its delivery of such notice must comply with the standards set forth in Section
6; and
(d) GS&Co. in good faith and commercially reasonable discretion may (i) suspend the Valuation Period and postpone the Valuation Date or (ii) treat the
occurrence of such public announcement as an Additional Termination Event with Counterparty as the sole Affected Party and the Transactions hereunder as the Affected
Transactions.
“Merger Transaction” means any merger, acquisition or similar transaction involving a recapitalization as contemplated by Rule 10b-18(a)(13)(iv) under the
Exchange Act.
13.
Special Calculation and Settlement Following Early Termination. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Master Confirmation or any
Supplemental Confirmation hereunder, in the event that an Early Termination Date occurs or is designated with respect to one or more Transactions (each an “Elected
Transaction” and collectively, the “Elected Transactions”), then GS&Co. may elect, in its sole discretion, by notice to Counterparty, to have Counterparty deliver the Number
of Early Settlement Shares to GS&Co. on the date that such notice is effective and either (x) GS&Co. shall pay to Counterparty the Special Termination Amount, if such amount
is positive, or (y) Counterparty shall either (1) pay to GS&Co. the absolute value of the Special Termination Amount, if such amount is negative, or (2) elect for the provisions
set forth opposite “Net Share Settlement Upon Early Termination” to apply except that all references in such provision to “the Early Termination Amount” shall be replaced
with references to “the Special Termination Amount”.
To the extent that Counterparty elects to deliver Early Settlement Shares to GS&Co. accompanied by an effective Registration Statement (as defined in Annex
B and satisfactory to GS&Co. in its reasonable discretion) covering such Shares, Counterparty must be in compliance with the conditions specified in paragraph 3 in Annex B
hereto at the time of such delivery. If Counterparty elects to deliver Unregistered Settlement Shares (as defined in Annex B) to GS&Co., Counterparty and GS&Co. will
negotiate in good faith on acceptable procedures and documentation relating to the sale of such Unregistered Settlement Shares. Counterparty and GS&Co. agree that the
payment of the Special Termination Amount and the delivery of the Early Settlement Shares satisfy in full any obligation of a party to make any payments pursuant to Section
6(e) of the Agreement or Article 12 of the Equity Definitions, as the case may be, in respect of the Elected Transactions.
“Number of Early Settlement Shares” means a number of Shares (“Early Settlement Shares”) as determined by GS&Co. in a good faith and commercially
reasonable manner based on its or any of its Affiliates’ Hedge Positions with respect to the Elected Transactions under this Master Confirmation.
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“Special Termination Amount ” means the sum of (a) the product of (i) the Number of Early Settlement Shares multiplied by (ii) a per Share price (the
“Early Termination Price”) determined by GS&Co. in a good faith and commercially reasonable manner based on relevant market indicia, including GS&Co.’s funding costs
associated with Early Settlement Shares and costs incurred or estimated to be incurred by GS&Co. in connection with the purchase and sale of Shares in order to close out
GS&Co.’s or any of its Affiliates’ Hedge Positions with respect to each Affected Transaction and, in the event that Counterparty delivers Unregistered Shares to GS&Co.,
whether GS&Co. and Counterparty have agreed on acceptable procedures and documentation relating to such Unregistered Shares as described above and (b) any amount owing
under Section 6(e) of the Agreement, in respect of the Elected Transactions by GS&Co. to Counterparty (expressed as a positive number) or by Counterparty to GS&Co.
(expressed as a negative number).
14.

Acknowledgments. The parties hereto intend for:

(a)
each Transaction to be a “securities contract” as defined in Section 741(7) of the Bankruptcy Code, a “swap agreement” as defined in Section
101(53B) of the Bankruptcy Code and a “forward contract” as defined in Section 101(25) of the Bankruptcy Code, and the parties hereto to be entitled to the protections
afforded by, among other Sections, Sections 362(b)(6), 362(b)(17), 362(b)(27), 362(o), 546(e), 546(g), 555, 556, 560 and 561 of the Bankruptcy Code;
(b)

the Agreement to be a “master netting agreement” as defined in Section 101 (38A) of the Bankruptcy Code;

(c)
a party’s right to liquidate or terminate any Transaction, net out or offset termination values or payment amounts, and to exercise any other remedies
upon the occurrence of any Event of Default or Termination Event under the Agreement with respect to the other party or any Extraordinary Event that results in the termination
or cancellation of any Transaction to constitute a “contractual right” (as defined in the Bankruptcy Code);
(d)
any cash, securities or other property transferred as performance assurance, credit support or collateral with respect to each Transaction to constitute
“margin payments” (as defined in the Bankruptcy Code); and
(e)
all payments for, under or in connection with each Transaction, all payments for the Shares and the transfer of such Shares to constitute “settlement
payments” and “transfers” (as defined in the Bankruptcy Code).
15.

Credit Support Documents. The parties hereto acknowledge that no Transaction hereunder is secured by any collateral.

16.

Calculations on Early Termination and Set-Off.

(a)
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Agreement or the Equity Definitions, the calculation of any Settlement Amounts or Unpaid Amounts
shall be calculated separately for (A) all Terminated Transactions in the Shares of the Issuer that qualify as equity under applicable accounting rules (collectively, the “Equity
Shares”) as determined by the Calculation Agent and (B) all other Terminated Transactions under the Agreement including, without limitation, Transactions in Shares other
than those of the Issuer (collectively, the “Other Shares”) and the netting and set-off provisions of the Agreement shall only operate to provide netting and set-off (i) among
Terminated Transactions in the Equity Shares and (ii) among Terminated Transactions in the Other Shares. In no event shall the netting and set-off provisions of the Agreement
operate to permit netting and set-off between Terminated Transactions in the Equity Shares and Terminated Transactions in the Other Shares.
(b)
The parties agree that upon the occurrence of an Event of Default or Termination Event with respect to a party who is the Defaulting Party or an
Affected Party (“X”), the other party (“Y”) will have the right (but not be obliged) without prior notice to X or any other person to set-off or apply any obligation of X owed to
Y (or any Affiliate of Y) (whether or not matured or contingent and whether or not arising under the Agreement, and regardless of the currency, place of payment or booking
office of the obligation) against any obligation of Y (or any Affiliate of Y) owed to X (whether or not matured or contingent and whether or not arising under the Agreement,
and regardless of the currency, place of payment or booking office of the obligation). Y will give notice to the other party of any set-off effected under this Section 16.
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Amounts (or the relevant portion of such amounts) subject to set-off may be converted by Y into the Termination Currency at the rate of exchange at which
such party would be able, acting in a reasonable manner and in good faith, to purchase the relevant amount of such currency. If any obligation is unascertained, Y may in good
faith estimate that obligation and set-off in respect of the estimate, subject to the relevant party accounting to the other when the obligation is ascertained. Nothing in this
Section 16 shall be effective to create a charge or other security interest. This Section 16 shall be without prejudice and in addition to any right of set-off, combination of
accounts, lien or other right to which any party is at any time otherwise entitled (whether by operation of law, contract or otherwise).”
(c) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the foregoing, GS&Co. agrees not to set off or net amounts due from Counterparty with respect to any
Transaction against amounts due from GS&Co. to Counterparty with respect to contracts or instruments that are not Equity Contracts. “Equity Contract” means any transaction
or instrument that does not convey rights to GS&Co. senior to claims of common stockholders in the event of Counterparty’s bankruptcy.
17.
Payment Date upon Early Termination. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in Section 6(d)(ii) of the Agreement, all amounts calculated as
being due in respect of an Early Termination Date under Section 6(e) of the Agreement will be payable on the day that notice of the amount payable is effective.
18.
Delivery on Initial Settlement Date. For the avoidance of doubt, GS&Co. may satisfy its obligation to deliver Shares on the Initial Settlement Date
by making separate deliveries of Shares at more than one time on the Initial Settlement Date, so long as the aggregate number of Shares so delivered is equal to the Number of
Shares.
19.
Claim in Bankruptcy. GS&Co. agrees that in the event of the bankruptcy of Counterparty, GS&Co. shall not have rights or assert a claim that is
senior in priority to the rights and claims available to the shareholders of the common stock of Counterparty.
20.
Governing Law. The Agreement, this Master Confirmation and each Supplemental Confirmation and all matters arising in connection with the
Agreement, this Master Confirmation and each Supplemental Confirmation shall be governed by, and construed and enforced in accordance with, the laws of the State of New
York (without reference to its choice of laws doctrine).
21.

Offices.

(a)

The Office of GS&Co. for each Transaction is: One New York Plaza, New York, New York 10004.

(b)

The Office of Counterparty for each Transaction is: 500 Volvo Parkway, Chesapeake, Virginia 23320.

22.

Arbitration.

(a)
All parties to this Confirmation are giving up the right to sue each other in court, including the right to a trial by jury, except as provided
by the rules of the arbitration forum in which a claim is filed.
(b)

Arbitration awards are generally final and binding; a party’s ability to have a court reverse or modify an arbitration award is very limited.

(c)

The ability of the parties to obtain documents, witness statements and other discovery is generally more limited in arbitration than in court

(d)

The arbitrators do not have to explain the reason(s) for their award.

proceedings.
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(e)
The panel of arbitrators will typically include a minority of arbitrators who were or are affiliated with the securities industry, unless
Counterparty is a member of the organization sponsoring the arbitration facility, in which case all arbitrators may be affiliated with the securities industry.
(f)
The rules of some arbitration forums may impose time limits for bringing a claim in arbitration. In some cases, a claim that is ineligible for
arbitration may be brought in court.
(g)

The rules of the arbitration forum in which the claim is filed, and any amendments thereto, shall be incorporated into this Confirmation.

(h)
Counterparty agrees that any and all controversies that may arise between Counterparty and GS & Co., including, but not limited to, those
arising out of or relating to the Agreement or any Transaction hereunder, shall be determined by arbitration conducted before The New York Stock Exchange, Inc.
(“NYSE”) or NASD Dispute Resolution (“NASD-DR”), or, if the NYSE and NASD-DR decline to hear the matter, before the American Arbitration Association, in
accordance with their arbitration rules then in force. The award of the arbitrator shall be final, and judgment upon the award rendered may be entered in any court,
state or federal, having jurisdiction.
(i)
No person shall bring a putative or certified class action to arbitration, nor seek to enforce any pre-dispute arbitration agreement against
any person who has initiated in court a putative class action or who is a member of a putative class who has not opted out of the class with respect to any claims
encompassed by the putative class action until: (i) the class certification is denied; (ii) the class is decertified; or (iii) Counterparty is excluded from the class by the
court.
(j)
extent stated herein.

Such forbearance to enforce an agreement to arbitrate shall not constitute a waiver of any rights under this Confirmation except to the

23.
Counterparts. This Master Confirmation may be executed in any number of counterparts, all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument,
and any party hereto may execute this Master Confirmation by signing and delivering one or more counterparts.
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Counterparty hereby agrees (a) to check this Master Confirmation carefully and immediately upon receipt so that errors or discrepancies can be promptly identified and
rectified and (b) to confirm that the foregoing (in the exact form provided by GS&Co.) correctly sets forth the terms of the agreement between GS&Co. and Counterparty with
respect to any particular Transaction to which this Master Confirmation relates, by manually signing this Master Confirmation or this page hereof as evidence of agreement to
such terms and providing the other information requested herein and immediately returning an executed copy to Equity Derivatives Documentation Department, facsimile No.
212-428-1980/83.
Yours faithfully,

GOLDMAN, SACHS & CO.
By: /s/ Conrad Langenegger
Authorized Signatory
Agreed and accepted by:

DOLLAR TREE STORES, INC.

By: /s/ Kent A. Kleeberger
Name: Kent A. Kleeberger
Title: Senior Vice-President and CFO

ANNEX A

SUPPLEMENTAL CONFIRMATION
To:

Dollar Tree Stores, Inc.
500 Volvo Parkway
Chesapeake, VA 23320

From:

Goldman, Sachs & Co.

Subject:

Accelerated Stock Buyback

Ref. No:

[Insert Reference No.]

Date:

[Insert Date]

The purpose of this Supplemental Confirmation is to confirm the terms and conditions of the Transaction entered into between Goldman, Sachs & Co. (“GS&Co.”) and Dollar
Tree Stores, Inc. (“Counterparty” and together with GS&Co., the “Contracting Parties”) on the Trade Date specified below. This Supplemental Confirmation is a binding
contract between GS&Co. and Counterparty as of the relevant Trade Date for the Transaction referenced below.
1. This Supplemental Confirmation supplements, forms part of, and is subject to the Master Confirmation dated as of December 8, 2006 (the “Master Confirmation”) between
the Contracting Parties, as amended and supplemented from time to time. All provisions contained in the Master Confirmation govern this Supplemental Confirmation except as
expressly modified below.
2. The terms of the Transaction to which this Supplemental Confirmation relates are as follows:

Trade Date:

[ ], 2006

First Valuation Date:

[The first day of the Calculation Period with respect to the Collared ASB Transaction.]

Initial Share Price:

USD[ ] per Share.

Scheduled Valuation Date:

[]

First Acceleration Date:

[The First Acceleration Date for the Collared ASB Transaction.]

Number of Shares:

[]

Settlement Price Adjustment Amount:

USD[ ] per Share

Initial Purchase Price:

USD[50,000,000]

[Termination Price:

USD[ ] per Share]

[Increase/Decrease in Reserved Shares]:

[ ] Shares

3. Counterparty represents and warrants to GS&Co. that neither it (nor any “affiliated purchaser” as defined in Rule 10b-18 under the Exchange Act) have made any purchases
of blocks pursuant to the proviso in Rule 10b-18(b)(4) under the Exchange Act during the four full calendar weeks immediately preceding the Trade Date other than through
GS&Co.
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4. This Supplemental Confirmation may be executed in any number of counterparts, all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument, and any party hereto may execute
this Supplemental Confirmation by signing and delivering one or more counterparts.
Counterparty hereby agrees (a) to check this Supplemental Confirmation carefully and immediately upon receipt so that errors or discrepancies can be promptly
identified and rectified and (b) to confirm that the foregoing (in the exact form provided by GS&Co.) correctly sets forth the terms of the agreement between GS&Co. and
Counterparty with respect to this Transaction, by manually signing this Supplemental Confirmation or this page hereof as evidence of agreement to such terms and providing the
other information requested herein and immediately returning an executed copy to Equity Derivatives Documentation Department, facsimile No. 212-428-1980/83.
Yours sincerely,

GOLDMAN, SACHS & CO.
By: ___________________________________
Authorized Signatory
Agreed and accepted by:

DOLLAR TREE STORES, INC.

By: __________________________________________
Name:
Title:
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ANNEX B
NET SHARE SETTLEMENT PROCEDURES
1. The following Net Share Settlement Procedures shall apply to the extent that Net Share Settlement applies under the Master Confirmation:
2. Net Share Settlement shall be made by delivery on the Net Share Settlement Date of a number of Shares satisfying the conditions set forth in paragraph 3
below with a value equal to the Forward Cash Settlement Amount (the “Registered Settlement Shares”), with such Shares’ value based on the Net Share Settlement Price, or a
number of Shares not satisfying such conditions with a value equal to the Forward Cash Settlement Amount (the “Unregistered Settlement Shares”), with such Shares’ value
based on the value thereof to GS&Co. (which value shall take into account a commercially reasonable illiquidity discount), in each case as determined by the Calculation Agent.

3. Counterparty may only deliver Registered Settlement Shares pursuant to paragraph 2 above if:
(a) a registration statement covering public resale of the Registered Settlement Shares by the GS&Co. (the “Registration Statement”) shall have been filed
with, and declared effective by, the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Act on or prior to the date of delivery, and no stop order shall be in effect with
respect to the Registration Statement; a printed prospectus relating to the Registered Settlement Shares (including any prospectus supplement thereto, the “Prospectus”) shall
have been delivered to GS&Co., in such quantities as GS&Co. shall reasonably have requested, on or prior to the date of delivery;
(b) the form and content of the Registration Statement and the Prospectus (including, without limitation, any sections describing the plan of distribution) shall
be satisfactory to GS&Co.;
(c) as of or prior the date of delivery, GS&Co. and its agents shall have been afforded a reasonable opportunity to conduct a due diligence investigation with
respect to Counterparty customary in scope for underwritten offerings of equity securities and the results of such investigation are satisfactory to GS&Co., in its discretion; and
(d) as of the date of delivery, an agreement (the “Underwriting Agreement”) shall have been entered into with GS&Co. in connection with the public resale
o f the Registered Settlement Shares by GS&Co. substantially similar to underwriting agreements customary for underwritten offerings of equity securities, in form and
substance satisfactory to GS&Co., which Underwriting Agreement shall include, without limitation, provisions substantially similar to those contained in such underwriting
agreements relating to the indemnification of, and contribution in connection with the liability of, GS&Co. and its affiliates.
4. If Counterparty delivers Unregistered Settlement Shares pursuant to paragraph 2 above:
(a) all Unregistered Settlement Shares shall be delivered to GS&Co. (or any affiliate of GS&Co. designated by GS&Co.) pursuant to the exemption from the
registration requirements of the Securities Act provided by Section 4(2) thereof;
(b) as of or prior to the date of delivery, GS&Co. and any potential purchaser of any such shares from GS&Co. (or any affiliate of GS&Co. designated by
GS&Co.) identified by GS&Co. shall be afforded a commercially reasonable opportunity to conduct a due diligence investigation with respect to Counterparty customary in
scope for private placements of equity securities (including, without limitation, the right to have made available to them for inspection all financial and other records, pertinent
corporate documents and other information reasonably requested by them); and
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(c) as of the date of delivery, Counterparty shall enter into an agreement (a “Private Placement Agreement”) with GS&Co. (or any affiliate of GS&Co.
designated by GS&Co.) in connection with the private placement of such shares by Counterparty to GS&Co. (or any such affiliate) and the private resale of such shares by
GS&Co. (or any such affiliate), substantially similar to private placement purchase agreements customary for private placements of equity securities, in form and substance
commercially reasonably satisfactory to GS&Co., which Private Placement Agreement shall include, without limitation, provisions substantially similar to those contained in
such private placement purchase agreements relating to the indemnification of, and contribution in connection with the liability of, GS&Co. and its affiliates, and shall provide
for the payment by Counterparty of all fees and expenses in connection with such resale, including all fees and expenses of counsel for GS&Co., and shall contain
representations, warranties and agreements of Counterparty reasonably necessary or advisable to establish and maintain the availability of an exemption from the registration
requirements of the Securities Act for such resales.
5. GS&Co., itself or through an affiliate (the “Selling Agent”) or any underwriter(s), will sell all, or such lesser portion as may be required hereunder, of the
Registered Settlement Shares or Unregistered Settlement Shares and any Makewhole Shares (as defined below) (together, the “ Settlement Shares”) delivered by Counterparty
to GS&Co. pursuant to paragraph 6 below commencing on the Net Share Settlement Date and continuing until the date on which the aggregate Net Proceeds (as such term is
defined below) of such sales, as determined by GS&Co., is equal to the Forward Cash Settlement Amount (such date, the “Final Resale Date”). If the proceeds of any sale(s)
made by GS&Co., the Selling Agent or any underwriter(s), net of any fees and commissions (including, without limitation, underwriting or placement fees) customary for
similar transactions under the circumstances at the time of the offering, together with carrying charges and expenses incurred in connection with the offer and sale of the Shares
(including, but without limitation to, the covering of any over-allotment or short position (syndicate or otherwise)) (the “Net Proceeds”) exceed the Forward Cash Settlement
Amount, GS&Co. will refund, in U.S. Dollars, such excess to Counterparty on the date that is three (3) Business Days following the Final Resale Date, and, if any portion of the
Settlement Shares remains unsold, GS&Co. shall return to Counterparty on that date such unsold Shares.
6. If the Calculation Agent determines that the Net Proceeds received from the sale of the Registered Settlement Shares or Unregistered Settlement Shares or
any Makewhole Shares, if any, pursuant to this paragraph 6 are less than the Forward Cash Settlement Amount (the amount in U.S. Dollars by which the Net Proceeds are less
than the Forward Cash Settlement Amount being the “Shortfall” and the date on which such determination is made, the “Deficiency Determination Date”), Counterparty shall
on the Exchange Business Day next succeeding the Deficiency Determination Date (the “Makewhole Notice Date” ) deliver to GS&Co., through the Agent, a notice of
Counterparty’s election that Counterparty shall either (i) pay an amount in cash equal to the Shortfall on the day that is one (1) Business Day after the Makewhole Notice Date,
or (ii) deliver additional Shares. If Counterparty elects to deliver to GS&Co. additional Shares, then Counterparty shall deliver additional Shares in compliance with the terms
and conditions of paragraph 3 or paragraph 4 above, as the case may be (the “Makewhole Shares”), on the first Clearance System Business Day which is also an Exchange
Business Day following the Makewhole Notice Date in such number as the Calculation Agent reasonably believes would have a market value on that Exchange Business Day
equal to the Shortfall. Such Makewhole Shares shall be sold by GS&Co. in accordance with the provisions above; provided that if the sum of the Net Proceeds from the sale of
the originally delivered Shares and the Net Proceeds from the sale of any Makewhole Shares is less than the Forward Cash Settlement Amount then Counterparty shall, at its
election, either make such cash payment or deliver to GS&Co. further Makewhole Shares until such Shortfall has been reduced to zero.

7. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in no event shall the number of Settlement Shares, be greater than the Reserved Shares minus the amount of any Shares
actually delivered under any other Transaction(s) under this Master Confirmation (the result of such calculation, the “Capped Number”). Counterparty represents and warrants
(which shall be deemed to be repeated on each day that a Transaction is outstanding) that the Capped Number is equal t o or less than the number of Shares determined
according to the following formula:
B-2

A-B
Where

A = the number of authorized but unissued shares of the Issuer that are not reserved for future issuance on the date of the determination of the
Capped Number; and
B = the maximum number of Shares required to be delivered to third parties if Counterparty elected Net Share Settlement of all transactions in the
Shares (other than Transactions in the Shares under this Master Confirmation) with all third parties that are then currently outstanding and
unexercised.
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Exhibit 10.3

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED
Confidential material has been separately filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission under an application for confidential treatment. Terms for which
confidential treatment has been requested have been omitted and marked with an asterisk [*].

SUPPLEMENTAL CONFIRMATION

Dollar Tree Stores, Inc.
To: 500 Volvo Parkway
Chesapeake, VA 23320
From: Goldman, Sachs & Co.
Subject: Collared Accelerated Stock Buyback
Ref. No: SDB1623287405
Date: December 8, 2006

The purpose of this Supplemental Confirmation is to confirm the terms and conditions of the Transaction entered into between Goldman, Sachs & Co. (“GS&Co.”)
and Dollar Tree Stores, Inc. (“Counterparty” and together with GS&Co., the “Contracting Parties”) on the Trade Date specified below. This Supplemental Confirmation is a
binding contract between GS&Co. and Counterparty as of the relevant Trade Date for the Transaction referenced below.
1. This Supplemental Confirmation supplements, forms part of, and is subject to the Master Confirmation dated as of December 8, 2006 (the “Master Confirmation”) between
the Contracting Parties, as amended and supplemented from time to time. All provisions contained in the Master Confirmation govern this Supplemental Confirmation except as
expressly modified below.
2. The terms of the Transaction to which this Supplemental Confirmation relates are as follows:

Trade Date:

December 8, 2006

Hedge Completion Date:

As set forth in the Trade Notification, but in no event later than December 22, 2006.

Scheduled Termination Date:

March 8, 2007

First Acceleration Date:

As set forth in the Trade Notification to be the date that follows the Hedge Completion Date by
one month.

Initial Shares:

1,053,931

Prepayment Amount:

USD50,000,000.00

Minimum Shares:

A s set forth in the Trade Notification, to be a number of shares equal to (a) the Prepayment
Amount divided by (b) 110.00% of the Hedge Period Reference Price.

Maximum Shares:

A s set forth in the Trade Notification, to be a number of shares equal to (a) the Prepayment
Amount divided by (b) 97.50% of the Hedge Period Reference Price.

Forward Price Adjustment Amount:

[*]

3. Counterparty represents and warrants to GS&Co. that neither it nor any “affiliated purchaser” (as defined in Rule 10b-18 under the Exchange Act) has made any purchases of
blocks pursuant to the proviso in Rule 10b-18(b)(4) under the Exchange Act during the four full calendar weeks immediately preceding the Trade Date other than through
GS&Co.
4. This Supplemental Confirmation may be executed in any number of counterparts, all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument, and any party hereto may execute
this Supplemental Confirmation by signing and delivering one or more counterparts.
Counterparty hereby agrees (a) to check this Supplemental Confirmation carefully and immediately upon receipt so that errors or discrepancies can be promptly
identified and rectified and (b) to confirm that the foregoing (in the exact form provided by GS&Co.) correctly sets forth the terms of the agreement between GS&Co. and
Counterparty with respect to this Transaction, by manually signing this Supplemental Confirmation or this page hereof as evidence of agreement to such terms and providing the
other information requested herein and immediately returning an executed copy to Equity Derivatives Documentation Department, facsimile No. 212-428-1980/83.
Yours sincerely,

GOLDMAN, SACHS & CO.
By: /s/ Conrad Langenegger
Authorized Signatory
Agreed and accepted by:
DOLLAR TREE STORES, INC.
By: /s/ Kent A. Kleeberger
Name: Kent A. Kleeberger
Title: Senior Vice-President and CFO

* - Indicates that certain information contained herein has been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Confidential treatment has been
requested with respect to the omitted portions.
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Exhibit 10.4

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED
Confidential material has been separately filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission under an application for confidential treatment. Terms for which
confidential treatment has been requested have been omitted and marked with an asterisk [*].
SUPPLEMENTAL CONFIRMATION

To:

Dollar Tree Stores, Inc.
500 Volvo Parkway
Chesapeake, VA 23320

From:

Goldman, Sachs & Co.

Subject:

Accelerated Stock Buyback

Ref. No:

SDB1623287897

Date:

December 8, 2006

The purpose of this Supplemental Confirmation is to confirm the terms and conditions of the Transaction entered into between Goldman, Sachs & Co. (“GS&Co.”) and Dollar
Tree Stores, Inc. (“Counterparty” and together with GS&Co., the “Contracting Parties”) on the Trade Date specified below. This Supplemental Confirmation is a binding
contract between GS&Co. and Counterparty as of the relevant Trade Date for the Transaction referenced below.
1. This Supplemental Confirmation supplements, forms part of, and is subject to the Master Confirmation dated as of December 8, 2006 (the “Master Confirmation”) between
the Contracting Parties, as amended and supplemented from time to time. All provisions contained in the Master Confirmation govern this Supplemental Confirmation except as
expressly modified below.
2. The terms of the Transaction to which this Supplemental Confirmation relates are as follows:

Trade Date:

December 8, 2006

First Valuation Date:

The first day of the Calculation Period with respect to the Collared ASB Transaction.

Initial Share Price:

USD30.19 per Share

Scheduled Valuation Date:

March 8, 2007

First Acceleration Date:

The First Acceleration Date for the Collared ASB Transaction.

Number of Shares:

1,656,178

Settlement Price Adjustment Amount:

[*]

Initial Purchase Price:

USD50,000,013.82

Termination Price:

USD15.00 per Share

* - Indicates that certain information contained herein has been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Confidential treatment has been
requested with respect to the omitted portions.

3. Counterparty represents and warrants to GS&Co. that neither it (nor any “affiliated purchaser” as defined in Rule 10b-18 under the Exchange Act) have made any purchases
of blocks pursuant to the proviso in Rule 10b-18(b)(4) under the Exchange Act during the four full calendar weeks immediately preceding the Trade Date other than through
GS&Co.
4. This Supplemental Confirmation may be executed in any number of counterparts, all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument, and any party hereto may execute
this Supplemental Confirmation by signing and delivering one or more counterparts.
Counterparty hereby agrees (a) to check this Supplemental Confirmation carefully and immediately upon receipt so that errors or discrepancies can be promptly
identified and rectified and (b) to confirm that the foregoing (in the exact form provided by GS&Co.) correctly sets forth the terms of the agreement between GS&Co. and
Counterparty with respect to this Transaction, by manually signing this Supplemental Confirmation or this page hereof as evidence of agreement to such terms and providing the
other information requested herein and immediately returning an executed copy to Equity Derivatives Documentation Department, facsimile No. 212-428-1980/83.
Yours sincerely,

GOLDMAN, SACHS & CO.
By: /s/ Conrad Langenegger
Authorized Signatory
Agreed and accepted by:

DOLLAR TREE STORES, INC.

By: /s/ Kent A. Kleeberger
Name: Kent A. Kleeberger
Title: Senior Vice-President and CFO
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Exhibit 10.6

AMENDED AND RESTATED
SEVERANCE AGREEMENT

This Amended and Restated Severance Agreement (this “Agreement”) is made as of this 29th day of March 2007 between ROBERT H. RUDMAN (“You” or
“Executive”) and DOLLAR TREE STORES, INC. (“Dollar Tree.” For purposes of this Agreement, “Dollar Tree” shall be deemed to include any of its direct or indirect
subsidiaries.) This Agreement amends, restates, and supersedes in its entirety that certain Severance agreement dated June 4, 2003 by and between Executive and Dollar Tree.
In the event Dollar Tree terminates your employment for any reason other than "cause," death, permanent disability or retirement, you shall be entitled to receive one
year of salary continuation as SEVERANCE. Such salary continuation will begin the day after your employment separation and continue for twelve (12) months. Anything
herein to the contrary notwithstanding, no SEVERANCE shall be payable under this Agreement if your employment with Dollar Tree terminates on or after May 26, 2008.
O n the date hereof, Executive and Dollar Tree have also entered into that certain Retention Agreement by and between Dollar Tree and Executive (“Retention
Agreement”). In the event severance would otherwise be payable under both this Agreement and Retention Agreement, then (i) the Severance Payment (as defined i n the
Retention Agreement) shall be in lieu of any SEVERANCE under this Agreement and no payments shall be made under this Agreement, and (ii) if any SEVERANCE has been
paid under this Agreement, the Severance Payment under the Retention Agreement shall be reduced by the amount of any SEVERANCE that may have been paid under this
Agreement.
As a fundamental condition for this SEVERANCE provision, you agree not to compete with Dollar Tree for one year if SEVERANCE is triggered. Consequently,
during such one year period you will not directly or indirectly operate or promote within five miles of any Dollar Tree store: 1.) a facility or business of at least 500 square feet
dedicated to a single price point at or below $1.00; 2.) engage in any type of paper, internet or electronic solicitation dedicated to a single price point at or below $1.00; or 3.)
operate any discount variety store selling more than $100,000 per year dedicated to a single price point at or below $1.00. In agreeing to this provision, you acknowledge that
Dollar Tree is a growing company that currently operates in 47 or more states.
As a fundamental condition of this SEVERANCE provision, you also agree not to directly or indirectly influence or attempt to influence any supplier, service provider
or other person or entity with whom Dollar Tree does business to modify, terminate or change the course of dealing or any written or verbal agreement that Dollar Tree has with
such person or entity or take other action that would adversely impact Dollar Tree's relationship with its suppliers or service providers.

As a fundamental condition of the SEVERANCE provision, you also agree not to directly or indirectly hire or attempt to hire any Dollar Tree employee or to solicit,
induce or attempt to solicit or induce any Dollar Tree employee to leave his or her job for any reason whatsoever, without the prior written consent of Dollar Tree. This
limitation on hire and solicitation, however, does not prohibit solicitations for employment by means of general advertisement, such as newspaper, that is not targeted
specifically at Dollar Tree employees.
For SEVERANCE purposes, "cause" shall include: (a) conduct that would constitute a felony or crime involving moral turpitude; (b) conduct that would tend to
discredit Dollar Tree or be disloyal to Dollar Tree; (c) embezzlement or misappropriation of funds or property of Dollar Tree; (d) gross or repeated neglect of duties after having
received a warning; (e) failure to promptly comply with rules, policies or directives of Dollar Tree; or (f) other conduct that creates a serious threat to the orderly handling of
Dollar Tree's affairs.
Any controversy concerning this SEVERANCE provision shall be submitted to arbitration pursuant to the rules of the American Arbitration Association. The
determination of the arbitrator shall be final and binding and conclusive on all parties. The cost of the arbitration shall be borne by the party losing the arbitration.
This SEVERANCE provision is not intended to confer an employment contract of any nature, either express or implied. It does not change your employment-at-will
status.

DOLLAR TREE STORES, INC
By: _/s/ Bob Sasser____________________
Bob Sasser,
Chief Executive Officer

_/s/ Robert H. Rudman____________
ROBERT H. RUDMAN,
Executive
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EXHIBIT 21.1

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT
The registrant is the parent company of Dollar Tree Distribution, Inc., a distribution and warehousing company, Dollar Tree Management, Inc., a management services
company, and Greenbrier International, Inc, a sourcing company. Dollar Tree Distribution, Inc. and Dollar Tree Management, Inc. are both Virginia companies. Greenbrier
International, Inc. is a Delaware company. Certain other subsidiaries are not included because, when considered in the aggregate as a single subsidiary, they do not constitute a
significant subsidiary as of February 3, 2007.
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EXHIBIT 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
The Board of Directors
Dollar Tree Stores, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the registration statement (Nos. 33-92812, 33-92814, 33-92816, 333-38735, 333-41248, 333-61139, 333-106883, 333-106884,
333-106886, 333-117337 and 333-126286) on Form S-8 of Dollar Tree Stores, Inc. of our reports dated April 2, 2007, with respect to the consolidated balance sheets of Dollar
Tree Stores, Inc. and subsidiaries as of February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006, and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ equity and comprehensive
income, and cash flows for each of the fiscal years in the three-year period ended February 3, 2007, management’s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting as of February 3, 2007 and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of February 3, 2007, which reports appear in the February 3, 2007
Annual Report on Form 10-K of Dollar Tree Stores, Inc. Our report on the consolidated financial statements refers to the adoption by Dollar Tree Stores, Inc. of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004), Share Based Payment, effective January 29, 2006.

/s/ KPMG LLP
Norfolk, Virginia
April 2, 2007
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EXHIBIT 31.1

Chief Executive Officer Certification

I, Bob Sasser, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Dollar Tree Stores, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of
the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results
of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
(a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

(b)

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

(c)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d)

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and
the audit committee of the registrant's Board of Directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
(a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b)

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial
reporting.

Date: April 4, 2007
/s/ Bob Sasser
Bob Sasser
Chief Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT 31.2

Chief Financial Officer Certification

I, Kent A. Kleeberger, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Dollar Tree Stores, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of
the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results
of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
(a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

(b)

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

(c)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d)

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and
the audit committee of the registrant's Board of Directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
(a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b)

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial
reporting.

Date: April 4, 2007
/s/ Kent A. Kleeberger
Kent A. Kleeberger
Chief Financial Officer
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EXHIBIT 32.1

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Dollar Tree Stores, Inc. (the Company) on Form 10-K for the year ending February 3, 2007, as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the Report), I, Bob Sasser, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. ss.1350, as adopted pursuant to
ss.906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
(1)

The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2)

The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

April 4, 2007
Date

/s/ Bob Sasser
Bob Sasser
President, Chief Executive Officer

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been furnished to Dollar Tree Stores, Inc. and will be retained by Dollar Tree Stores, Inc. and furnished to
the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.
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EXHIBIT 32.2

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Dollar Tree Stores, Inc. (the Company) on Form 10-K for the year ending February 3, 2007, as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the Report), I, Kent A. Kleeberger, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. ss.1350, as adopted
pursuant to ss.906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
(1)

The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2)

The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

April 4, 2007
Date

/s/ Kent A. Kleeberger
Kent A. Kleeberger
Chief Financial Officer

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been furnished to Dollar Tree Stores, Inc. and will be retained by Dollar Tree Stores, Inc. and furnished to
the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.
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